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Commerce Bancshares, Inc. operates as a super-
community bank offering an array of sophisticated
financial products delivered with high-gquality,
personal customer service. The company’s customer
promise ask listen solve is not just its brand, but
also its corporate focus, With this platform, Commerce
is continually building its long-term franchise while
paying strict attention to asset quality and expense
management. Commerce provides a full range of

BEVEN KEY MARKETS

1. Kansas City 5. Wichita
2. 8t. Louis 6. Tulsa
3. Peoria/Bloomington 7. Denver

4. Springfield

i . N
st a 4y - Branch Fomprint

Exiended Market Area

financial products to consumer and commercial
customers including: lending, payment processing,
trust, brokerage and capital markets services. Serving
its customers from more than 350 locations in
Missouri, Kansas, Illinois, Oklahoma and Colorado
with regional calling centers in eight other states,
Commerce uses a variety of delivery platforms
including an expansive ATM network, full-featured
online banking and a central contact center.

COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC. AT A GLANCE

* Largest independent bank in
the lower Midwest

* 88% of the company’s profitability
comes from seven key markets

* Super-community bank

* 354 locations

including Kansas City; St. Louis;

* $16.2 billion in assets

Peoria/ Bloomington, Ilinois;
Springfield, Missouri: Wichita,

* 5,083 fulltime equivalent (FTE)
employees

Kansas; Tulsa, Oklahoma; and

Denver, Colorado

MARKET STABILITY

Commerce is a company that values employees,
customers and shareholders while striving to
produce consistent, solid returns. Over the last
10 years, the average annual shareholder return
on the company’s stock has been 6.8% compared
to the NASDAQ Bank Stock Index’s performance

of 4.5%. In December 2007, Commerce paid its 14th
consecutive annual 5% stock dividend. In February
2008, the Board of Directors approved a 5% increase
in the cash dividend rate per share over the fourth
quarter, making it the 40th consecutive year of cash
dividend increases.
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GROWTH in EARNINGS PER SHARE
and STOCK PRICE

Stock Price
Earnings per Share

1] 29 00 ot oz 03 04 05 06 07

~¢~ Earnings per Share! Il Stock Price
(In thousands, except per share data) 2003 2004 2005 20086 2007
operating results
Net interest income ' $ 502,392 ¢ 497331 0§ 501,702 % S13199  § 538072
Provision for loan losses 40,676 30,351 28,785 25,049 42,732
Non-interest income 297,107 315,839 334,837 352,586 371,581
Investment sceurities gains, net 4,560 11,0092 6,362 9035 8,234
Operating non-interest expense’ 472,144 482,709 496,522 525,425 553,807
Operating net income!' 206,524 220,341 223,247 219,842 219,859
Cash dividends 51,266 61,135 63,421 65,758 68,915
at year end
Total assets $ 14287164 $ 14,250,368  § 13,885,545 § 15230349 § 16,204,831
Loans, including held for sale §,142,679 8,305,359 8,899,183 9960118 10,841,264
Investment securities 5,039,194 4,837,368 3,770,181 3,496,323 3,297,015
Deposits 10,206,208 10,434,309 10,851,813 11,744,854 12,551,552
Stockholders’ equity 1,45(:954 1,426,880 1,337,838 1,442,114 1,527,686
Non-performing assets 33,685 18,775 11,713 18,223 33417
Common shares owstanding? 42,522 79017 74,539 73,450 71,796
other financial data '
(hased an averape balances)
Operating return on total assets’ 152% 1.56% 1.60% 1.54% 1.42%
Operating return on stockholders” equity’ 14.27 15.19 16.19 15.96 14.89
Loans to deposits 79.96 78.71 81.34 84.73 838.49
Equity to assets 10.68 10.25 9.87 9.68 9.54
Net yield on interest earning assets (T/E) 4.4 3.8 3.89 3.92 3.80
Tier 1 capital ratio 12.31 12.21 12.21 11.25 10,31
Total capital ratio 13.70 13.57 13.63 12.56 11.49
Leverage ratio 9.71 9.60 9.43 9.05 8.76
Efficiency ratio' 58.83 59.16 59.30 60.55 60.42
Witd. average common shares outstanding — diluted’ 85.221 82,268 77,794 74,678 73,189
per share data
Operating net income — basic"? $ 245§ 272§ 291§ 298§ 3.04
Operating net incoine — diluted" 242 2.68 2.87 2,94 3.00
Market price? 40.33 43.36 47.27 46.10 44.86
Book value? 17.58 18.06 17.95 19.63 21.28
Cash dividends? 61 757 .829 589 952
Cash dividend payourt ratic 25.19% 28.26% 28.92% 30.19% 33.76%

| Amounts and ratios for 2007 exelude an indemnification charge which celates to certain estimated litigation costs of Visa® Inc. Refer to page 15 of the company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for fusther discussion and comparable amounts and ratios stazed in aceordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

*Restated for the 5% stock dividend distributed December 2007,
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David W. Kemper, Chairman

To Our Shareholders

2007 was a difficult year for the entire financial services industry, and one
that produced the most turbulent credit markets in many years. Although
Commerce suffered higher credit losses in our core lending businesses, we
continued, as we have over the past 10 years and longer, to perform favorably
to average industry credit losses. Our disciplined lending philosophy and
strong investment portfolio served us well at a time when credit discipline

and capital adequacy have suddenly become central issues in our industry.

With continued overeapacity and increasing credit problems,
industry profits will again be under pressure in 2008, Your company
is strongly positioned in both liquidity and eapital to take advantage
of a consolidating industry. While revenue growth will bz a challenge
this yeur given a slow-growth economy and a continued weak housing
market, we expect credit spreads to rebound from historic lows. Our
strong Hquidity and capital base will allow us to meet our customers’
credit needs,

Commerce Bancshares earned $2.82 per share in 2007 (including
a fourth quarter after-tax non-cash charge of §0.18 per share
comstituting our purtion of certain Visa Inc. litigation costs shared

hy a number of large member hanks) compared to $2.94 per share

in 2006. Excluding this one-time Visa litigation item, operating
net income was flat compared 1o 2006, Over the past decade,
compounded annual growth in earnings per share has averaged
8%. Other financial highlights include:

1. During 2607, the total rerurn to sharcholders (including
dividends) was slightly negative at (0.6%) compared to negative
(23%} for the 50 largest U. S. bank holding companies. While bank
stocks lost, on average, 33% of their value in 2007, Commerce's stock
price remained relatively stable, down 3% from 2006. The average
sharehalder return on the company's stock over the past decade
hus been 6.8% compared o the NASDAQ Bank Swck [ndex’s

performance of 4.5% over the same period.




We believe that organie growth

value of our franchise. We also

support our growth strategy.
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GROWTH in REVENUE
and REVENUE PER SHARE

$1000

Total Revenue in Millions
Lo LN W WL W DO 0

Il Nct Interest Income

2. Total revenues increased 5% in 2007 due to growth in both
net interest income and non-interest income. Non-interest income
rose 5% due to steady growth in trust, brokerage, bond trading and
corporate
cash manage-

ment fees.

»

in certain produect lines is
the best way to expand our
business and increase the

Bankeard
fees improved
overall by 9%
as a result

continue to be opportunistic ofsuong

in making acquisitions that

growth in
both debit
and commer-
cial card
transaction fees, which increased by 12% and 30%, respectively. Toral
non-interest income now represents almost 41% of our wrtal revenue.

3. In 2007, Commerce paid cash dividends of $0.95 per share,
an increase of 7% over amounts paid in 2006, This was the 39th
consecutive year in which cash dividends increased. In February
2008, we increased the cash dividend for the first quarter to $0.25
per share, representing a quarterly increase of 5%.

4. Asset quality remained good, with net loan charge-offs
totaling 0.42% of average loans compared to 1.29% in 20006, Total
non-accrual loans and foreclosed real estate increased in 2007,
but represented only 0.32% of total loans. At year-end 2007, the
company’s investient securities portfolio totaled $3.3 billion with
ample liquidity and no exposure to either subprime or collateralized
debr obligations (CDO) instruments.

5. Return on assets and return on equity remained strong a 1.42%
and 14.89%, respectively (before Visa hitigation charges), as we
focused on the core financial needs of our customers and practiced a

fundamentally discipiined strategy in the face of marker wrbhulence.

8 89 a0 o1 02

{1 Non-Interest Income

£12.00

$ 9.00

$ 6.00

Revenue per Share

§ 3.00

§ 0.00

03 04 05 08 07

=0~ Revenue per Share

6. Despite weaknesses in the residential real estate sector, the
cconomices in the core lower Midwestern markets we serve remained
solid, allowing us to grow average loans 12%. Demand was good for
both commercial and consumer lending even though competition for
loans and deposits put pressure on our net interest margin, Average
depusits grew by 7%, or $758 million.

7. Currently Commerce maintains bank ratings of Aa2 from
Moody's and A+ from Standard & Poor’s, positioning the company
in the top tier of banks across the country,

We believe that organic growth in certain product lines 1
the best way w expand our business and increase the value of
our franchise. In 2007, our payment systems, card products and
money management business continued along the path of robust
revenue growth.

We also continue to be opportunistic in making acquisitions
that support our growth strategy. During the year, we hought small
banks in -
Our size continues to give us
an advantage over our larger
competitors, particularly in
our ability to communiecate
and work together across

business lines.

Dienver and
Tulsa, attrac-
tive markets
where we had
significant
business but
no physical
presence. To
increase distribution, we opened 2 bank in a new market,
Champaign, Ninois. We also expanded our national sales reach
in card products and leasing, while continuing a strong regional
commercial calling effort.

Consistent execution of our husiness strategy is how Commerce
achieved a solid performance in 2007. It is our strong customer focus
and consistent execution upon which we have built our reputation

for high-level service and a solid balance sheet.
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CASH DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

Dividends per Share

BUILDING ON OUR STRENGTHS

Commerce focuses on serving and finding solutions for our customers
through teamwork. In 2007, we spent significant time re-examining
our super-community banking model and how we might improve

it to hecome more competitive and efficient in the marketplace. We
reached several conclusions:

*® Our size continues to give us an advantage over our larger
competitors, particularly in our ability to communicate and work
together across business lines to bring customers integrated solutions
in payments, credit and wealth management.

* We have the scale and technological expertise 1o be competitive
in our major payment system applications and the flexibility to solve
problems when issues arise.

¢ We have a strong sense of culture and a clear focus on our
customers. We also have the opportunity w articulate our strengths

and flexibility
One key to our long-term  in ways

sucecess will continue to be the thathep

quality of our personnel and """

and prospects

better under-
offer them to execute this uudwhy

model in ways that meet our  theyshould

customers’ long-term needs. " their

business with
us. We have the capacity in systems, personnel and distribution w

drive higher revenue growth.

INVESTING FOR THE FUTURE

Commerce has a relatively simple business madel driven by our
customers’ fundamental financial needs. For many years, our
steengths in payment systems (paper, card and electronic) have

been at the core of this business model. In addition, we have

continued 10 build wealth management and traditional bank credit
products that enable us to fully serve our customers’ needs. Our
focus on multi-product relationships has allowed us to diversify
revenue streams, with non-interest income in 2007 constituting

almast 41% of total revenue,

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

! | ! ! 1
2007

2008

2006

2004

% Satisfaction
El Favorable  [J Newtral @l Unfavorable
(@ ‘Towers Perrin Bank Norm (Favorable Average)
& Watson Wyart Bank Norm (Favorable Average)

One key to our long-term suceess will continue to be the
quality of our personnel and the training and incentives we offer
them 1o execute this maodel in ways that meet our customers’
long-term needs.

Over the last five years, we have spent almost $3 million per
year in employee training and development. The investment is
paying dividends. In 2004, when we began measuring employee
engagement, Commerce received favorable ratings from 78% of its
employees. Our employee engagement measurement has improved
steadily, reaching an 89% favorable rating in 2007, compared w a
bank industry norm of 72%.

Another key to future success is understanding how, when
and where our customers want to get information so that we
make it easy and efficient for them to transact their financial

business. For this reason, we continue 1o invest heavily in technology.
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TOTAL LOANS and DEPOSITS

In Billions

19-year compound
growth mate:

» Loans = 6%

* Deposits = 4%

I Tota! Loans

For example:

* ATM Upgraile — Commerce became the first bank in our
markets to upgrade its ATM network o allow deposits t be made
by inserting cheeks or cash directly into the ATM with no deposit
slip or envelope required. Our ATMs make an electronic image of
a check, which is then wransmitted 1o the bank and printed on a
receipt. In addition to improving customer convenience, image
technology will also save the company approximately $1 miltion
annually by reducing daily ATM servicing costs.

* Remote Deposit — Tn 2007, Comumerce introduced new
remaote deposit techinology specifically designed for small business
owners. Businesses use a special scanner 1o convert checks into
electronic images, which are sent to the bank via a secure Internet
connection. Our system then goes one step further, automatically
updating their accounting software (Quick Books® or Peachtree),
which saves sinall husinesses time and makes their deposited funds
available to them faster.

* Operations Center — A major 2007 back-office project was the

consolidation of our St. Louis and Kansas City Transit and Lockbox

Operations at our newly renovated Operations Center in Kansas Ciry.

While cenralized cconomies of scale and signiftcant cost efficiencies
were the primary motivation, our customers also benefit from a larger
check collection nerwark and improved service quality. Centralized
processing will also improve time-to-market of new technolugy
investments, such as expanded Image Exchange processing, which
is scheduled to be in production early in 2008,

* Wehsite — Our website, www.commercebank.com, continues
to be the most heavily trafficked distribution point in the company,
averaging more than 2 million visits each month. Because our
customers rely on the website for their online banking, we continue
to invest in systemn enhancements that make it easier for them to do

business with Commerce.

While technology is important, we feel strong physical distribution

06

T3 Total Deposits

continues to be an impartant way for us to serve our customers. In
2007, we built four new full-service branches in our markets, each

with our distinct Commerce “clock tower” branch design. With the
2006 acquisition of West Pointe Bank in Belleville, llinois, and

with two new branches, we now have seven full-service branches

in this region

of southern Another key to future success

[linois and is understanding how, when
a total of 57 and where our customers want

branches and inf .
15 ATM.n VO get information so that we

the greater make it easy and efficient for
mewopolitan - them to transaet their finanecial

St. Louis area. business.
In Kansas City,
we added two branches, giving us 53 full-service branches and 132
ATMs. Our attractive, well-located branches also provide our branch
system higher productivity. The number of transactions per machine
in our ATM system, for example, is about twice the national average.
In acquiring small banks and opening branches in new markets,
our strategy is to use a physical presence to sell both fee-based services
and credit products. We feel we have excellent payment systems, and
credit and asset management products that can be sold through our
wider distribution systems into these large, robust urban markets.
We feel our products and branch system, when coupled with
our community focus, also give us particular strengths in serving
the small husiness sector. Average Small Business deposits grew at
a 6% annual rate last year, our fastest growing, non-interest bearing
depasit category. In addition, our Small Business Online Banking
website experienced a 33% increase in users during 2007, and sales
transactions from our Small Business debit card product grew 21%.
On the loan side, average Small Business loans increased 40%. We

continue o emphasize that we understand the unique challenges
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PERCENT NON-PERFORMING ASSETS TO LOANS

0.50% ———~—————————————

and vpportunities of small-business owners and operators, One
result of that emphasis is that Commerce is now the No. | SBA
lender in volume of loans in Kansas City and the No. 2 SBA lender
in St Louis, our two largest markets, A major 2008 initiative will
be to increase this rapidly growing franchise by adding more
commercial calling personnel throughout our branch system to

solicit business customers.

OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Much of the turmoil in financial markets and financial services
companies in 2007 revolved around issues of “transparency™ — what
was really going on in a company's underlying business — and “core
franchises” — how profitable were a company's individual businesses.
Commerce’s core franchises have sophisticated products, but a

straightforward business model,

Payment Systems

We continue to feel that our most valuahle franchise with the highest
shareholder return is our payment systems. In 2007, revenue from
payment systems {including both fees and interest spread on deposits)
constituted
62% of total

revenue and

The Nilson Report rankings
demonstrate that Commerce

outperforms peers on purchasing, ";“ghl” 69%
[8) pre—mx
corporate and consumer cards. profits.
It is unusual, incidentally, for Within
one bank to have high rankings  payment

. systems, one
in all card categories. "%

of our most
important business lines is our credit card operation. Card applications
have taken more and more market share in payments over the past

decade; our retail debit and credit card base now totals over 1 million

open accounts with excellent activation and usage activity. Our
average consumer card recetvables grew 12% in 2007, with net
charge-offs of 3.54%, consistently below national averages. Almost
all of these customers are in our Midwest banking markets.

Our business card applications (merchant, purchasing, travel
and entertainment), meanwhile, have grown rapidiy because of the
exceptional functionality they offer our cusiomers. Commerce is

now the country’s 10th largest issuer of purchasing cards, and has

COMMERCE'S RANKING AMONG
COMMERCIAL CARD ISSUERS*

Fleet Card

Purchasing Corporate

Card Card

*The Nibon Repor, [uly 2007. of Visa and MasterCard wsuers in the United States.

: |
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the fastest growing Visa purchasing card business of Visa's top 25
banks. The Nifson Report rankings demonstrare that Commerce
outperfarms peers on purchasing, corporate and consumer cards.
It is unusual, incidentally, for one bank to have high rankings 1n all
card categories. But it is indicative of the investment our company
has made and our strategy to provide a full spectrum of products
designed 1o meet the needs of virtually any consumer or business
customer. Because of our very competitive pricing combined with
excellent service, we continue 1o gain market share in these card
applications and are expanding our sales force o leverage our success,
For the retail consumer, our More Than Free Checking Account
continues to appeal to mass-market customers. For those who need a
bit mare from their bank and want to be rewarded for their business,
we offer CommerceOptions relationship accounts that offer higher

interest rates on deposits, discounts on loan rates and other discounted
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ANNUALIZED TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

5 Year 10 Year
Wl Commerce Baneshates, lnc. MR NASDAQ Bauk ] S&Psoa

banking services. Simularty, by understanding the needs of our small e a national average of 47%. Since personal income in our markets
business customers, we designed a unique product, Small Business is similar to national averages, housing is more affordable in the
Options, that combines personal and business balances to earn free Midwest, and we expeet less relative pressure on prices m our
or discounted services on buth personal and business accounts. markets. Residential construction, however, should remain soft
In addition to a strong customer focus, Commerce retail and throughout 2008. For many years, we have had strong relationships
commereial products are also designed with an efficient and seamless with many of
payment system on the back end. This year we comsolidated check the experienced General problems in the
processing into a state-of-the-art processing center in Kansas City residential credit markets, however,
that houses hath our card and paper-based operations. builders in our should improve pricing in 2008,
Although paper checks continue to decline as a form of local markets, .
payment, they will continue to be an important part of the payment and we will and we will continue to be well
system for many years, We have a very cfficient check-processing . continue to positioned with our strong
center with excellent systems for resolving problems when they arise. work with capital base to meet our
Currently, 16% of our Transit items and 45% of our Transit dollars them through customers' credit requirements
are processed using Image Exchange technology. As the indusiry this difficult .
shifts from paper check clearing to image clearing, we will continue period. when the économy beglns
to grow our image volume. [n 2008, processing efficiency will Consumer $0 r€COVer.
increase with additional Image Exchange systems coming online. lending {resi-
Our new processing center also serves as a touring and demonstration dential, home equity, personal and consumer eredit card) grew 9% in
“showcase” site for prospective customers, and has led to significant 2007, led mostly by increases in personal and consumer credit card
new volume that keeps us efficient as overall check volume declines. loans. Much of our consumer lending is done in our Jocal markets,

and while we expect higher eredit losses in these products as the

Lending and Risk Management economy slows in 2008, we believe these loan portfolios will continue

Commercial and consumer lending were relatively strong in 2007 to be of high quality.

with lower growth toward the end of the year as the economy Similarly, virmally all of our commercial customers operate

slowed. Our loans grew on average 12% in 2007 with continued in our geographical markets and have multiple relationships with

pressure on margins, General problems in the credit markets, us hesides credit facilities. We expect to meet their eredit needs in

however, should improve pricing in 2008, and we will continue to be 2008 as well as continuing to find solutions for their non-credit

well positioned with our strong capital hase to meet our customers’ husiness needs.

credit requirements when the economy begins to recover. Overall asset quality remained strong in 2007 with non-
Residential development and home values have become a performing assets totaling $33 million at year end, an increase of

significant challenge for the national economy. The average housing $15 million for the year. Our loan reserve totaled $133.6 million at

price in our markets appreciated 27% in the last five years compared year end, or 1.26% of loans. We expect the entire banking industry
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to centinue to show higher credit losses in 2008 and to build loan
reserves to reflect generally higher risk in loan portfolios. Loan
growth and credit quality will, of course, be highly dependent on
how the domestic economy performs this year. However, the weaker
doltar, which has helped exports. and a low cost of living have kept

economic activity relatively strong in our Midwestern markers.

Wealth and Asset Management

Wealth management is also an increasingly important contributor
to our company’s top and bottom lines, representing 10% of ol
company revenue. By comparison, wealth management accounts for
6% of wial revenues at our peer bank competitors.

In 2007, our wealth management businesses marked their fourth
consecutive year of record revenue and profit growth. Consolidated
revenues for The Commerce Trust Company (including Private
Banking) for the year totaled $114 million {fees and net interest
income). Consumer brokerage services gprew 25% in 2007 over 2006.

Private

banking also

businesses marked their fourth continues
i : 2 high
consecutive year of record o bN] ig
growth

revenue and profit growth.

priority for
us as we
see strong customer demand for integrating hasic banking, lending
products and high service levels with wealth management,

To support this growth, we continue to invest in our wealth
management business, including ongoing expansion of the investment
offerings in our open architecture investment platform and significant
enhancements to our performance measurement and clienr reporting
systems. As a large and sophisticated local provider of financial advice,
we think we are very well positioned to provide a one-stop source of
counsel to individual customers facing financial planning and wealth
transfer decisions. Our customers appear to agree. In our latest surveys,
our trust chients rated their sattsfaction with our services 5.6 on a

scale of 6.

Over the last five years, our trust and private banking business
revenues have grown 47%. We now have almost $23 billion in total
assets under administration, a 7% increase over 2006. Contributing
to our success are the particularly strong wealth demographics in

Commerce’s largest markets.

OUTLOOK FOR 2008

We feel the most successful financial services firms of the future will
be those that understand their customers and have the personnel,
products and information systemns to meet their needs. We continue
to attract and retain committed bankers whao are focused on their
customers and embrace a culture built around getting business done
for them. We alsa are investing in systems and products; last year
we rolled out one of the country’s most functional and user-friendly
ATM systems and consalidated our St. Louis and Kansas City
operations centers to gain cfficiencies, Both these investments will
pay off in better service and lower unit costs for our customers,

After many years of record profits and growth, the financial
services industry faced a difficult 2007 with lower profit and growth
outlooks for the coming year. Although we did nat achicve our
traditional earnings per share growth in 2007, our balanced business
portfolio and streng risk management atlowed us to significantly
outperform industry returns.

Qver the past 10 years, Commerce Bancshares has grown
earnings per share at an annually compounded rate of 8% with stock
appreciation of 5%. We have increased our dividend every year for
the past 39 years, with a total increase of $0.47 in the last five years.
We again announced a cash dividend increase of 5% in February for
the first quarter 2008, Although we anticipate that 2008 will be a
year of stower growth and higher credit losses for the whole industry,
we continue to {ocus on enhancing the long-term value of the
Commerce franchise. We have an excellent staff working in strong,
balanced markets who share this vision of serving our customers
and building long-term relationships. As always, we appreciate your
support, and we are committed to growing and strengthening your

investment in Commerce Bancshares.

David W, Kemper, Chairman

COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC. FEBRUARY 21, 2008
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You'll find Commerce where vur customers are, Sometimes thats at one of our
branches. Bue vou'll also find es in corporate offices. Ar mansfacturing plants,
In school districts. Or even on the back of a Harley-Dhavidson. You'll find us
in Kansas City and St. Louis, You'll find us in Wichira. Lee's Summir, Tudsa and a
cotple dosen ather communities across the lower Midwest. A

Commerce emline. Or when you drive through one of our ne

we value our customers’ time, you'll find us at the times and plices they need us most.

You'll find oy asking questions, listening to needs and offering solutions.

[t the bese way we know 1o deliver on our costomer promise every single d:
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Living the American
Dream

ALEFS HARLEY-DAVIDSON
WICHITA, KANSAS

One of the nation’s fustest-growing
Huarley-Davidson dealerships

Dan Alefs has been riding Harleys
since 1976. But after the sale of the
family’s publishing business, it took
his wife, Paula, to convince him to
follow his heart and buy a Harley-
Davidson dealership in 2005.

“We didn't necessarily need a bank
to make it work,” acknowledges Dan.
“After getting to know us, however,
Commerce came to us with ideas
that made a lot of sense.” Commerce
eventually helped the Alefs to not
only close the sale, but also to secure
merchant card, treasury, investment
and private banking services that
streamlined their operations and
enabled them to focus on their real
passion: growing their business.

And grow the business has.
Annual sales have more than doubled

“Whether it’s for our bt |
or our persomnal bamlkildoms T3y
bend over backwards [{3a
and deliver om their piyiCl-n

since the Alefs assumed ownership.
With financing assistance from
Commerce, the couple recently
completed a breathtaking new 58,000-
square-foot showroom and service
center. In 2007 - 31 years after Dan'’s
first Harley ride - their business was
named Dealership of the Year in the
company’'s Midwest Region.

“We're in the business of compiet-
ing dreams,” says Paula. “Commerce
is in that same business. They are
helping us live our dream.”
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Abore: Dan Alefs,
Flapictshn, 1n the
sheiceronin und sevvu
Sfiont lefr: Douptas Netf
acdent, Commercra! Banking
; Paula Feist Alefs,
aeener and CEO, Afefi Hovley-
Dan Alefs, ouneramd

arfev -Facidvon; and

Steve Ansel, rive preadent, i
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A Safe Place for Kids

ISABEL’S HOUSE
SPRINGFIELD, MISSOURI

The new Crisis Nursery of the Qzarks

“Never doubt that a small group of
committed citizens can change the
world,” the late Margaret Mead once
said, “Indeed, it is the only thing
that ever has.”

That statement
was certainly true
this past summer
when the Junior
League of Spring-
field opened
Isabel's House, a
new 9,500-square-foot crisis nursery
created to care for local children of
families in crisis and to prevent child
abuse and neglect.

“Making Isabel's House a reality

took two years, major fund raising

and the support of the entire commu-
nity,” says Gretchen Gambon, Isabel

House’s executive director. “It also
took a bank willing to work with
a group of volunteers who started,
literally, with nothing.”

Following a lengthy search, the
Junior League found that bank was
Commerce. “The other banks we

“Commerce people are civie-minded
and engaged in the commumnity,
which makes a world of difference
in understanding our needs.”

spoke to came back with a quote,”
notes Gretchen. “Commerce did
something more. They took the time
to research our needs and develop a

Thp. Brooke O'Reilly und Gretchen Gambon of

s ot are o ml\m v te end child abice and

{eft: Seott Tumlin, rice pre< Imr [# ummuuu.’ Real
Brooke O'Reilly, hai, bousd vf divecrors,
Howse; Andrea MeKinney, semior tiee

president, ianking Chaapr wnd Gretchen

Gambon, exceiee dacetar, fabels Hee,

comprehensive plan for maximizing
our limited dollars.”

In addition to a line of credit, that
plan included a loan repay-
ment structure designed
around the agency’s needs,
credit card and deposit
programs, and brokerage
services for donations made
to the agency. “Commerce
understands non-profits,”
says Gretchen. "It's a comfort to
know they're watching out for us
and support our success.”
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Top: Julie M. Frank, of fndoff incorporared, nze
dutl cvmpriter sorecis 1o viete Inage Lockbox and
Mark Winker,

vice president, Corponete Banking: Julie Frank,

L Belewe, from

dont of Finane
prestdent and CEO)

vice president, e

Going' Paperiess products, might benefit from a paper-
less lockbox and other newer banking
solutions. “Commerce had to push

us a little,” she recalls. “We thought

INDOFF INCORPORATED
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI
we needed paper copies of our
checks. We thought our lockbox
had to he physically in St. Louis.
Now we know better.”

Tocay, in fact, the company has
gone completely paperless with its
banking. Checks are either mailed to

A 130 million distributor of office
and industrial products

Looking back, Julie Frank, Indoff's
vice president of finance, remembers
the time delays she once faced in
posting customer

dual-screen monitor. They
go online to initiate ACH

“In a company that processes 8,500
checks a month, little things ecan
mean a lot. Commerce helped us
build efficiencies that add up to
significant savings.”

receipts. “When
it came to the and wire transactions and
latest banking

technologies, we
didn't know what
was possible,”

she admits. “Our

old bank had

perform other duties. An
overnight investment sweep
account and other tools
further add to Indoff’s
bottom line.

“Commerce saw what we

stopped trying.” Commerce’s lockbox or scanned into
5till, Julie felt some hesitation

when bankers from Commerce

suggested that Indoff, a nationwide

distributor of office and industrial

the system by Indoff using remote
deposit technology. Employees view
check images the same day, posting
them to customer accounts with a

were missing, and then went the extra
mile to deliver it,” Julie adds. “They
made sure the transition process went
smoothly, We greatly value the business
relationship we have developed.”
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Just What the Doctor
Ordered

DERMATOLOGY &
SKIN CANCER CENTER
LEE'S SUMMMIT, MISSOURI

The Midwest's largest dermatology

practice

Dr. Glenn Goldstein is, much to his
chagrin, in a growth business. His
Dermatology & Skin Cancer Center
had 55,000 patient visits in 2007 - more
than any other dermatology practice in
the Midwest - and a number virtually
unimaginable when he entered the
profession 20 years earlier.

Skin cancer is a big reason why.
“It’s reaching epidemic propertions,”
he says.

While Dr. Goldstein's practice
has undergone dramatic changes over
the past two decades, one thing has
remained constant. “I was one of the
first customers of Commerce’s new
healthcare banking divisicn back in
1988." he recalls. “"Ever since, the bank
has been a true partner, whether by
financing construction of our new
buildings, handling cur deposits or

“TI know them, and theyg
me. I trust implicitly
they’re watching out
best interests.”

providing other tools needed to operate
a state-of-the-art specialty practice.”

To meet growing demand, Dr.
Goldstein’s solo practice has today
expanded to eight physicians and 75
employees working in three locations.
That includes two first-of-their-kind
surgery centers with complete medical
spas, where patients are treated for
a wide variety of skin conditions.

“I'm both a doctor and a businessman,”
Dr. Goldstein says. “Commerce under
stands what that means and how to
support us.”

Abore: Dr. Glenn D. Goldstein

s expanded his Kamas e avea

practie 1o meet groseog desand.

[ft. fram lofi; Dr, Glenn
Goldstein, of the Dermarology -
Skin Canees Cemrer; Betsey Green.
trce presadent, Healtheare Buniang
{eroup; and Cynthia Bobbitt,
wsastant veee presudent, Healtheare

Banking Croup.
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Fueling International
Growth

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION
OF PETROLEUM GEOLOGISTS
TULSA, OKLAHOMA

The world's largest geological

organization

The American Association of Petro-
leum Geologists (AAPG) has 31,000
members in 116 countries around the
world. And the association wants to
serve every single one of them.

“As our industry expands globally,
we are operating more and more out-

side the confines of North America.,”
explains David Lange, the group’s
chief financial officer. “International
events are challenging to plan and
operate. They require many complex
international financial transactions.”

i T8 RIS just pushing new
QLB they' re finding ways to
B CR husimess more efficiemt.”

Enter Commerce Bank. During
2007, the bank’s International Depart-
ment addressed the group’s banking
needs abroad. Back in the United
States, lockbox operations for both
checks and credit card collections are
helping to manage the flood of dues

Abace, frum icfi: David E. Lange, Richard D. Fritz, vnd Bryan A. Haws of the Amcrnun

Cenlog ree the needs of grologets on six comtanents. Beloe, from ft. David Lange, (CF(

rre presufent. Instintonad Serviees; Scott Petruska, pa e presidens, Foreign Excunge{Swaps munager; Richard Fritz,
evecutiee divecton, 1 H'G: Bryan Hows, bccwanting Depastment manager, A HWPG; Richard Lehrter, president, Tida
Regron: R Carl Hadging, Aharrman and CE0. Tidat Regron; Jaek Cole, tuwe president, Retmatanee Pro o and that arrive each March from around

Gabe DiGiorgio, tue fresudent, Interational Depavtment. the g}obe, and a I'BVOIV'iIlg line of credit
is ready for seasonal needs. More
recently, The Commerce Trust Company
assumed custody of the association’s
investments, including its employee
pension fund and the AAPG
Foundation investment portfolio,

“Some banks are so segmented
they don’t see the big picture of what
an organization like ours needs,” says
Bryan Haws, the AAPG’s controller.
“But Commerce's people talk to each
other. Every time we have a need, they
deliver the experts and the solutions
to address it.”
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Growing One Step
at a Time

CLORE AUTOMOTIVE
HANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Manufacturer and importer of

qutomotive service equipment

Jim Chasm, Clore Automotive’s chief
executive officer, remembers when he
met Commerce Bank’'s Charlie Truitt
several years ago.
“Charlie was
young, talented
and didn’t know
a thing about the
automotive after-
market,” recalls
Jim. “But what
impressed me was
that he wanted to learn.”

Jim was happy to serve as his
teacher. Later, Charlie introduced him

i5

to other people from the bank who
wanted to learn his business as well.
“It meant a lot,” says Jim. “After years
with an out-ofstate bank, I was looking
for a relationship with a local bank
whose people were accessible. I wanted
to be able to call my banker with an
idea, and know that he would want
to hear about it.”

Clore, which sells automotive
service equipment to professionals
in the automotive aftermarket, began

“Every bank has a competitive
interest rate. It’s the people behind
that rate who really count. When come.
everything else is equal, Commerce
people break the tie.”

its relationship with Commerce using
merchant card services, then expanded

to include many other business and
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personal services as well. In late 2007,

with a line of credit from Commerce,

the company completed its first
acquisition in years: a

battery charger company
in California. Jim expects
there will be more to

“We're cautious,
and we admit it,” Jim
says. "What I like about
Commerce is that I have
their ear when I need it, and they
have ours.”
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Right: Larry Erikson fooked to Commieree for
wnrking capieal to fund new vobotie equipiient
that s helped boust company aales by S0,
o, frorm feft; Mark Bond, cue pleiafon,
Serrsces; Brent Eichelberger,

presidens, Peoru Kegion; Larry Erikson, rice

presdent und genenst munages, Mo Vadley

Plistoes: and Lon Lyons, sive preddent,

Commercntl Bunking.

The 50% Growth Solution

ILLINOIS VALLEY PLASTICS
WASHINGTON, ILLINOIS

A custom-molded thermoplasiics

manufacturer

“Whether it’s technology

that saves us from making the
eight-mile drive to the bank
each day, or working capital to
grow our business, Commerce
has a solution for our needs.”

18

It’s a basic rule of business: You've
got to spend money to make money.
Larry Erikson knew this rule.
He also knew he would need a bank's
help when a truck manufacturer
approached lllinois Valley Plastics
about designing a new lightweight
thermoplastic component for its
engines. The revolutionary new part
would offer the customer significant
cost and weight
savings and
incorporate
features not
possible in
a metal part.
“There are
substantial
machining and
engineering
costs that go
into developing a product like this,
not to mention the robotic equipment

needed to manufacture it,” explains
Larry, vice president of the injection-
molded plastics manufacturer.

Illinois Valley Plastics could
have obtained the working capital it
needed from a number of sources.

It chose Commerce because of the
“added value” the bank brought to
the table, including remote deposit,
purchasing cards and a team of
experts that could help the company
plan for the future.

Two years later, the company's
revenues had increased by 50%.
Looking ahead, the new robotic
production line greatly expands
the company’s ability to develop and
mold sophisticated new thermoplastic
components,

“Commerce understood this was
an investment not just in this particular
product, but in our long-term growth,”
says Larry.
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PATTONVILLE SCHOOL
DISTRICT

ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI

Recipient of Missouri’s Distinction
in Performance Award for seven

consectlive years

For seven years running, Pattonville
School District has been recognized
statewide for the academic achieve-
ments of its 5,700 students.
But scholastic success doesn't
make Pattonville immune to the
financial challenges of a large school
district. “We have lots of people making
lots of small-dollar purchases,” says
Ron Orr, the district’s chief financial
officer, “which makes budgeting and
tracking expenditures difficult.”
In recent years, the district
searched for a way to streamline
purchasing, while alsio strengthening
its internal controls. That search
ended when Commerce presented
an accounts-payable solution that
did both, and more. /
Commerce’s solution called g

TS X Ilowing a majow computer purchase
checks, paying participating ﬁm ‘he first mqnth of the ploogram’

vendors instead though an N

electronic payment system ®ldnmerce presented us with a revenue

backed by Visa fraud protection. S]hl 9 l'in g. eh e ck fOI‘ $22’000.u

“Through this relatively simple
change, we have greater access to
realtime data on where and how our
money is being spent,” explains Ron. - -

The system offers another benefit: ' : R I chbol Disarigr.
a revenue-sharing program. In its ;
first month using the system, in
fact, Pattonville received a $22,000
revenue share check on its purchase y ) 1
of 2,600 laptop computers. “These ' P : Hi b, rmioncial Card
revenue share dollars are extremely ~ ' £ SR ifgas vice gresigent
important in helping us fund clubs
and activities that would otherwise
take tax doellars,” says Ron. “It's one
iess dollar going out.”




A fundamental element of Commerce Bank’s super-
community strategy is the role of cur Community
Advisors. We believe that a deep understanding
and a close relationship with the communities we

serve can be achieved only when we are interwoven
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COMMUNITY ADVISORS

Missouri

BARRY COUNTY BOLIVAR CAPE GIRARDEAU CENTRAL MISSOURI
Donald Cupps John Himmel William H. Bess II Mike Alden

Ellis, Cupps & Cole Commmerce Bank, N.A. Bluff City Beer Company University of Missour!
William A. Easley, Jr. Jannis Keeling David F. Dormeyer Dan Atwill

Retived, Commerce Keeling Accounting & Prudential Bridgeport Inc., Anwill & Monigomery,
Bank, N.A. Financial Services Kealtors Attorneys

JoAnne Ellis Craig Lehman W. Cliff Ford Brent Bradshaw

Retired Educator Skelter Insurance Agency Ford & Sons Orscheln Management

John Henbest
Farmer

Phil Hutchens
Hutchens Construction
Mike McCracken
Commerce Bunk, N.A.
Eugene Mickley
Mickley and Cupps,
DVM Office

Fred $. Oshorn
Commerce Rank, N.A.

Mike Petrte
Commerce Rancshares, Inc.
Commerce Rank, N.A.

Keith Shumaker
Shumaker Tire, Inc.

Jerry Watley
Able 2 Products Co.

Robert Moreland
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Ed Peterson
Century 21-Peterson Real
Estare

Dr. C. Pat Taylor
Southeest Bapuisy Universiry

R. D. Vestal
Vestal Equipment Co., Inc.

BRANSON

Patrick Cox
Stage Park Marina

Scott Earls

The Vacation Channel

Joe Ficarra

Ficarra Asser Managemens,
Inc.

Kevin Gerard

Country Mart

John Himmel

Commerce Bank, N.A

Rob Johns
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Chris Lucchi
MG Hospirality

Funeral Home, Inc.

Alan Gregory
Gregory Constraction, Inc,

Gregg E. Hollabaugh

Commerce Bancshares, nc.

Mike Kasten
Kusten Farms

Richard R, Kennard
Coad Chevraiet, Inc.
Coud Toyota

John Layton
Layton and Southard, LLC

Todd Petzoldt
Fast Perry Lumber Company

Roger Tolliver
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Allen Toole
Cape Elecerical Supply, Inc.

Company

Morris F. Burger
Burger’s Country Cured
Hams

Brad Clay
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Joe Hartman
Rerired, Commerce
Bank, N.A.

Gregg E. Hollabaugh
Commerce Bancshares, Inc,

Ron Hopkins
Cammerce Bank, N.A.

George M. Huffman
Pearl Motor Company

Jack W. Knipp
Knipp Enserprises

Rick Kruse
Retived, Boone National
Savings & Loan Assoc.

Dr. Mike Lutz
Mike Lutz, DDS

David A. Machens
Machens Enterprises

in the fabric of the market. Local civic and business
leaders, serving as Community Advisors, provide
the insight to local needs that ensures Commerce
delivers on its promise. Following are the names

of these ambassadors within each of our markets.

Teresa Maledy
Commerce Bank, N.A,

Jim McRoberts
McRoberes Farms, Inc.
Mike Petrie

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Robert K. Pugh
MRS Textbook Iixchange

Jim Rolls
Assocrated Elecrric
Cooperative

James Schatz
Comerce Bank, N.A.

Valerie Shaw
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Steve Sowers

Cotnmerce Bank, N.A.
Col. C. R. Stribling, ITI
Missouri Military Academy
Ken Tebow

Commerce Bank, N.A.

Mel Toellner
Gold Crest Distributing
& Songbird Station

Jack Waters
Tribune Publishing Co.

Larry Webber
Webber Pharmacy

Dr. John 8. Williams
Horton Animal Hospital




Missouri Continued
EASTERN JACHKSON
COUNTY

Kevin G. Barth
Commerce Bancshares, In:.,
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Jim Denning

Discover Vision Centers

Jay E. Dorst
Commerce Bunk, N.A.

Tedd E. Gafney
Commerce Rank, N.A.

Gary Hawkins
HEMC Certificd Public
Accountants, PC

Kelly Hooker
Commmerce Bank, N.A.

Robert Hormann
Durver, fne.

Mark Martin
Moartin Properties

James Orr
Mechanical Breakdown
Protectron, Inc.

David Orscheln
Oreran, Inc. [ OIX, Tuc.

Edward . Reardon, II

Commerce Bank, N..\.

Walter Whisler
Coffelt Title
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HANNIBAL

JOPLIN

C. Todd Ahrens
Hannibal Regional Hospital

David M. Bleigh

Bleigh Construction
Company and Bleigh Ready
Mix Company

fohn C. Grossmeier
Hunnibal Regional Hospital,
Hannibal Regional
Healthcare System

Gregg E. Hollabaugh

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Jim Humphreys
Luck, Humphreys and
Associares, CFA, PC

Jerold (Jerry) W. Lee

Commerce Rank, N.A.

Lec A, Stcinman
C & 8 Companies Ine.

HARRISONVILLE

Raobert W, Atkinson
Revived
Connie Aversman

Cornmerce Hank, N

Larry Dohson
Real Estate Invectments

Elvin 8. Douglas, Ir.
Crouch, Spangler & Douglas

Juliz Hampton
Judia Hampton, CPA, PC

Martin E. [smert
Schier Plumbing

Richard Lloyd
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Scou Milner
G.R. Milner Ford

Laurence Smith

Reece & Nichols Smith Kealty

David C. Humphreys
TAMKO Roofing
Products, Inc.

Dr. Richard E. LaNear
Missourt Southern State
University

Barbara J. Majzoub

Yorktoun Properties

Fred 8. Osborn
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Mike Petrie
Commerce Bancshares, Ine.
Commerce Rank, N.A.

Peter B. Ramsour
Able Producis, Inc,

Russell G, Smith, IT
MYRUSH Futures

Investment Properties

HANSAS CITY

Kevin G. Barth
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Clay C. Blair, III
Clay Blair Serviees Corp.
Juhn O. Brown

Retived, Commerce

Bancshares, Ine.

Lee A. Derrough
Hure Midouest

Enterprises, Ine.

Earl H. Devanny, 11
Cerner Corporation

Stephen D. Dunn
J.E. Dunn Construction
Co., Inc.

Stephen Gound
Labconco Corp.

C. L. William Haw

National Farms, Inc.

Jonathan M. Kemper
Commeree Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank, N.A.

David Kiersznowski
DEMDACD

Dennis A. Mullin
Steel & Pipe Supply
Company, Inc.

Karen L. Pletz, ).I>.
Kansas Ciry Universiry of
Medicine and Binsciences

Edward [. Reardon, 11
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Jerry D. Reece
Keece & Nichols
Edward |. Schifman
Veco Holdings, LLC

Ladd M. Scaberg
Midwest Grain Products, Ine.

Charles S. Sosland
Saskand Publishing Company

Themas R. Willard
Tower Properties

Susan S. Witcher
Faultless Laundry
Company, Inc.
Hugh J. Zimmer
Zimmer Companies

LEBANON

Jerry N, Benson

Retired, Commerce

Bank, NA.

Hugh V. Corry

Hardware Eleciric &
Plumbing Supply Company
Brian Esther

Commerce Bank, N.A.

Lester M. Evans

Cattlernan

John Himmel
Commerce Bank, N'A,

Harold Storck
Cattlernan

Dan M. Waterman
CPA

POPLAR BLUFF

Bill R. Brandt
Commerce Bunk, NA.

Larry Cotrell
Butler County Coroner

Luther P. Godwin
Chaark Ridge Gulf Course

Bob Greer

fohn M. Greer Construction
Co.

Gregg E. Hollabaugh

Commerce Bancshares, ine.

James P. McLane
Mclane Livestock
Trunspors, Inc.

Samuel P. Spain
Spain Merrell & Miller

Austip Tinsley, 1V
Ozark Physical Therapy
Roger Tolliver
Commeree Bank, N.A.

Ben Traxel
Dille and Truxel, LLC




Missouri Conrinyed
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8T. LOUIS METRO

Robert J. Brown, Jr.
Robert | Brown Lamber
Company

Scott Burnham

CHIZ, BCK&W Insurunce
Services

James H. Counts

Awzorney ar Law

Richard N, DeShon
Artestan lve & Cold Storuge
Pat Dillon

Heartlund Heulth

Karen M. Graves
Civie Leader

Pete Gray
Gray Awomorive
Products Co.

William . Hurley
Sturfir/Stone Container
Corporation

Mike Petrie
Commerce Bancihares, Inc.
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Edward |. Reardon, 11
Commerce Bank, N.A.

P. Gordon Robaska
Civic Leader

Judy Sabbert
Heurtlund Foundation
Steve Schram
Agri-Laboratories, 1.td.
Bradley D. Scont

Commerce Bank, N

Emil H. Sechier
Commerce Bunk, N.A.

Charles L. Drury, Jr.
Drury Hotels

Todd Epsten
Major Brands, Inc.

Joseph Forshaw, IV
Forshaw of 81, Lowis

James G. Forsyth, 111
Mato, Inc.

Juanita Hinshaw
H & H Advisors

Danald A. Jubel

Spartan Light Metal Products

David W. Kemper
Commerce Bancshares, Inc,

Alvis J. Koller Jr.
Koller Enterprises, Inc.

Kristopher G. Kosup
Buckeve International, Inc.

Seth M. Leadbeater
Commerce Bancshures. Inc.
Commerce Bank, N.A.

John B, Morgan

Subsurface Constructors, Inc.

Victer L. Richey, Jr.
ESCO Technologies, Inc.

Jerome M. Rubenstein
Bryan Cave, LILP

Steven F. Schankman
Contemporary Productions,
LLC

James E. Schiele

St Lowis Screw & Bolt Co.

John {Jack) A. Schreiber

Commerce Bank, N.A.

20

Gregory B. Vatterott
Charles F. Vaneron
Construction Company

Earl E. Walker
Carr Lane Mannfaciwsing
Co.

Kelvin R. Westhrook
KRW Advisors, LLC

8T. LOUIS
METRO EAST

William Courtney
Helitech Congrete and

Structere
David Embry
C-Mac

Moena Haberer
Hortica

Scot Lively
Ganim, Meder, Childers &
Hoering, PC.

James Rauckman
Rawckman High Volape
Sales, LL.C

Dr. James T. Roshorg
McKendree College

Garry Rueter

Greensfelder, Hembker & Gale

Terry W. Schaefer
Retired, Commerce

Bunk, N.i.

Dr. Ed Szewczyk
Eve Physicans & Surgeons
of Belleeille

8T. LOUIS
CENTRAL/NORTH

Cyrus Blackmore
Blackmore & Giune, Inc.
Herbert (Herb) S, Jones
Messenger Printing &
Publishing, Inc,

Stephen Mattis

Aliied Induitrial

Fyuipment Corporation

Lisa ). McLaughlin
Polsinelli Shaliom Flanigan
Suelthans PC

Richard C. Mueller, Jr.
Bopp Funerul Chapel

Howard Nimmons
Heward A. Nimmuons
CPA, PC

Carl A. Rausch
Retired

Greg W. Schmittgens
Humes & Buarringron, LI.P

Don Zykan
Zykan Propertics

8T. LOUIS SOUTH

Dr. Maria C. Albane

" Physician

Michuel D. Allen
Rock Community Fire
District

Phillip }. Amaro
Lawillard

Thomas E, Muzzey
e Call Conervere
Construction, T

Louis J. Naeger
Louis . Naeger & Assoctares
Lee Thurman

Thurman, Shinn
and Compuny

ST. LOUIS WEST

Richard K. Brunk
Attorney at Law

James N. Foster
McMahon, Berger, Hanng,
Linthan, Cody & McCarthy,
PC

Jack Hoffmann

Milestone Solutions

Richard E. Hrabko
lambert St. Louis
International Airport
Stuart Krawll

Beam of $1. Louis, Inc.
Howard M. Rosen
Conner Ash, PC.
Jim Shubert
Shubert Design
Lawrence ], Siegel
Hochschild, Bloom
& Co., LLP

Bill Voss
American Family Insurance
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ST. LOUIS EAST SPRINGFIELD
Tine DiFranco Roger Campbell, Jr.
Tropicana Bowling Lares Campbell Ford-Mercury, Inc.

I. L. (Juggie) Hinduja
Sinclair Industries, Inc.
Myron I. Klevens
Organizational Development
Srrategies

Patrick N. Lawlor
Lawlor Corporation

McGraw Milhaven
Talk Shour Host - KTRS

Dennis Scharf
Scharf Tax Services

Richard C. Ward
Zimmer Real Futate Services,

L.C/ONCOR International

ST. CHARLES
COUNTY

Brian Bredensteiner
Bredensteiner & Associates,

PC.

Sherlyn Hailstone
SSM St. Joseph Health Center

John M. McGuire
St Charles
Community College

Peter J. Mihelich, Ir.
Goellner Promotions

Duane A. Mucller

Cissell Mueller Construction
Company

Tarlton J. Pitman

Pitman Funeral Flome, Inc.
David Ross

Barnes-fewtsh St. Peters
Hospital

William J. Zollmann, [I1
Atrorney ar Law

Kenneth L. Carter
Rankin Comparty
John Cox

Commerce Bank, N.A.
Lester B, Cox
Modern Tractor &
Supply Co.

Steve Eoff
D & E Plumbing & Heating

Karen Garwitz
Hoffman Supply Company
Joe C. Greene

Husch & Eppenberger, LLP

Bunch Greenwade
G & H Contractors,
LLC ! Rancher

Robert A.
Hammerschmidt, Jr.
Commerce Bunk, N.A,

John Himmel
Commerce Bunk, N.A,

Seth M, Leadbeater
Commerce Buneshares, Inc.

Commerce Bank, N.A.
Mary Kay Meck
Try-Meek, Inc.

Alvin D. Meeker
Retired, Commerce
Bank, N.A,

James E Moore
Investments

Robert B. Murray, Jr.
R. B. Murray Company

Keith Noble
Commerce Bank, N.A,

Richard Ollis
Qs & Compuny Insurcrs

Mike Petric
Commerce Bancshares, Ine.
Commerce Bank, N.A.

B. Glenn Robinson
Grand Country Square
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Kansas

BUTLER COUNTY
(EL DORADO)

Eugene 5. Adams
Retired

Ray L. Connell
Connell & Connell

Mark Utech
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Dr. Jackie Vietti
Butler Community College

COLUMEBUS

Jay Harficld
Jay Hatfield Chevrolet

Wesley C. Houser
Retired, Commerce
Bunk, N.A.

Don Kirk

H & K Campers
Charles Norris

Investments

Fred 8, Osharn
Cornmerce Bank, N.A

Mike Petrie
Commerce Bancshares, Tnc,
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Jane Rhinchan
Commerce fank, N.A,

Durrel Shumake
Arrorney ar Lasw

GARDEN CITY

Richard Harp
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Caverly Hart
The Finnup Foundation

Dr. Gloria Hopkins
Fry Fye Associates

Dennis Kleystieuber
Kieysteuber-Gillen Inc.

Dr. Tom Koksal
Plaza Medical

Dr. Grant Larkin
Grane Larkin, DDS

Stewart Nelson
GMCN Architects

Mike Petric
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Lee Reeve
Reeve Carrle Company

Itzel Rodriguez
Garden City Community
College

Patrick Rooney
Rooney Agri Business
Adam E Steven

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Pat Sullivan
Sullivan Analytical
Service, Inc.

Bob Tempel
WindRiver Grain, LLC

Craig Wheeler
Commerce Bank, N.A.

HAYS

James W, Aubel
A & A Coors

D. G. Bickle, Jr.
Warehowse, Inc.

Kenneth Havner
Favner & Brin

Ken Johnson
Ketired

Gail Kuehl

Kreehl Operarions
Earnest A. Lehman
Midswest Energy, lne,
Mike Petrie

Commerce Buncshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Adam F, Steven
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Themas L. Thomas
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Vance Westhusin
Midland Markering
Co-op, Inc.

INDEFENDENCE

]. Dan Carroll
Yerkes & Michels CPA, 1LLC

John E. Heckman
Heckman & Assoctates

James P. Kelly
Commerce Bank, N.A.
William L. (Larry)
O'Malley

O'Malley Equipment
Company

Fred 8. Osborn
Commerce Bank, N.A.

William M. (Marty)
Reichenberger

Green Thumé
Greenhowse, Ine.

Paul H. Viets
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Julie L. Voelker
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Raymond H. Woods
Woods Lumber Cornpany

JOHNSON COUNTY

Kevin G. Barth
Commerce Bancshases, Inc.
Commerce Rank, N.A.

Thomas P. Carrico
Gill Studios Inc.

Robent Choun
Metro Air Conditioning Co.

Gordon Docking
St. Joseph Medical Center

Isak Federman
F&G Capital Management

William Ferguson
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Todd E. Gafney
Commerce Bank, N.A.




Kansas Continued
Lance W. Hart
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Chris Herre

Rose Construction Co., Inc.

Pat Olney
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Greg Prieb
Greg Prieh Homes, Inc.

Edward ]. Reardon, II
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Thomas K. Rogge
Cramer Products

Daniel E. Sight
Sight Commercaal
Realry, Inc.

LAWRENCE

John W. Brand, Jr.
Stevers & Brand, LILP
Martin B. Dickinson, Jr.
Schroeder Professor of Law,
University of Kansas

Sidney A. Garrent
Brown Cargo Van, Inc.

Mark Heider
Comrmerce Rank, N.A.

Evan lce

Stephens & Brund, LLP
Martin W. Moore
Advanco, Inc.

Kevin J. O'Malley
O’'Malley Beverages of
Kansas, Ine.
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Edward J. Reardon, Il
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Michael Treanor
Treanor Architects, BA.

LEAVENWORTH

J. $anford Bushman
DeMaranville & Kramer
CPAs, LILC

Norman B. Dawson
Retired, Commerce
Bancshares, Inc.

Sherry DeMaranville
DeMarancille and
Associates

Mark Denney
[.E Denncy Plumbing
& Heating

Thoemas A. Dials
Presidens, Armed Forces
Insurance Exchange

David A. Greenamyre
Besel Heating & Roofing

Stephen J. Kempf
Retired, Armed Forces

Insurance Exchange

Lawrence W. O'Donrell, Jr.

Lawrence W. O'Donnell, Jr,
CPA Chartered

Bill Petrie
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Edward J. Rearden, I1
Commeree Bank, N.A.

Robert D. Schmitt, IT
Muma Mias Inc.
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MANHATTAN

PITTSBEURG

Dr. Yar Ebadi
Kansas State University

Tom Giller
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Neal Helmick
Grifftth Lumber Co.

Rich Jankovich
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Mike Petric

Commerce Baneshares, Inc,

Commerce Bank, N.A.

Dr. Roger P. Reitz
Medical Assaciates of
Manhattan

Adam F. Steven
Cammerce Bancshares, Inc.

Eleanor (. Stolzer
Griffith Lumber Co.

L. W. Stolzer
Griffieh Lumber Co.

John Walters
Walters Morgan
Constrtection, Inc.

Roy Worthington
Charlson & Wilson
Bonded Abstracters

Jumes L. Belew
Tnvestments

Dr. Thomas W. Bryant
Priessburg State University

Harvey R, Dean
Pitsco, Inc.

Joe Dellasega
{18, Awards
Adam Endicort
Unique Metal
Fabricarion, Inc.

C. L. Farabi
Pepsi-Cola Bottling
Company of Pitesburg, Inc.

Roberta A. McNay
Investments

Mike Petrie
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Ronald L. Rhodes
Rhodes Grocery, Inc.

Steve W, Sloan
Midwest Minerals, Inc,
Brian Sutton
Commerce Bank, N.A
Judith A, Westhoff

Retired, Commerce
Bunk, N.A.

Woendell L. Wilkinson
Commerce Bank, N.A.

RENO COUNTY
(HUTCHINSON)

Vergi Geurian
Pipeline Testing

Consortium, Inc.

Brett Mattison

Decker & Mattison Company

Dr. Pamela D. Pierce
Reno Pathology
Associates, PA.

Mike Ringwald
Farmer (Ellinwood, Kan.)

Jon H. Searks
Commerce Bank, N.A.

WICHITA

Stanley R. Ahlerich
Rancher ! Farming

Dr. Donald Beggs
Wichira Seate Unizersizy

Michael P. Brown
College Hill OB/GYN

Michael E. Bukaty
Latshaus Enterprases, fne.

Jehn C. Clevenger
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Monte A. Cook
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Themas E. Dondlinger
Dondlinger & Sons
Construction Co., Inc.

James A. Harris
Commerce Bank, N.A.




# Kanius Comtinted
Stephen Hayes
The Hayes Company, Irc.

Ronald W. Holt
Sedgevick County

Fran D. Jabara

Jabara Vemtures Group

Paul D. Jackson

Vantage Point Properties, Inc.
Tem J. Kemp

Kemp Construction, Inc.
Scth M. Leadbeater

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Douglas D, Neff
Commerce Bunk, N.A.

Derck L. Park
Sandcastle Managemen:

Marilyn B. Panly
Commerce Bank, N.A.
Mikc Petric

Commerce Baneshares, fne.

Commerce Bank, N.A.
Barry L. Schwan
House of Schwwan, Inc.
Clifford W, Stone

Stone Farms

Thomas D). White
White & Ellis Drilling, Inc.
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Illinois
BLOOMINGTON-
NORMAL

Dr. Al Bowman
Minols Sute University

Julie Dobski
Little Jeswels Learning Center
MeDonald’s

George Farnsworth
Retired

Robert Fleming
Fleming Law Office
Ron Greene

AFNT, Inc.

Gregg E. Hollabaugh
Commerce Bancshares, inc.

Parker Kemp

Kemp Farms, Inc.
Robert Lakin
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Scth M. Leadbeater
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Richard Lenahan
Retired

Dennis Myers
Myers, Inc.

Eugene Striegel
Striegel, Knobloch & Co.
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Oklahoma

CHAMPAIGN-URBANA FPEORIA TULBA

Mark Arends Bruce Alkirc Steven H. Austin

Arends Brothers, fnc. Coldwell Banker Commercial Commerce Bank, N.A.
Devonshire Realty

Dana Brenner
University of Hlinois at
Champaign Urbana

Gregg E. Hollabaugh
Commerce Hancshares, Inc,

Robert Lakin

Commerce Bank, N.A.

Kim Martin
Martin, Hood, Friese &
Assoctates, L.1..C.

Roger Rhodes
Horizon Hobby, Inc.

Terry Snyder
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Daniel Altorfer
United Fucslities, Inc.

Afton Booth
The Unland Compunies

Brent Kichelberger
Cormmerce Bank, N.A.

Lowell {Bud) Grieves
Mark Tuain Horels

Gregg E. Hollabaugh
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Robert Lakin
Commeree Bank, N.A..
Seth M. Leadbeater

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Commerce Bank, N.A

Stuart L. Levenick
Caterpillar, Inc.

Dr. James Maxey
Great Plains Orthopaedics

Timothy Shea
Peorta Budders

Jan Wright-Vergon
Cenral Hlinois Business
Publishers, Inc.

Wevyle R. Cable

First National Bank of
Ckrmulgee

James D. Dunn

Ml Creek Lumber

Jeffery W, Davis
U.S. Beef Corporation

R. Carl Hudgins
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Bruce C. Humphrey
Commerce Bank, N.A.

Ken Lackey
The Nordam Group, Inc.

Richard J. Lehrter
Commerce Bank, NA.

Dr. George S. Mauerman
Eastern Okluhoma Orthopedic
Center, Inc.

D. Lindsay Perkins
Lindsay Developmen: LLC

John Turner
First Stuart Corporasion

Daryl Weodard
Woodard Technology &

Investment



Officers

David W. Kemper
Chairman of the Board,

Precident and Chief Execurive
Offcer

Jonathan M. Kemper
Vice Chairman

Scth M. Leadbeater
Vice Chairman

Directors

Jehn K. Capps”™

President and Chief Executive
Officer, Plaza Moior
Company

W. Thomas Grant, 11
Consultant, (Juest Liagnosties

James B, Hebenstreit®
President, Rartlett and
Company
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A. Bayard Clark, 11T
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Kevin G, Barth
Executive Vice President

Charles G. Kim
Executive Vice President

David W, Kemper
Chairran of the Board,
President and Chief Executive
Officer, Commerce
Haneshares, Inc.

Jonathan M. Kemper
Vice Chairman, Commerce
Bancshares, Inc.
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Robert C. Matthews, Jr.
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V. Raymond Stranghoener
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Sara E. Foster
Sentar Vice President

Thomas A. McDonnell*
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Officer, DST Systems, Inc.
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President, Meek Lumber
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President, Paulo Products
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Michael J. Petrie

Senior Vice President
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The World Company

Andrew C. Taylor
Chatrman and Chicf
Executive Officer, Enterprise
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Washington Universiry in
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PART 1

Item 1. BUSINESS

General

Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”), a bank holding company as defined in the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956, as amended, was incorporated under the laws of Missouri on August 4, 1966. The
Company presently owns all of the outstanding capital stock of three national banking associations, which
are headquartered in Missouri (the “Missouri bank”), Kansas (the “Kansas bank”), and Nebraska (the
“Nebraska bank”). The Nebraska bank is limited in its activities to the issuance of credit cards. The
remaining two banking subsidiaries engage in general banking business, providing a broad range of retail,
corporate, investment, trust, and asset management products and services to individuals and businesses.
The Company also owns, directly or through its banking subsidiaries, various non-banking subsidiaries.
Thetr activities include underwriting credit life and credit accident and health insurance, selling property
and casualty insurance (relating to consumer loans made by the banking subsidiaries), venture capital
investment, securities brokerage, mortgage banking, and leasing activities. The Company owns a second tier
holding company that is the direct owner of both the Missouri and Kansas banks. A list of the Company’s
subsidiartes is included as Exhibit 21.

The Company is one of the nation’s top 50 domestic bank holding companies, based on asset size. At
December 31, 2007, the Company had consolidated assets of $16.2 billion, loans of $10.8 billion, deposits of
$12.6 billion, and stockholders’ equity of $1.5 billion. All of the Company’s operations conducted by subsid-
iaries are consolidated for purposes of preparing the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The
Company does not utilize unconsolidated subsidiaries or special purpose entities to provide off-balance sheet
borrowings or securitizations.

The Company’s goal is to be the preferred provider of targeted financial services in its communities,
based on strong customer relationships. It believes in building long-term relationships based on top quality
service, high ethical standards and safe, sound assets. The Company operates under a super-community
banking format with a local orientation, augmented by experienced, centralized support in select critical
areas. The Company’s local market orientation is reflected in its financial centers and regional advisory
boards, which are comprised of local business persons, professionals and other community representatives,
that assist the Company in responding to local banking needs. In addition to this local market, community-
based focus, the Company offers sophisticated financial products available at much larger financial
institutions.

The Missouri bank is the Company’s largest, with total assets of $14.7 billion and comprising approx-
imately 92% of the Company’s total banking assets. The bank’s facilities are located throughout Missouri,
eastern Kansas, and central Illinois, with new locations in Tulsa, Oklahoma and Denver, Colorado. Its two
largest markets include St. Louis and Kansas City, which serve as the central hubs for the entire company.
The Kansas bank has total assets of $1.3 billion. It has significant operations and banking facilities in the
areas of Wichita, Hays, Hutchinson, and Garden City, Kansas.

The markets these banks serve, being located in the lower Midwest, provide natural sites for production
and distribution facilities and also serve as transportation hubs. The economy has been well-diversified in
these markets with many major industries represented, including telecommunications, automobile, aircraft
and general manufacturing, health care, numerous service industries, food production, and agricultural
production and related industries. In addition, several of the Illinois markets are located in areas with some
of the most productive farmland in the world. The banks operate in real estate markets that tend to be less
volatile than in other parts of the country.

The Company regularly evaluates the potential acquisition of, and holds discussions with, various
financial institutions eligible for bank holding company ownership or control. In addition, the Company
regularly considers the potential disposition of certain of its assets and branches. The Company seeks merger
or acquisition partners that are culturally similar and have experienced management and possess either
significant market presence or have potential for improved profitability through financial management,
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economies of scale and expanded services. During 2007 the Company completed two acquisitions; acquiring
the outstanding stock of South Tulsa Financial Corporation, located in Tulsa, Oklahoma, and Commerce
Bank, located in Denver, Colorado. The Company alse completed two acquisitions in 2006; a purchase and
assumption transaction with Boone National Savings and Loan Association in Columbia, Missouri, and the
acquisition of the outstanding stock of West Pointe Bancorp, Inc. in Belleville, Illinois. For additional
information on acquisition and branch disposition activity, refer to pages 16 and 66.

Operating Segments

The Company is managed in three operating segments. The Consumer segment includes the retail
branch network, consumer installment lending, personal mortgage banking, bank card activities, student
lending, and discount brokerage services. It provides services through a network of 210 full-service branches,
a widespread ATM network of 392 machines, and the use of alternative delivery channels such as extensive
online banking and telephone banking services. In 2007 this retail segment contributed 57% of total segment
pre-tax income. The Commercial segment, provides a full array of corporate lending, leasing, and interna-
tional services, as well as business and government deposit and cash management services. In 2007 it
contributed 34% of total segment pre-tax income. The Money Management segment provides traditional
trust and estate tax planning services, and advisory and discretionary investment portfolio management
services to both personal and institutional corporate customers. This segment also manages the Company’s
family of proprietary mutual funds, which are available for sale to both trust and general retail customers.
Fixed income investments are sold to individuals and institutional investors through the Capital Markets
group, which is also included in this segment. At December 31, 2007 the Money Management segment
managed investments with a market value of $12.5 billion and administered an additional $10.2 billion in
non-managed assets. Additional information relating to operating segments can be found on pages 44 and 85.

Supervision and Regulation
General

The Company, as a bank holding company, is primarily regulated by the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (BHC Act). Under the BHC Act, the
Federal Reserve Board’s prior approval is required in any case in which the Company proposes to acquire all
or substantially all of the assets of any bank, acquire direct or indirect ownership or control of more than 5%
of the voting shares of any bank, or merge or consolidate with any other bank holding company. The BHC Act
also prohibits, with certain exceptions, the Company from acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of
more than 5% of any class of voting shares of any non-banking company. Under the BHC Act, the Company
may not engage in any business other than managing and controlling banks or furnishing certain specified
services to subsidiaries and may not acquire voting control of non-banking companies unless the Federal
Reserve Board determines such businesses and services to be closely related to banking. When reviewing
bank acquisition applications for approval, the Federal Reserve Board considers, among other things, each
subsidiary bank’s record in meeting the credit needs of the communities it serves in accordance with the
Community Reinvestment Act of 1977, as amended (CRA). The Missouri, Kansas and Nebraska bank
charters have current CRA ratings of “outstanding”.

The Company is required to file with the Federal Reserve Board various reports and such additional
information as the Federal Reserve Board may require. The Federal Reserve Board also makes regular
examinations of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Company’s three banking subsidiaries are organized
as national banking associations and are subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Office of
the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC). All banks are also subject to regulation by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC). In addition, there are numerous other federal and state laws and regulations
which control the activities of the Company and its banking subsidiaries, including requirements and
limitations relating to capital and reserve requirements, permissible investments and lines of business,
transactions with affiliates, loan limits, mergers and acquisitions, issuance of securities, dividend payments,
and extensions of credit. If the Company fails to comply with these or other applicable laws and regulations, it
may be subject to civil monetary penalties, imposition of cease and desist orders or other written directives,
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removal of management and, in certain circumstances, criminal penalties. This regulatory framework is
intended primarily for the protection of depositors and the preservation of the federal deposit insurance
funds, and not for the protection of security holders. Statutory and regulatory controls increase a bank
holding company’s cost of doing business and limit the options of its management to employ assets and
maximize income,

In addition to its regulatory powers, the Federal Reserve impacts the conditions under which the
Company operates by its influence over the national supply of bank credit. The Federal Reserve Board
employs open market operations in U.S. government securities, changes in the discount rate on bank
borrowings, changes in the federal funds rate on overnight inter-bank borrowings, and changes in reserve
requirements on bank deposits in implementing its monetary policy objectives. These instruments are used
in varying combinations to influence the overall level of the interest rates charged on loans and paid for
deposits, the price of the dollar in foreign exchange markets and the level of inflation. The monetary policies
of the Federal Reserve have a significant effect on the operating results of financial institutions, most notably
on the interest rate environment. In view of changing conditions in the national economy and in the money
markets, as well as the effect of credit policies of monetary and fiscal authorities, no prediction can be made as
to possible future changes in interest rates, deposit levels or loan demand, or their effect on the financial
statements of the Company.

Subsidiary Banks

Under Federal Reserve policy, the Company is expected to act as a source of financial strength to each of
its bank subsidiaries and to commit resources to support each bank subsidiary in circumstances when it
might not otherwise do so. In addition, any capital loans by a bank holding company to any of its subsidiary
banks are subordinate in right of payment to deposits and to certain other indebtedness of such subsidiary
banks. In the event of a bank holding company’s bankruptey, any commitment by the bank holding company
to a federal bank regulatory agency to maintain the capital of a subsidiary bank will be assumed by the
bankruptcy trustee and entitled to a priority of payment.

Substantially all of the deposits of the Company’s subsidiary banks are insured up to the applicable
limits by the Bank Insurance Fund of the FDIC, generally up to $100,000 per insured depositor and up to
$250,000 for retirement accounts. The banks pay deposit insurance premiums to the FDIC based on an
assessment rate established by the FDIC for Bank Insurance Fund member institutions. The FDIC has
established a risk-based assessment system under which institutions are classified and pay premiums
according to their perceived risk to the federal deposit insurance funds. The FDIC is not required to charge
deposit insurance premiums when the ratio of deposit insurance reserves to insured deposits is maintained
above specified levels. For several years, the ratio was above the minimum level and, accordingly, the
Company was not required to pay premiums. However, in 2006, legislation was passed reforming the bank
deposit insurance system. The reform act allowed the FDIC to raise the minimum reserve ratio and allowed
eligible insured institutions an initial one-time credit to be used against premiums due. As a result, in
subsequent years the Company will be assessed insurance premiums, which in years 2007 and 2008 may be
partly or totally offset by the one-time credit. The Company’s one-time credit is approximately $12 million.
During 2007, approximately $6 million of that credit was used, leaving a balance remaining of approximately
$6 million.

Payment of Dividends

The principal source of the Company’s cash revenues is dividends from the subsidiary banks. The
Federal Reserve Board may prohibit the payment of dividends by bank holding companies if their actions
constitute unsafe or unsound practices. The OCC limits the payment of dividends by bank subsidiaries in any
calendar year to the net profit of the current year combined with the retained net profits of the preceding two
years. Permission must be obtained from the OCC for dividends exceeding these amounts. The payment of
dividends by the bank subsidiaries may also be affected by factors such as the maintenance of adequate
capital.




Capital Adequacy

The Company is required to comply with the capital adequacy standards established by the Federal
Reserve. These capital adequacy guidelines generally require bank holding companies to maintain total
capital equal to 8% of total risk-adjusted assets and off-balance sheet items (the “Total Risk-Based Capital
Ratio”), with at least one-half of that amount consisting of Tier I, or core capital, and the remaining amount
consisting of Tier I1, or supplementary capital. Tier I capital for bank holding companies generally consists of
the sum of common shareholders’ equity, qualifying non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock, a limited
amount of qualifying cumulative perpetual preferred stock and minority interests in the equity accounts of
consolidated subsidiaries, less goodwill and other non-qualifying intangible assets. Tier II capital generally
consists of hybrid capital instruments, term subordinated debt and, subject to limitations, general allowances
for loan losses. Assets are adjusted under the risk-based guidelines to take into account different risk
characteristics.

In addition, the Federal Reserve also requires bank holding companies to comply with minimum
leverage ratio requirements. The leverage ratio is the ratio of a banking organization’s Tier I capital to
its total consolidated quarterly average assets (as defined for regulatory purposes}, net of the allowance for
loan losses, goodwill and certain other intangible assets. The minimum leverage ratio for bank holding
companies is 4%, At December 31, 2007 all of the subsidiary banks were “well-capitalized” under regulatory
capital adequacy standards, as further discussed on page 89.

Legislation

These laws and regulations are under constant review by various agencies and legislatures, and are
subject to sweeping change. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Financial Modernization Act of 1999 (GLB Act)
contained major changes in laws that previously kept the banking industry largely separate from the
securities and insurance industries. The GLB Act authorized the creation of a new kind of financial
institution, known as a “financial holding company” and a new kind of bank subsidiary called a “financial
subsidiary”, which may engage in a broader range of investment banking, insurance agency, brokerage, and
underwriting activities. The GLB Act also included privacy provisions that limit banks’ abilities to disclose
non-public information about customers to non-affiliated entities. Banking organizations are not required to
become financial helding companies, but instead may continue to operate as bank holding companies,
providing the same services they were authorized to provide prior to the enactment of the GLB Act.

In 2001, the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept
and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (The “USA Patriot Act”) was signed into law. The USA Patriot Act
substantially broadened the scope of U.S. anti-meney laundering laws and regulations by imposing signif-
icant new compliance and due diligence obligations, creating new crimes and penalties and expanding the
extra-territorial jurisdiction of the United States. The U.S. Treasury Department issned a number of
regulations implementing the USA Patriot Act that apply certain of its requirements to financial institutions
such as the Company’s broker-dealer subsidiary. The regulations impose new obligations on finaneial
institutions to maintain appropriate policies, procedures and controls to detect, prevent and report money
laundering and terrorist financing.

Competition

The Company’s locations in regional markets throughout Missouri, Kansas and central Illinois face
intense competition from hundreds of financial service providers. The Company competes with national and
state banks for deposits, loans and trust accounts, and with savings and loan associations and credit unions
for deposits and consumer lending products. In addition, the Company competes with other financial
intermediaries such as securities brokers and dealers, personal loan companies, insurance companies,
finance companies, and certain governmental agencies. The passage of the GLB Act, which removed barriers
between banking and the securities and insurance industries, has resulted in greater competition among
these industries. The Company generally competes on the basis of customer services and responsiveness to
customer needs, interest rates on loans and deposits, lending limits and customer convenience, such as
location of offices.




Employees

The Company and its subsidiaries employed 4,520 persons on a full-time basis and 670 persons on a part-
time basis at December 31, 2007. The Company provides a variety of benefit programs including a 401K plan
as well as group life, health, accident, and other insurance. The Company also maintains training and
educational programs designed to prepare employees for positions of increasing responsibility.

Available Information

The Company’s principal offices are located at 1000 Walnut, Kansas City, Missouri (telephone number
816-234-2000)}. The Company makes available free: of charge, through its web site at www.commercebank.-
com, reports filed with the Securities and Exchangvn Commission as soon as reasonably practicable after the
electronic filing. These filings include the annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendmentg to those reports.

Statistical Disclosure

The information required by Securities Act Giiide 3 — “Statistical Disclosure by Bank Holding Compa-
nies” i8 located on the pages noted below.

Page
I. Distribution of Assets, Liabilities and Stockholders’
Equity; Interest Rates and Interést Differential ... ... 19, 52-55
II. InvestmentPortfolio .............. ... ... 34-36, 69-72
III. Loan Portfolio
Typesofloans................ e 25
Maturities and Sensitivities of Loans to Changes in
Interest Rates. ............. ... ... ... ... ...... 25
RiskElements .............. .. .. iiiiirnnan. 31-34
IV. Summary of Loan Loss Experience . ................. 29-31
V. Deposits .........ooonunenn... P 52-53, 74
V. ReturnonEquityand Assets....................... 14
VII. Short-Term Borrowings .. ................. o, 75-76

Item la. RISK FACTORS

Making or continuing an investment in securities issued by Commerce Bancshares, Inc., including our
common stock, involves certain risks that you ghould carefully consider. The risks and uncertainties
described below are not the only risks that may have a material adverse effect on the Company. Additional
risks and uncertainties also could adversely affect our business and our results. If any of the following risks
actually occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be negatively affected, the
market price for your securities could decline, and vou could lose all or a part of your investment. Further, to
the extent that any of the information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K constitutes forward-
looking statements, the risk factors set forth below also are cautionary statements identifying important
factors that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any
forward-looking statements made by or on behalf 5f Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

The performance of the Company is dependént on the economic conditions of the markets in
which the Company operates.

The Company’s success is heavily influenced by the general economic conditions of the states of Missouri,
Kansas and central Illinois and the specific local markets in which the Company operates. Unlike larger
national or other regional banks that are more gengraphically diversified, the Company provides banking
and financial services to customers in such metropolitan areas as Kansas City, St. Louis, and Springfield in

i 7




Missouri, Peoria and Bloomington in Illinois, and Wichita, Kansas. Since the Company does not have
significant presence in other parts of the country, a prolonged economic downturn in these markets could
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

The Company is subject to Interest Rate Risk.

The Company’s net interest income is the largest source of overall revenue to the Company, representing
59% of total revenue. Interest rates are beyond the Company’s control, and they fluctuate in response to
general economic conditions and the policies of various governmental and regulatory agencies, in particular,
the Federal Reserve Board. Changes in monetary policy, including changes in interest rates, will influence
the origination of loans, the purchase of investments, the generation of deposits, and the rates received on
loans and investment securities and paid on deposits. Management believes it has implemented effective
asset and liability management strategies to reduce the potential effects of changes in interest rates on the
Company's results of operations. However, any substantial, unexpected, prolonged change in market interest
rates could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

The Company operates in a highly competitive industry and market area.

The Company operates in the financial services industry, a rapidly changing environment having
numerous competitors including other banks and insurance companies, securities dealers, brokers, trust
and investment companies and mortgage bankers. The pace of consolidation among financial service
providers is accelerating and there are many new changes in technology, product offerings and regulation.
New entrants offering competitive products continually penetrate our markets. The Company must continue
to make investments in its products and delivery systems to stay competitive with the industry as a whole or
its financial performance may suffer.

Potential future loan losses could increase.

The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses that represents management’s best estimate of
probable losses that have been incurred at the balance sheet date within the existing portfolio of loans. The
level of the allowance reflects management'’s continuing evaluation of industry concentrations, specific credit
risks, loan loss experience, current loan portfolio quality, present economic, political and regulatory condi-
tions and unidentified losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. Over the past few years, historical losses
have been low and the Company’s credit loss ratios have been below industry averages, in part due to the low
level of commmercial loan losses. Also, while the industry has experienced low levels of loan losses for several
years, loan losses on residential construction and consumer loans have risen, especially in the second half of
2007. Much of this relates to the effects of the subprime lending issues and a general housing slowdown
creating an uncertain economic outlook. If the recent trend is prolonged and losses continue to increase, the
Company’s results of operations could be negatively impacted by higher loan losses in the future. See the
section captioned “Allowance for Loan Losses” in Item 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations located elsewhere in this report for further discussion related to the
Company’s process for determining the appropriate level of the allowance for possible loan loss.

The Company’s reputation and future growth prospects could be impaired if events occurred
which breached our customers’ privacy.

The Company relies heavily on communications and information systems to conduct its business, and as
part of our business we maintain significant amounts of data about our customers and the products they use.
While the Company has policies and procedures designed to prevent or limit the effect of failure, interruption
or security breach of its information systems, there can be no assurances that any such failures, interruptions
or security breaches will not occur, or if they do occur, that they will be adequately addressed. Should any of
these systems become compromised, the reputation of the Company could be damaged, relationships with
existing customers impaired and result in lost business and incur significant expenses trying to remedy the
compromise.




The Company may not attract and retain skilled employees.

The Company’s success depends, in large part, on its ability to attract and retain key people. Competition
for the best people in most activities engaged in by the Company can be intense, and the Company spends
considerable time and resources attracting and hiring qualified people for its various business lines and
support units. The unexpected loss of the services of one or more the Company’s key personnel could have a
material adverse impact on the Company’s business because of their skills, knowledge of the Company’s
market, years of industry experience, and the difficulty of promptly finding qualified replacement personnel.

Item 1b. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

Item 2. PROPERTIES

The bank subsidiaries maintain their main offices in various multi-story office buildings. The Missouri
bank owns its main offices and leases unoccupied premises to the public. The larger offices include:

Net rentable % occupied % occupied

Building square footage in total by bank

922 Walnut 256,000 95% 93%
Kansas City, MO

1000 Walnut 403,000 84 34
Kansas City, MO

811 Main 237,000 100 100
Kansas City, MO

8000 Forsyth 178,000 95 92
Clayton, MO

1551 N. Waterfront

Pkwy 120,000 - 98 32
Wichita, KS

The Nebraska credit card bank leases its offices in Omaha, Nebraska. Additionally, certain other
installment loan, trust and safe deposit functions operate out of leased offices in downtown Kansas City.
The Company has an additional 204 branch locations in Missouri, Illinois, Kansas, Oklahoma and Colorado
which are owned or leased, and 144 off-site ATM locations.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information required by this item is set forth in Item 8 under Note 18, Commitments, Contingencies
and Guarantees on page 93.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TQ A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted during the fourth quarter of 2007 to a vote of security holders through the
solicitation of proxies or otherwise.




Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following are the executive officers of the Company, each of whom is designated annually, and there
are no arrangements or understandings between any of the persons so named and any other person pursuant
to which such person was designated an executive officer.

Name and Age

Positions with Registrant

Jeffery D. Aberdeen, 54

Kevin G. Barth, 47

A. Bayard Clark, 62

Sara E. Foster, 47

David W. Kemper, 57

Jonathan M. Kemper, 54

Charles G. Kim, 47

Seth M. Leadbeater, 57

Controller of the Company since December 1995. Prior thereto he
was Assistant Controller of the Company. He is Controller of the
Company’s subsidiary banks, Commerce Bank, N.A. (Missouri,
Kansas and Omaha).

Executive Vice President of the Company since April 2005 and
Executive Vice President of Commerce Bank, N A, (Missouri}, since
October 1998. Senior Vice President of the Company and Officer of
Commerce Bank, N.A. (Missouri) prior thereto.

Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President of the
Company since December 1995. Executive Vice President of the
Company prior thereto. Treasurer of the Company from December
1995 until February 2007.

Senior Vice President of the Company since February 1998 and Vice
President of the Company prior therete.

Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company since November
1991, Chief Executive Officer of the Company since June 1986, and
President of the Company since April 1982. He is Chairman of the
Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of Commerce Bank,
N.A, (Missouri). He is the son of James M. Kemper, Jr. (a former
Director and former Chairman of the Board of the Company) and
the brother of Jonathan M. Kemper, Vice Chairman of the Company.

Vice Chairman of the Company since November 1991 and Vice
Chairman of Commerce Bank, N.A. (Missouri) since December 1997.
Prior thereto, he wag Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer, and President of Commerce Bank, N.A. (Missouri). He is the
son of James M. Kemper, Jr. {(a former Director and former
Chairman of the Board of the Company) and the brother of David
W. Kemper, Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

Executive Vice President of the Company since April 1995 and
Executive Vice President of Commerce Bank, N.A. (Missouri) since
January 2004. Prior thereto, he was Senior Vice President of
Commerce Bank, N.A. (Clayton, MO), a former subsidiary of the
Company.

Vice Chairman of the Company since January 2004. Prior thereto he
was Executive Vice President of the Company. He has been Vice
Chairman of Commerce Bank, N.A. (Missouri) since September
2004. Prior thereto he was Executive Vice President of Commerce
Bank, N.A. (Missouri) and President of Commerce Bank, N.A.
(Clayton, MO),
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Name and Age Positions with Registrant

Robert C. Matthews, Jr., 60 Executive Vice President of the Company since December 1989.
Executive Vice President of Commerce Bank, N.A. (Missouri) since

December 1997,

Michael J. Petrie, 51 Senior Vice President of the Company since April 1995. Prior
thereto, he was Vice President of the Company.

Robert J. Rauscher, 50 Senior Vice President of the Company since October 1997. Senior
Vice President of Commerce Bank, N A. (Missouri) prior thereto.

V. Raymond Stranghoener, 56 Executive Vice President of the Company since July 2005 and
Senior Vice President of the Company prior thereto. Prior to his
employment with the Company in October 1999, he was employed at
BankAmerica Corp. as National Executive of the Bank of America
Private Bank Wealth Strategies Group. He joined Boatmen’s
Trust Company in 1993, which subsequently merged with
BankAmerica Corp.

PART II

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.
Common Stock Data

The following table sets forth the high and low prices of actual transactions for the Company’s common
stock (CBSH) and cash dividends paid for the periods indicated (restated for the 5% stock dividend distrib-
uted in December 2007).

Cash
Quarter High Low Dividends
2007 First $48.35 $44.37 $.238
Second 46.59 42.53 238
Third 46.10 41.22 238
Fourth 416.32 41.96 238
20086 First $47.65 $44.57 $.222
Second 48.25 44,75 222
Third 46.49 44.09 222
Fourth 48.19 43.43 222
2005 First $43.19 $40.01 $.207
Second 44.00 39.86 207
Third 47.27 42.83 207
Fourth 48.64 43.15 207

Commerce Bancshares, Inc. common shares are listed on The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (NASDAQ), a
national securities exchange and highly-regulated electronic securities market comprised of competing
Market Makers whose trading is supported by a communications network linking them to quotation
dissemination, trade reporting, and order execution systems. The Company had 4,581 shareholders of
record as of December 31, 2007.
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Performance Graph

The following graph presents a comparison of Company (CBSH) performance to the indices named below.
It assumes $100 invested on 12/31/2002 with dividends invested on a Total Return basis.

Five Year Cumulative Total Return

200.00

/ /l\ +

150.00 \

100.00
50.00
0.00 T ¥ T T L
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Commerce (CBSH) —€—1{ 100.00 | 133.39 | 146.18 | 162.35 | 161.38 | 160.39
NASDAQ Bank —&— | 100.00 | 128.64 | 147.22 | 143.82 | 161.41 | 127.92
S&P 500 —8— | 100.00 | 128.68 | 142.69 | 149,70 | 173.35 | 182.86

The following table sets forth information about the Company’s purchases of its $5 par value common stock,
its only class of stock registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, during the fourth quarter of 2007.

Total Total Number of

Number Average Shares Purchased Maximum Number that

of Shares Price Paid aa Part of Publicly May Yet Be Purchased
Period Purchased per Share  Annocunced Program Under the Program
October 1 - 31, 2007 — 5 — — 1,695,284
November 1 - 30, 2007 165,513 $44.85 165,513 1,529,771
December 1 - 31, 2007 768 $45.09 768 1,529,003
Total 166,281 $44.85 166,281 1,529,003

The Company’s stock purchases shown above were made under a 4,000,000 share authorization by the
Board of Directors on February 2, 2007. Under this authorization, 1,529,003 shares remained available for
purchase at December 31, 2007. On February 1, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a new
authorization for the purchase of up to 3,000,000 shares of Company common stock.

Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The required information is set forth below in Item 7.
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (the Company) operates as a super-community bank offering an array of
sophisticated financial products delivered with high-quality, personal customer service. It is the largest bank
holding company headquartered in Missouri, with its principal offices in Kansas City and St. Louis, Missouri.
Customers are served from approximately 350 locations in Missouri, Kansas, Illinois, Oklahoma and
Colorado using delivery platforms which include an extensive network of branches and ATM machines,
full-featured online banking, and a central contact center.

The core of the Company’s competitive advantage is its focus on the local markets it services and its
concentration on relationship banking, with high service levels and competitive products. In order to enhance
shareholder value, the Company grows its core revenue by expanding new and existing customer relation-
ships, utilizing improved technology, and enhancing customer satisfaction.

Various indicators are used by management in evaluating the Company’s financial condition and
operating performance. Among these indicators are the following:

¢ Growth in earnings per share — Diluted earnings per share declined 4.1% in 2007 compared to 2006;
however, 2007 earnings included a special indemnification charge related to certain estimated
litigation expenses of Visa, Inc., which is discussed further below. Excluding this charge, diluted
earnings per share rose 2.0% over 2006, and has risen 6.1% and 8.3%, compounded annually, over the
last 5 and 10 years, respectively.

» Growth in total revenue — Total revenue is comprised of net interest income and non-interest income.
Total revenue in 2007 grew 5.1% over 2006, which resulted from growth of $24.9 million, or 4.8%, in
net interest income coupled with growth of $19.0 million, or 5.4%, in non-interest income. Total
revenue has risen 3.2%, compounded annually, over the last five years.

 Expense control - Excluding the Visa indemnification charge and the effects of recent bank acqui-
sitions, non-interest expense grew by 3.4% this year due to prudent management oversight and
expanded use of technology, and salaries and employee benefits, the largest expense component, grew
by 5.3%. The operating efficiency ratio was 60.42% in 2007 compared to 60.55% in 2006.

« Asset quality ~ Net loan charge-offs in 2007 increased $16.7 million over those recorded in 2006, and
averaged .42% of loans compared to .29% in the previous year. While non-performing assets at year
end 2007 increased to $33.4 million, this balance comprised only .32% of loans at year end 2007.

+ Shareholder return —Total shareholder return, including the change in stock price and dividend
reinvestment, was 9.9% over the past 5 years and 6.8% over the past 10 years.
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The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and related notes. The historical trends reflected in the financial information presented below are

not necessarily reflective of anticipated future results.

Key Ratios
(Based on average balance sheets): 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Return on total assets 1.33% 1.54% 160% 1.56% 1.52%
Return on stackholders’ equity 14.00 1596 16.19 1519 14.27
Tier I capital ratio 1031 1125 1221 1221 1231
Total capital ratio 1149 1256 13.63 13.67 13.70
Leverage ratio 8.76 9.05 9.43 9.60 9.71
Equity to total assets 9.54 9.68 9.87 1025 10.68
Non-interest income to revenue* 40.85 40.72 40.03 38.84 37.16
Efficiency ratio** 62.72 60.55 5930 59.16 58.83
Loans to deposits*** 88.49 8473 B81.34 7871 79.96
Net yield on interest earning assets (tax equivalent basis) ' 3.80 3.92 3.89 3.81 4.04
Non-interest bearing deposits to total deposits 5.45 5.78 6.23 1247 10.81
Cash dividend payout ratio 33.76 30.19 2892 2826 2519

* Revenue includes net interest income and non-interest income.

** The efficiency ratio is calculated as non-interest expense (excluding intangibles amortization) as a percent of revente.

**+ Includes loans held for sale.
Selected Financial Data
{In thousands, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Net interest income $ 538,072 $ 513,199 $ 501,702 $ 497,331 $ 502,392
Provision for loan losses 42,732 25,649 28,785 30,351 40,676
Non-interest income 371,581 352,586 334,837 315,839 297,107
Investment securities gains,

net 8,234 9,035 6,362 11,092 4,660
Non-interest expense 574,758 525,425 498,622 482,769 472,144
Net income 206,660 219,842 223,247 220,341 206,524
Net income per share-basic* 2.86 298 2.91 2.72 2.45
Net income per share-diluted* 2.82 2.94 2.87 2.68 2.42
Cash dividends 68,915 65,758 63,421 61,135 51,266
Cash dividends per share* 952 .889 .829 787 611
Market price per share* 44.86 46.10 47.27 43.36 40.33
Book value per share* 21.28 18.63 17.95 18.06 17.58
Common shares outstanding* 71,796 73,450 74,539 79,017 82,522
Total assets 16,204,831 15,230,349 13,885,545 14,250,368 14,287 164
Loans, including held for sale 10,841,264 9,960,118 8,899,183 8,305,359 8,142,679
Investment securities 3,297,015 3,496,323 3,770,181 4 837,368 5,039,194
Deposits 12,551,552 11,744,854 10,851,813 10,434,309 10,206,208
Long-term debt 1,083,636 553,934 269,390 389,542 300,977
Stockholders’ equity 1,527,686 1,442,114 1,337,838 1,426,880 1,450,954
Non-performing assets 33,417 18,223 11,713 18,775 33,685

* Restated for the 5% stock dividend distributed in December 2007.
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Results of Operations

$ Change % Change

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 *07-'06 '06-"05 0708 '06-'05
Net interest income $ 538,072 $513,199 $501,702 $ 24,873 $11,497 4.8% 2.3%
Provision for loan losses (42,732) (25,649) (28,785) 17,083 (3,136) 66.6 (10.9)
Non-interest income 371,681 352,586 334,837 18,9956 17,749 5.4 5.3
Investment securities

gains, net 8,234 9,035 6,362 (801) 2,673 8.9) 420
Non-interest expense (574,758) (525,425) (496,522) 49,333 28,903 94 5.8
Income taxes (93,787) (103,904) (94,347 (10,167) 9,557 (9.8) 101
Net income $ 206,660 §$219,842 §$223,247 $(13,182) $(3,405) (6.00% (1.5)%

As a supplement to its GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) financial results, the Company
has provided non-GAAP operating results for the year ended December 31, 2007. The Company believes that
these non-GAAP financial measures are useful because they allow investors to assess, on a consistent basis,
the Company’s operating performance exclusive of items management believes are not indicative of the
operations of the Company. Management uses such non-GAAP financial measures to evaluate financial
results and to establish operational goals. These non-GAAP financial measures should be considered a
supplement to, and not a substitute for, financial measures determined in accordance with GAAP. The non-
GAAP measures presented below exclude a $21.0 million pre-tax indemnification charge recorded by the
Company in the fourth quarter of 2007. This charge relates to the Company’s share of certain estimated Visa
litigation costs, which are explained in more detail in the Non-Interest Expense section of this discussion.

Comparison of GAAP and Non-GAAP Information

4 Change % Change

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 '07-'08 "06-'05 '07-'06  '06-05
Non-interest

expense (GAAP) $574,768 $525425 $496,522 $ 49,333  $28,903 94% 58%
Indemnification obligation (20,951) — — (20,951) — NM. NM.
Operating non-interest

expense (non-GAAP) $553,807 $525,425 $496,522 § 28,382 $28,903 b4% 58%
Net income (GAAP) $206,660 $219,842 $223,247 $(13,182) $(3,405) (B.0)% (1.5)%
Indemnification obligation,

net of tax 13,199 — — 13,199 — NM. NM
Operating net

income (non-GAAP) $219,859 $219,842 $223,247 § 17 $(3,405) —% (1.5)%
GAAP basis:
Basic earnings per share $ 28 $ 298 $ 291
Diluted earnings per share 2.82 2.94 2.87
Return on average assets 1.33% 1.54% 1.60%
Return on average equity 14.00% 15.96% 16.19%
Efficiency ratio 62.72% 60.55% 59.30%
Non-GAAP basis:
Basic earnings per share $ 304 $ 298 $ 291
Diluted earnings per share 3.00 2.94 2.87
Return on average assets 1.42% 1.54% 1.60%
Return on average equity 14.89% 15.96% 16.19%
Efficiency ratio 60.42% 60.565% 59.30%

The Company’s diluted earnings per share, based on operating results as shown in the table above,
amounted to $3.00 in 2007 compared to $2.94 in 2006, an increase of 2.0%. Operating net income for 2007 was
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$219.9 million, relatively unchanged from 2006. The operating return on average assets amounted to 1.42%
compared to 1.54% last year, and the operating return on average equity totaled 14.89% compared to 15.96%
last year. The operating efficiency ratio was 60.42% in 2007 compared with 60.55% in 20086.

Financial results for 2007 compared to 2006 included growth in net interest income and non-interest
income. These increases to net income were offset hy a higher provision for loan loss and an increase in non-
interest expense. Net interest income increased $24.9 million, or 4.8%, reflecting growth in average loan
balances and higher average overall rates earned on loans and investment securities, partly offset by
declining average balances in investment securities. Countering these effects was a rise in interest expense
on deposit accounts and short-term borrowings, resulting from increases in interest rates on virtually all
deposit accounts, coupled with growth in certificate of deposit balances and higher average short-term
borrowings. Non-interest income rose $19.0 million, or 5.4%, largely due to increases of 9.1% in bank card
fees, 1.6% in deposit account fees, and 9.2% in trust revenues. Operating non-interest expense grew
$28.4 million, or 5.4%, which was mainly the result of a 7.1% increase in salaries and benefits. Additional
smaller increases occurred in occupancy, supplies and communication expense, and marketing expense. The
provision for loan losses increased $17.1 million to $42.7 million, reflecting higher incurred losses in nearly
all loan categories, with the largest increases in business, consumer credit card and personal banking loans.
Income tax expense declined 9.8% in 2007 and resulted in an effective tax rate of 31.2%, compared to an
effective tax rate of 32.1% in the prior year. The decrease in income tax expense in 2007 occurred mainly due
to the change in the mix of taxable and nontaxable income.

The decline in net income in 2006 compared to 2005 was due to higher non-interest expense and income
tax expense, partly offset by an increase in net interest income, growth in non-interest income, and a lower
loan loss provision. Net interest income increased $11.5 million, or 2.3%, reflecting the effects of higher
average overall rates earned on loans and growth in average loan balances, partly offset by declining average
balances in investment securities. Also, interest expense on deposit accounts and short-term borrowings rose,
mainly related to increases in interest rates on deposit accounts and borrowings, coupled with growth in
certificate of deposit balances. Non-interest income rose $17.7 million, or 5.3%, largely due to increases of
10.0% in bank card fees, 2.2% in deposit account fees, and 5.7% in trust revenues. Non-interest expense grew
5.8%, mainly the result of higher salaries and benefits (up 5.5%), with additional increases of 6.5% in
occupancy, 10.6% in equipment, and 5.7% in data processing and software costs. The provision for loan losses
decreased $3.1 million to $25.6 million, reflecting lower incurred losses, especially in credit card and personal
banking loans. Income tax expense increased 10.1% in 2006 and resulted in an effective tax rate of 32.1%,
which increased from a tax rate of 29.7% in the prior year. The increase in income tax expense in 2006
occurred largely because tax benefits of $13.7 million, representing the effects of certain corporate restruc-
turing initiatives, were recognized in 2005 and these benefits did not recur in 2008.

The Company completed two bank acquisitions during 2007. On April 1, 2007, the Company acquired
South Tulsa Financial Corporation (South Tulsa). In this transaction, the Company acquired the outstanding
stock of South Tulsa and issued shares of Company stock valued at $27.6 million. The Company’s acquisition
of South Tulsa added two branch locations in Tulsa, Oklahoma. On July 1, 2007, the Company acquired
Commerce Bank in Denver, Colorado. In this transaction, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock
of Commerce Bank for $29.5 million in cash. The acquisition added the Company’s first location in Colorado.

During 2006, the Company also acquired two banks. The first acquisition was in July 2006, when the
Company, through a bank subsidiary, acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Boone
National Savings and Loan Association (Boone) in a purchase and assumption agreement for cash of
$19.1 million. Boone operated four branches in central Missouri. In September 2006, the Company acquired
the outstanding stock of West Pointe Bancorp, Inc. (West Pointe) in Belleville, Illinois, which operated five
branch locations in the greater St. Louis area. The total purchase price of $80.5 million consisted of cash of
$13.1 million and shares of Company stock valued at $67.5 million.

The transactions discussed above are collectively referred to as “bank acquisitions” throughout the
remainder of this report. Additional information about acquired balances and intangible assets recognized is
presented below.
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2007 2006

(In millions) Denver South Tulsa Boone West Pointe
Purchase price $ 29.5 $ 27.6 $ 13.1 $ 805
Acquired balances:
Total assets, including intangible assets recognized 123.9 142.4 147.2 508.8
Loans 74.5 114.7 126.4 255.0
Deposits 72.2 103.9 100.9 3818
Intangible assets recognized:
Goodwill 15.1 10.6 15.6 38.3
Core deposit premium 49 3.4 2.6 14.9
Mortgage servicing rights — — 3 5

The Company continually evaluates the profitability of its network of bank branches throughout its
markets. As a result of this evaluation process, the Company may periodically sell the assets and liabilities of
certain branches, or may sell the premises of specific banking facilities. During the last three years, the
Company has sold three or four bank facilities each year, realizing pre-tax gains on these sales of $1.6 million,
$579 thousand and $802 thousand during 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In January 2008, the Company
agreed to sell its branch in Independence, Kansas, with loans of $29 million and deposits of $83 million. The
transaction is expected to close in the second quarter of 2008, at which time the Company expects to receive a
purchase premium of $7.2 million in cash.

The Company distributed a 5% stock dividend for the fourteenth consecutive year on December 13, 2007.
All per share and average share data in this report has been restated to reflect the 2007 stock dividend.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared based on the application of certain
accounting policies, the most significant of which are described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements. Certain of these policies require numerous estimates and strategic or economic assumptions that
may prove inaccurate or be subject to variations which may significantly affect the Company’s reported
results and financial position for the period or in future periods. The use of estimates, assumptions, and
judgments are necessary most often when financial assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at, or
adjusted to reflect, fair value. Assets and liabilities carried at fair value inherently result in more financial
statement volatility. Fair values and the information used to record valuation adjustments for certain assets
and liabilities are based on either quoted market prices or are provided by other independent third-party
sources, when available. When such information is not available, management estimates valuation adjust-
ments primarily by using internal cash flow and other financial modeling techniques. Changes in underlying
factors, assumptions, or estimates in any of these areas could have a material impact on the Company’s future
financial condition and results of operations.

The Company has identified several policies as being critical because they require management to make
particularly difficult, subjective and/or complex judgments about matters that are inherently uncertain and
because of the likelihood that materially different amounts would be reported under different conditions or
using different assumptions. These policies relate to the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of certain
non-marketable investments, and accounting for income taxes.

The Company performs periodic and systematic detailed reviews of its loan portfolio to assess overall
collectability. The level of the allowance for loan losses reflects the Company’s estimate of the losses inherent
in the loan portfolio at any point in time. While these estimates are based on substantive metheds for
determining allowance requirements, actual outcomes may differ significantly from estimated results,
especially when determining allowances for business, lease, construction and business real estate loans.
These loans are normally larger and more complex, and their collection rates are harder to predict. Personal
loans, including personal mortgage, consumer credit card and other consumer loans, are individually smaller
and perform in a more homogenous manner, making loss estimates more predictable. Further explanation of
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the methodologies used in establishing the allowance is provided in the Allowance for Loan Losses section of
this discussion.

The Company, through its direct holdings and its Small Business Investment subsidiaries, has numer-
ous private equity and venture capital investments, which totaled $45.3 million at December 31, 2007. These
private equity and venture capital securities are reported at fair value. The values assigned to these
securities where no market quotations exist are based upon available information and management’s
judgment. Although management believes its estimates of fair value reasonably reflect the fair value of
these securities, key assumptions regarding the projected financial performance of these companies, the
evaluation of the investee company’s management team, and other economic and market factors may affect
the amounts that will ultimately be realized from these investments.

As more fully discussed in Notes 1 and 9 of the consolidated financial statements, the Company accounts
for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. Accrued income taxes
represent the net amount of current income taxes which are expected to be paid attributable to operations as
of the balance sheet date. Deferred income taxes represent the expected future tax consequences of events
that have been recognized in the financial statements or income tax returns. Current and deferred income
taxes are reported as either a component of other assets or other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets,
depending on whether the balances are assets or liabilities. Judgment is required in applying the principles of
SFAS No. 109. The Company regularly monitors taxing authorities for changes in laws and regulations and
their interpretations by the judicial systems. The aforementioned changes, and changes that may result from
the resolution of income tax examinations by federal and state taxing authorities, may impact the estimate of
acerued income taxes and could materially impact the Company’s financial position and results of operations.
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Net Interest Income

Net interest income, the largest source of revenue, results from the Company’s lending, investing,
borrowing, and deposit gathering activities. It is affected by both changes in the level of interest rates and
changes in the amounts and mix of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities. The following table
summarizes the changes in net interest income on a fully taxable equivalent basis, by major category of
interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities, identifying changes related to volumes and rates.
Changes not solely due to volume or rate changes are allocated to rate.

2007 2006
Change due to Change due to
Average  Average Average Average

(In thousands) Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
Interest income,

fully taxable equivalent basis
Loans $77,356 $ 14,806 $ 92,252 $ 35,616 $ 87,585 $123,201
Loans held for sale 412 (260) 152 16,783 4 348 21,131
Investment securities:

U.S. government and federal agency

obligations (8,190) 1,878 (6,312) (15,977) (1,174 (17,151)

State and municipal obligations 8,058 251 8,309 11,923 713 12,636

Mortgage and asset-backed securities {3,547) 9,520 5,973 (24,993) 6,285  (18,708)

Other securities (3,126) (2,090) (5,216) {75) 5,205 5,130

Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under agreements to resell 11,852 {1,608) 10,244 5,965 5,670 11,535

Total interest income 82,815 22,587 105,402 29,242 108,532 137,774

Interest expense
Interest bearing deposits:

Savings (5) (132) (137) 29 974 945
Interest checking and money market 8,541 11,248 19,789 321 41,805 42,126
Time open and C.I).’s of less than

$100,000 11,563 13,970 25,6833 10,150 24,677 34,827
Time open and C.D.’s of $100,000 and

over 9,001 6,357 15,358 9,579 18,023 27,602

Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase 10,826 2,484 13,310 (7,185) 29,163 21,378

Other borrowings 5,346 (315) 5,031 (5,819) 2,099 (3,720)
Total interest expense 45,272 33,612 78,884 6,417 116,741 123,158
Net interest income, fully taxable

equivalent basis $37,543 $(11,025) $ 26,518 $ 22,825 $ (8,209) $§ 14,616

Net interest income was $538.1 million in 2007, representing an increase of $24.9 million, or 4.8%,
compared to $513.2 million in 2006. Net interest income increased $11.5 million, or 2.3%, in 2006 compared to
$501.7 million in 2005. The increase in net interest income in 2007 resulted mainly from growth of
$92.3 million in tax equivalent loan interest income, due mainly to higher average balances and yields,
and an increase in tax equivalent interest on investment securities of $2.8 million, mainly due to higher
yields. Also, interest earned on federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell (resale
agreements) increased $10.2 million, due mainly to higher balances. Offsetting these increases in interest
income were higher deposit interest costs of $60.5 million as a result of higher balances and rates paid,
coupled with increased interest expense on borrowings, which grew by $18.4 million. The increase in rates on
both interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities was the result of increases in the federal funds
rate initiated by the Federal Reserve throughout 2005 and 2006 which impacted average balances and rates
for the full year in 2007. The tax equivalent net yield on earning assets decreased 12 basis points to 3.80% in
2007 compared to 3.92% in 2006.
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During 20086, net interest income increased $11.5 million compared to 2005. The increase was largely the
result of growth in loan interest income due to higher yields and average balances, but was partly offset by an
increase in interest expense due to higher deposit rates and balances, in addition to higher rates paid on
federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase (repurchase agreements).

Total interest income in 2007 was $936.1 million, compared to $832.3 million in 2006 and $697.6 million
in 2005. On a tax equivalent basis, interest income increased $105.4 million in 2007, or 12.6%, as a result of
growth in interest on loans ($92.3 million tax equivalent), investment securities ($2.8 million tax equivalent)
and federal funds sold and resale agreements ($10.2 million). The growth in interest on loans resulted from
higher average balances in commercial loans of $703.7 million {(consisting of business, construction and
business real estate loans) and in personal loans of $381.1 million (consisting of personal real estate, home
equity, consumer and consumer credit card loans). This growth in average balances also resulted from four
bank acquisitions occurring in 2006 and 2007, which increased average loan balances by $337.8 million in
2007. As aresult of the increases in the federal funds rate in previous years as mentioned above, rates on most
lending products increased, contributing approximately $14.9 million (tax equivalent) to the growth in lean
interest income. The overall tax equivalent rate earned on loans, excluding loans held for sale, was 7.23% in
2007 compared to 7.08% in 2006, or an increase of 15 basis points.

The $2.8 million increase in tax equivalent interest income on investment securities was mainly the
result of higher rates earned on mortgage and other asset-backed securities and U.S. government and agency
securities, which contributed $11.4 million to interest income. In addition, higher average balances of
municipal investment securities and mortgage-backed securities contributed to the increase. Offsetting
these increases, however, were the effects of lower average balances in US. government and agency
securities, other asset-backed securifies, and short-term money market investments. The increase in interest
on federal funds sold and resale agreements was mainly due to higher average balances of overnight resell
agreements, which are used for funding and pledging purposes.

The overall tax equivalent rate earned on total interest earning assets amounted to 6.56% in 2007
compared to 6.32% in 2006, or an increase of 24 basis points.

Interest expense increased $78.9 million, or 24.7%, in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily as a result of
higher interest expense on both deposit accounts and other borrowings. Interest expense on deposits
increased $60.5 million as a result of higher rates on virtually all deposit products, coupled with growth
in average balances of money market accounts and short-term certificates of deposit. The higher average
balances occurred notably in the Company’s premium money market product, which requires higher
customer balances but also pays higher rates, due to the general rate environment and promotions during
the year. Average short-term certificate of deposit balances grew by $751.2 million partly due to customer
preference, but also due to efforts by the Company to attract jumbo certificates of deposit from commercial
sources in an effort to diversify funding sources. Also, the four bank acquisitions completed in 2006 and 2007,
noted above, contributed to the growth in average deposits by $362.8 million.

Interest expense on other borrowings increased $18.4 million, mainly due to higher average balances in
repurchase agreements and higher rates on these balances, but offset by lower average balances of federal
funds purchased. The increase in the average balances of repurchase agreements was mainly due to the
acquisition in August 2006 of $500.0 million in term structured repurchase agreements, which were acquired
to mitigate the risk of falling interest rates. In addition, average advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank
grew $103.8 million as the Company further diversified its funding sources.

The overall rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities increased from 2.63% in 2006 to 3.01% in 2007, or an
increase of 38 basis points.

Interest income increased in 2006 by $134.7 million, or 19.3%, as a result of a $144.3 million increase in
tax equivalent loan interest income, offset slightly by an $18.1 million decrease in interest income from
investment securities. The tax equivalent average yield on interest earning assets was 6.32% in 2006
compared to 5.40% in 2005, representing a 92 basis point increase. Interest income on loans increased in 2006
over 2005 as a result of a 98 basis point increase in the average yield, coupled with an $859.9 million, or
10.0%, increase in average balances. Approximately $137.1 million of the increase in average loan balances
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was the result of bank acquisitions in 2006, which contributed $10.2 million to interest income earned on
loans in 2006. Excluding the impact of the acquisitions, the increase in average loan balances compared to
2005 was $722.8 million, or 8.4%. The average yield on investment securities increased 36 basis points, which
was offset by a $763.5 million, or 17.7%, decrease in investment securities average balances, resulting in an
overall decrease of $18.1 million in interest income earned on the investment portfolio in 2006 compared to
2005. The Company funded its loan growth principally by reducing its investment securities portfolio, in
addition to growth in its overall deposit base.

Interest expense increased $123.2 million, or 62.9%, in 2006 compared to 2005 as a result of the rising
interest rate environment and increases in average deposit balances. Interest expense on deposits increased
$105.5 million, or 78.3%, in 2006 over the previous year as a result of a 92 basis point average rate increase,
coupled with growth of $607.9 million, or 6.2%, in average interest bearing deposit balances. Approximately
$147.8 million of the increase in average interest bearing deposit balances was a result of bank acquisitionsin
2006. Bank acquisitions incurred $5.1 million of deposit interest expense in 2006. Excluding the impact of
bank acquisitions, the increase in average interest bearing deposits compared to 2005 was $460.1 million, or
4.7%. Additionally, interest expense on federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements increased
$21.4 million, or 43.8%, resulting primarily from an increase of 179 basis points in rates paid. Average
borrowings of federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements declined 9.6% primarily due to a decrease
in federal funds purchased as a result of lower liquidity needs, offset by growth in average repurchase
agreement balances. Contributing to the increase in repurchase agreements was the addition of $500.0 mil-
lion in structured repurchase agreements, mentioned above.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses was $42.7 million in 2007, compared with $25.6 million in 2006 and
$28.8 million in 2005. The $17.1 million, or 66.6%, increase in the 2007 provision for loan lesses reflected
higher incurred losses in almost all loan categories. The provision for loan losses is recorded to bring the
allowance for loan losses to a level deemed adequate by management based on the factors mentioned in the
following “Allowance for Loan Losses” section of this discussion.

Non-Interest Income

% Change
{Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 ’07-06 '06-'06
Deposit account charges and other fees $117,350 $115,453 $112,979 16% 2.2%
Bank card transaction fees 103,613 94,928 86,310 9.1 10.0
Trust fees 78,840 72,180 68,316 9.2 5.7
Consumer brokerage services 12,445 9,954 9,909 25.0 5
Trading account profits and commissions 8,647 8,132 9,650 6.3 (15.7)
Loan fees and sales 8,835 10,503 12,838 (16.9) (18.2)
Other 41,851 41,436 34,835 1.0 18.9
Total non-interest income $371,581 $352,586 $334,837 54% 5.3%
Non-interest income as a % of total revenue* 40.8% 40.7% 40.0%
Total revenue per full-time equivalent employee $ 1790 $ 1755 $ 1729

* Total revenue is calculated as net interest income plus non-interest income.

Non-interest income was $371.6 million in 2007, which was a $19.0 million, or 5.4%, increase over 2006.
In 2007, deposit account fees rose $1.9 million, or 1.6%, as a result of higher corporate cash management fees,
which grew by $2.8 million, or 12.2%. The growth in cash management fees was mainly due to increased sales
of products, coupled with increased usage. It was partly offset by a slight decline in deposit account overdraft
fees. Bank card fees increased $8.7 million, or 9.1%, over the prior year, primarily due to higher fees earned on
debit and corporate card transaction fees, which grew by 12.2% and 30.0%, respectively. The growth in debit
card transaction fees resulted from greater utilization by consumers and acceptance by retail businesses,
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which increased volumes. The growth in corporate card fees was attributable to transaction fees from
commercial businesses and non-profit enterprises that are utilizing these electronic transactions in greater
proportion, in addition to increased sales efforts to build business in areas outside the Company’s retail
footprint. These increases were partly offset by a decline in merchant fees of 6.8%, mainly due to the loss of a
arge merchant customer at the end of last year. Trust fees rose $6.7 million, or 9.2%, mainly due to an 8.3%
increase in private client account fees and a 14.7% increase in corporate and institutional trust account fees.
Sales efforts in 2007 resulted in new annualized fees of $5.0 million, an increase of 11.5%, for private client
accounts and $1.1 million for corporate and institutional trust accounts. Total trust assets, upon which fees
are charged, grew to $22.7 billion, an increase of 7.2%. Consumer brokerage services revenue rose $2.5 mil-
lien, or 25.0%, mainly due to growth in annuity commissions and mutual fund fees. In addition, due to recent
Company initiatives, fees resulting from account management and sales of various insurance products have
alsoincreased. Bond trading income increased $515 thousand, mainly due to an increase in underwriting fees
on customer debt issues, in addition to higher corporate and correspondent bank sales. Loan fees and sales
decreased $1.7 million as gains on student loan sales declined from $6.3 million in 2006 to $4.5 million in
2007, which resulted from narrowing profit margins on loans sold to various servicing institutions. Other
non-interest income rose $415 thousand over the prior year, largely due to increases of $1.1 million in cash
sweep commission income and $1.0 million in gains on sales of various bank facilities. Additional increases
occurred in fees on tax credit sales and international transaction fee income. These increases were partly
offset by impairment losses of $1.3 million recorded on several properties and the receipt in 2006 of
$1.2 million in non-recurring income from an equity investment held by Commerce Bancshares, Inc., the
parent holding company (the “Parent”).

In 2006, non-interest income increased $17.7 million, or 5.3%, to $352.6 million. Compared to 2005,
deposit account fees increased $2.5 million, or 2.2%, as a result of higher deposit account overdraft fees, which
grew $3.7 million, or 4.7%. This growth was partly offset by lower cash management fee income and lower
deposit account service charges. The growth in overdraft fees was mainly due to higher unit prices, partly
offset by lower transaction volumes. The decline in corporate cash management fees continued to be affected
by the higher interest rate environment in 2006, which tended to reduce cash fees paid by corporate
customers. Bank card fees rose $8.6 million, or 10.0% overall, primarily due to solid growth in corporate
card and debit card fee income, which grew by 21.8% and 17.5%, respectively. Trust fees increased $3.9 mil-
lion, or 5.7%, due to a 5.2% increase in private client account fees and a 6.4% increase in corporate and
institutional trust account fees. Bond trading income fell $1.5 million due to lower sales of fixed income
securities to bank and corporate customers, while consumer brokerage income was relatively flat. Loan fees
and sales decreased by $2.3 million as gains on sales of student loans declined from $8.0 million in 2005 to
$6.3 million in 2006, and fewer transactions occurred. Other non-interest income rose $6.6 million, which
included growth of $2.2 million in operating lease-related income, in addition to the non-recurring income
from a Parent company equity investment. Higher sweep fees and check sales income were also recorded.

Investment Securities Gains, Net

Net gains and losses on investment securities during 2007, 2006 and 2005 are shown in the table below.
Included in these amounts are gains and losses arising from sales of bonds from the banks’ available for sale
portfolio, in addition to sales of publicly traded equity securities held by the Parent. Also shown are gains and
losses relating to non-marketable private equity and venture capital investments, which are primarily held
by the Parent’s majority-owned venture capital subsidiaries. These include fair value adjustments, in
addition to gains and losses realized upon disposition. Minority interest expense pertaining to these net
gains is reported in other non-interest expense, and totaled $389 thousand, $2.2 million and $383 thousand in
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In 2006 the Company sold its shares of MasterCard Inc., which it had
acquired through MasterCard’s reorganization and initial public offering in the same year.
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(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Available for sale:

Bonds $1,069 $(2,083) $5,080

Equity securities 1,858 — —

Non-marketable: ‘

Private equity and venture investments 5,307 8,278 1,282

MasterCard restricted stock — 2,840 — ‘

Total investment securities gains, net $8,234 $9,035 $6,362
Non-Interest Expense

% Change
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 0706 '06-05
Salaries $265,378 $244,887 $234,440 84% 4.5%
Employee benefits 43,390 43,386 38,737 — 12.0
Net occupancy 45,789 43,276 40,621 5.8 6.5
Equipment 24,121 25,665 23,201 (6.0) 106
Supplies and communication 34,162 32,670 33,342 4.6 (2.0)
Data processing and software 49,081 50,982 , 48,244 3.7 5.7
Marketing 18,199 17,317 17,294 5.1 1
Indemnification obligation 20,951 — — NM. NM
Other 73,687 67,242 60,643 9.6 10.9
Total non-interest expense $574,758 $525,4256 $496,522 9.4% 5.8%
Efficiency ratio 62.7% 60.6% 59.3%
Salaries and benefits as a% of total non-interest
expense 563.7% 54.9% 55.0%

Number of full-time equivalent employees 5,083 4,932 4,839

Non-interest expense was $574.8 million in 2007, which included a non-cash expense charge of
$21.0 million related to the Company’s indemnification obligation to share certain estimated litigation costs
of Visa, Inc. (Visa). The expense charge was the result of revisions in October 2007 to Visa’s by-laws affecting
all member banks, as part of an overall reorganization in which the member banks indemnified Visa on
certain covered litigation. The expense charge relates to Visa’s American Express litigation, which was
settled by Visa in November 2007, and other Visa litigation, including the Discover and other interchange
litigation, which has not yet been settled. As part of the reorganization, Visa plans an initial public offering
early in 2008, and part of the proceeds from the offering representing the member banks’ proportionate share
will be placed in escrow and used to fund the actual litigation settlements when they occur. The Company
currently anticipates that its proportional share of the proceeds of the Visa initial public offering will more
than offset its liabilities related to the Visa litigation.

Excluding the Visa indemnification charge, non-interest expense was $553.8 million in 2007, and grew
5.4% over 2006. Salaries and benefits expense grew by $20.5 million, or 7.1%, due to merit increases,
incentive compensation, payroll taxes and the effects of the recent bank acquisitions, which contributed
$5.4 million of this increase. Partly offsetting these increases was a decline in employee group medical plan
expense, resulting from favorable claims experience. Occupancy expense increased by $2.5 million, or 5.8%,
over last year mainly as a result of seasonal maintenance costs, higher building depreciation and real estate
taxes. Higher rent income from tenants, resulting from an increase in overall building occupancy, partly
offset these expenses. Equipment expense declined by $1.5 million, or 6.0%, mainly due to declines in
depreciation expense on data processing equipment and maintenance contract expense, in addition to
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relocation costs of a check processing function in 2006. Supplies and communication costs grew by $1.5 mil-
lion, or 4.6%, mainly due to higher costs for supplies, postage and courier expense, partly offset by a decline in
data network expense. Data processing and software expense declined $1.9 million, or 3.7%, mainly due to
lower license costs related to online banking systems and a decline in bank card processing fees. A smaller
variance occurred in marketing expense, which increased $882 thousand, or 5.1%, over the prior year. Other
non-interest expense increased $6.4 million, or 9.6%, in 2007 due to increases in intangible asset amorti-
zation (resulting from recent bank acquisitions), bank card and other fraud losses, and dues and subscription
expense. Partly offsetting these increases were declines in minority interest expense and foreclosed property
expense.

In 2008, non-interest expense was $525.4 million, an increase of $28.9 million, or 5.8%, over 2005.
Compared with the prior year, salaries and benefits expense grew $15.1 million, or 5.5%, due to normal merit
increases and higher costs for incentive compensation, medical insurance, and payroll taxes. In addition, the
effects of the bank acquisitions occurring in 2006 increased salaries and benefits by approximately $2.4 mil-
lion. Partly offsetting these increases was a decline in stock-based compensation of $1.8 million, which
resulted from the implementation in 2006 of estimated forfeiture accounting requirements and a slightly
longer vesting period for new grants. Net occupancy costs grew $2.7 million, or 6.5%, compared to the prior
year, mainly as a result of a full year of depreciation, real estate taxes and utilities expense incurred on two
office buildings purchased in 2005, in addition to costs related to several branch facilities constructed during
2006. These increases were partly offset by lower net rent expense as certain banking offices were moved
from leased facilities to the new buildings and office space was leased to outside tenants. In addition, in 2006
the Company recorded an asbestos abatement obligation on an office building in downtown Kansas City,
which increased occupancy expense by $854 thousand. Equipment éxpense increased $2.5 million, or 10.6%,
mainly due to higher equipment depreciation expense and the relocation of a check processing function
mentioned above. Data processing and software expense increased $2.7 million, or 5.7%, due to higher bank
card processing fees, online banking fees and software amortization expense. Software amortization expense
increased mainly due to the installation of new data system applications, while bank card processing fees
increased commensurate with the increase in bank card fee income mentioned above. Smaller variances
occurred in marketing, which increased slightly, while lower telephone and network costs resulted in a
reduction in supplies and communication expense of $672 thousand. Other non-interest expense increased
$6.6 million due to increases in legal and professional fees, operating lease depreciation, foreclosed property
expense (related to a single property acquired and subsequently sold in 2006) and minority interest expense
relating to investment gains recorded by venture capital affiliates. Partly offsetting these increases were
lower processing losses and bank card fraud losses.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $93.7 million in 2007, compared to $103.9 million in 2006 and $94.3 million in
2005. Income tax expense in 2007 decreased 9.8% from 2006, compared to a 7.2% decrease in pre-tax income.
The effective tax rate was 31.2%, 32.1% and 29.7% in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company’s
effective tax rates in those years were lower than the federal statutory rate of 35% mainly due to tax exempt
interest on state and municipal obligations and, in 2005, the recognition of additional tax benefits from
various corporate reorganization initiatives. These tax benefits, which amounted to $13.7 million in 2005, did
not reoccur in 2007 or 2006.
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Financial Condition

Loan Portfolio Analysis

A schedule of average balances invested in each category of loans appears on page 52. Classifications of
consolidated loans by major category at December 31 for each of the past five years are as follows. The
Company’s student loan portfolio was classified as held for sale in the first quarter of 2006, and is not included
in the table below for 2006 and 2007. Refer to the following section, Loans Held For Sale, for information
regarding student loans.

Balance at December 31

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Business $ 3,257,047 $2,860,692 $2,527,654 $2,246287 $2,102,605
Real estate — construction 668,701 658,148 424,561 427,124 427,083
Real estate — business 2,239,846 2,148,195 1,919,045 1,743,293 1,875,069
Real estate — personal 1,540,289 1,478,669 1,352,339 1,329,568 1,325,999
Consumer 1,648,072 1,435,038 1,287,348 1,193,822 1,150,732
Home equity 460,200 441,851 448 507 411,541 352,047
Student — — 330,238 357,991 355,763
Consumer credit card 780,227 648,326 592,465 561,054 526,653
Overdrafts ) 10,986 10,601 10,854 23,673 14,123
Total loans $10,605,368 $9,681,520 $8,893,011 $8,294,353 $8,130,074

The contractual maturities of loan categories at December 31, 2007, and a breakdown of those loans
between fixed rate and floating rate loans are as follows:

Principal Payments Due

In After One After
One Year Year Through Five
{In thousands) or Less Five Years Years Total
Business $1,704 381 $1,274,730 $ 277,936 § 3,257,047
Real estate — construction 403,394 251,142 14,165 668,701
Real estate — business 709,508 1,254,621 275,717 2,239,846
Real estate — personal 136,099 301,669 1,102,521 1,540,289
Total business and real estate
loans $2,053,382 $3,082,162 $1,670,339 7,705,883
Consumer'” 1,648,072
Home equity® 460,200
Consumer credit card® 780,227
Overdrafts 10,986
Total loans, net of unearned
income $10,605,368
Loans with fixed rates $ 610,009 $1,662,509 $ 506,821 $ 2,779,339
Loans with floating rates 2,343,373 1,419,653 1,163,518 4,928 544
Total business and real estate
loans $2,953,382 $3,082,162 $1,670,339 $ 7,705,883

(1) Consumer loans with floating rates totaled $100.0 million.
(2) Home equity loans with floating rates totaled $452.7 million.
(3) Consumer credit card loans with floating rates totaled $695.8 miilion.

Total period end loans at December 31, 2007 were $10.6 billion, an increase of $923.8 million, or 9.5%,
over balances at December 31, 2006. Loan growth came principally from business, business real estate,
personal real estate, consumer and credit card loans, as demand for loan products remained solid during
2007. The 2007 bank acquisitions also contributed to the higher loan balances, adding approximately
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$262.1 million to the year end 2007 balance. The acquisition-related growth occurred mainly in business
loans ($95.0 miilion), construction loans ($49.2 million), business real estate loans ($88.2 million), and
personal real estate loans ($22.2 million). Excluding these acquired loans, business loans grew $301.3 million,
or 10.5%, reflecting new business in regional markets, strength in agribusiness lending, and increased
borrowings by existing customers. Lease balances, which are included in the business category, increased
$10.2 million, or 3.9%, compared with the previous year end balance, as equipment financing remained
strong. Consumer loans grew $207.7 million, or 14.5%, during the year mainly as a result of continued growth
in marine and recreational vehicle lending. Personal real estate loans grew by $39.4 million, or 2.7%, and
business real estate loans rose $3.4 million, or .2%. Consumer credit card loans increased $131.9 million, or
20.3%, and saw growth especially at year end, when holiday activity is at its peak. During 2007, home equity
loans increased $16.7 million, or 3.8%, due to an increase in new account activations. Construction loans
declined $38.6 million, or 5.9%.

Period end loans increased $788.5 million, or 8.9%, in 2006 compared to 2005, resulting from increases in
business, construction, business real estate, personal real estate and consumer loans.

The Company currently generates approximately 32% of its loan portfolio in the St. Louis market, 28% in
the Kansas City market, and 40% in various other regional markets. The portfolio is diversified from a
business and retail standpoint, with 58% in loans to businesses and 42% in loans to consumers. A balanced
approach to loan portfolio management and an historical aversion toward credit concentrations, from an
industry, geographic and product perspective, have contributed to low levels of problem loans and loan losses.

Business

Total business loans amounted to $3.3 billion at December 31, 2007 and include loans used mainly to
fund customer accounts receivable, inventories, and capital expenditures. This portfolio also includes sales
type and direct financing leases totaling $276.1 million, which are used by commercial customers to finance
capital purchases ranging from computer equipment to office and transportation equipment. These leases
comprise 2.6% of the Company’s total loan portfolio. Business loans are made primarily to customers in the
regional trade area of the Company, generally the central Midwest, encompassing the states of Missouri,
Kansas, Illinois, and nearby Midwestern markets, including Iowa, Oklahoma, Colorade and Ohio. The
portfolio is diversified from an industry standpoint and includes businesses engaged in manufacturing,
wholesaling, retailing, agribusiness, insurance, financial services, public utilities, and other service busi-
nesses. Emphasis is upon middle-market and community businesses with known local management and
financial stability. The Company participates in credits of large, publicly traded companies when business
operations are maintained in the local communities or regional markets and opportunities to provide other
banking services are present. Consistent with management’s strategy and emphasis upon relationship
banking, most borrowing customers also maintain deposit accounts and utilize other banking services. There
were net loan charge-offs in this category of $4.4 million in 2007 compared to net loan recoveries of $823
thousand in 2006. The increase in net loan charge-offs over the prior year was partly due to a $1.4 million
charge-off on an agribusiness loan secured by equipment, grain and real estate. Non-accrual business loans
were $4.7 million {.1% of business loans) at December 31, 2007 compared to $5.8 million at December 31,
2006. Included in these totals were non-accrual lease-related loans of $167 thousand and $1.2 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Opportunities for growth in business loans will be based upon
strong solicitation efforts in a highly competitive market environment for quality loans. Asset quality is, in
part, a function of management’s consistent application of underwriting standards and credit terms through
stages in economic cycles. Therefore, portfolio growth in 2008 will be dependent upon 1) the strength of the
economy, 2) the actions of the Federal Reserve with regard to targets for economic growth, interest rates, and
inflationary tendencies, and 3} the competitive environment.
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Real Estate-Construction

The portfolio of loans in this category amounted to $668.7 million at December 31, 2007 and comprised
6.3% of the Company’s total loan portfolie. The table below shows the Company’s holdings of the major types
of construction loans.

Balance at
December 31
(In thousands) 2007 % of Total
Land development $254,072 38.0%
Residential construction 159,624 239
Commercial construction 255,005 38.1
Total real estate-construction loans $668,701 100.0%

These loans are predominantly made to businesses in the local markets of the Company’s banking
subsidiaries. Commercial construction loans are made during the construction phase for small and medium-
sized office and medical buildings, manufacturing and warehouse facilities, apartment complexes, shopping
centers, hotels and motels, and other commercial properties. Exposure to larger speculative office properties
remains low. The largest percentage of residential construction and land development loans are for projects
located in the Kansas City and St. Louis metropolitan areas. Credit losses in this portfolio are normally low.
However, credit exposure in this sector has risen with the slowdown in the housing industry, and net loan
charge-offs increased to $2.0 million in 2007, compared to net charge-offs of $62 thousand in 2006. The
increase in net charge-offs was mainly related to charge-offs of $1.6 million on three specific loans. Con-
struction loans on non-accrual status rose to $7.8 million at year end 2007, compared to $120 thousand at
year end 2006. This increase was due to less than ten loans, ranging from $600 thousand to $1.6 million,
placed on non-accrual status during 2007.

Real Estate-Business

Total business real estate loans were $2.2 billion at December 31, 2007 and comprised 21.1% of the
Company’s total loan portfolio. This category includes mortgage loans for small and medium-sized office and
medical buildings, manufacturing and warehouse facilities, shopping centers, hotels and motels, and other
commercial properties. Emphasis is placed on owner-occupied and income producing commercial real estate
properties, which present lower risk levels. The borrowers and/or the properties are generally located in the
local and regional markets of the affiliate banks. At December 31, 2007, non-accrual balances amounted to
$5.6 million, or .3% of the loans in this category, down from $9.8 million at year end 2006. The Company
experienced net charge-offs of $1.1 million in 2007, compared to net recoveries of $36 thousand in 2006.

Real Estate-Personal

At December 31, 2007, there were $1.5 billion in outstanding personal real estate loans, which comprised
14.5% of the Company’s total loan portfolio. The mortgage loans in this category are extended, predominately,
for owner-occupied residential properties. The Company originates both adjustable rate and fixed rate
mortgage loans, The Company retains adjustable rate mortgage loans, and may from time to time retain
certain fixed rate loans (typically 15-year fixed rate loans) as directed by its Asset/Liability Management
Committee. Other fixed rate loans in the portfolio have resulted from previous bank acquisitions. At
December 31, 2007, 63% of the portfolic was comprised of adjustable rate loans while 37% was comprised
of fixed rate loans. Levels of mortgage loan origination activity increased slightly in 2007 compared to 2006,
with originations of $283 million in 2007 compared with $282 million in 2006. Growth in mortgage loan
originations was constrained in 2007 as a result of the slower housing starts and lower resales within the
Company’s markets. The Company typically does not experience significant loan losses in this category and
since it does not offer any subprime lending products nor rely on outside sources for originations, its loan
losses remained relatively low. The non-accrual balances of loans in this category increased to $1.1 million at
December 31, 2007, compared to $384 thousand at year end 2006. The five year history of net charge-offs in
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the personal real estate loan category reflects nominal losses, and the credit quality of these loans is
considered to be strong.

Personal Banking

Total personal banking loans, which include consumer and revolving home equity loans, totaled
$2.1 billion at December 31, 2007 and increased 12.3% during 2007. These categories comprised 19.9% of
the total loan portfolio at December 31, 2007. Consumer loans consist of auto, marine, tractor/trailer,
recreational vehicle (RV) and fixed rate home equity loans, and totaled $1.6 billion at year end 2007.
Approximately 69% of the loans outstanding were originated indirectly from auto and other dealers, while
the remaining 31% were direct loans made to consumers. Approximately 30% of the consumer portfolio
consists of automobile loans, 48% in marine and RV loans and 9% in fixed rate home equity lending.

Revolving home equity loans, of which 98% are adjustable rate loans, totaled $460.2 million at year end
2007. An additional $685.8 million was outstanding in unused lines of credit, which can be drawn at the
discretion of the borrower. Home equity loans are secured mainly by second mortgages (and less frequently,
first mortgages) on residential property of the borrower. The underwriting terms for the home equity line
product permit borrowing availability, in the aggregate, generally up to 80% or 90% of the appraised value of
the collateral property, although a small percentage may permit borrowing up to 100% of appraised value.

Net charge-offs for total personal banking loans were $10.0 million in 2007 compared to $6.2 million in
2006. Net charge-offs increased to .50% of average personal banking loans in 2007 compared to .35% in 2006.
The increase in net charge-offs in 2007 compared to 2006 was mainly due to higher losses in the last half of
2007.

Consumer Credit Card

Total consumer credit card loans amounted to $780.2 million at December 31, 2007 and comprised 7.4%
of the Company’s total loan portfolio. The credit card portfolio is concentrated within regional markets served
by the Company. The Company offers a variety of credit card products, including affinity cards, rewards
cards, and standard and premium credit cards, and emphasizes its credit card relationship product, Special
Connections. Approximately 61% of the households in Missouri that own 2 Commerce credit card product also
maintain a deposit relationship with a subsidiary bank. Approximately 89% of the outstanding credit card
loans have a floating interest rate. Net charge-offs amounted to $23.7 million in 2007, which was a
$5.8 million increase over 2006. The increase in credit card loan net charge-offs was mainly due to higher
delinquencies and losses in the second half of 2007. The ratio of net loan charge-offs to total average loans of
3.6% in 2007 and 3.0% in 2006 remained below national loss averages. The Company refrains from national
pre-approved mailing techniques which have caused some of the problems experienced by credit card issuers.

Loans Held for Sale

Total loans held for sale at December 31, 2007 were $235.9 million, a decrease of $42.7 million, or 15.3%,
from $278.6 million at year end 2006. Loans classified as held for sale consist of residential morigage loans
and student loans.

Mortgage loans are fixed rate loans, which are sold in the secondary market, generally within three
months of origination, and totaled $6.9 million and $14.8 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

The Company originates loans to students attending colleges and universities and these loans are
normally sold to the secondary market when the student graduates and the loan enters into repayment
status. Student loans are primarily sold to the Missouri Higher Education Loan Authority and the Student
Loan Marketing Association, in addition to several other organizations. Nearly all of these loans are based on
variable rates. Student loans declined by $34.8 million, or 13.2%, to $229.0 million at year end 2007,
compared to $263.8 million at year end 2006. This decline was mainly due to planned loan sales from the
portfolio during 2007 which exceeded originations,
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Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has an established process to determine the amount of the allowance for loan losses, which
assesses the risks and losses inherent in its portfolio. This process provides an allowance consisting of a
specific allowance component based on certain individually evaluated loans and a general component based
on estimates of reserves needed for pools of loans with similar risk characteristics.

Loans subject to individual evaluation are defined by the Company as impaired, and generally consist of
business, construction and commercial real estate loans on non-accrual status. These loans are evaluated
individually for the impairment of repayment potential and collateral adequacy, and in conjunction with
current economic conditions and loss experience, allowances are estimated. Loans not individually evaluated
are aggregated and reserves are recorded using a consistent methodology that considers historical loan less
experience by loan type, delinquencies, current economic factors, loan risk ratings and industry
concentrations.

The Company’s estimate of the allowance for loan losses and the corresponding provision for loan losses
rests upon various judgments and assumptions made by management. Factors that influence these judg-
ments include past loan loss experience, current loan portfolio composition and characteristics, trends in
portfolio risk ratings, levels of non-performing assets, prevailing regional and national economic conditions,
and the Company’s ongoing examination process including that of its regulators. The Company has internal
credit administration and loan review staffs that continuously review loan quality and report the results of
their reviews and examinations to the Company’s senior management and Board of Directors. Such reviews
also assist management in establishing the level of the allowance, The Company’s subsidiary banks continue
to be subject to examination by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC) and examinations are
conducted throughout the year, targeting various segments of the loan portfolio for review. In addition to the
examination of subsidiary banks by the QCC, the parent holding company and its non-bank subsidiaries are
examined by the Federal Reserve Bank.

At December 31, 2007 the allowance for loan losses was $133.6 million, or 1,.26% of loans outstanding,
excluding held for sale, compared to a balance at year end 2006 of $131.7 million, or 1.36%. During 2007, the
allowance for loan losses increased $1.9 million as a result of two bank acquisitions occurring during the year.
The decline in the percentage of allowance to loans in 2007 was mainly due to a relatively stable allowance
balance coupled with loan growth in 2007. During 2007, the Company’s analysis of the allowance reflected
the fact that while loan losses did increase, the amount of loans delinquent 90 days or more remained near
2006 levels, while non-performing loans increased only $3.0 million. Also, the Company’s credit practices,
which favor conservative underwriting standards, collateralized positions and regular oversight, tend to
result in lower specific reserves assigned to non-performing loans. Additionally, the Company continually
makes enhancements to its allowance estimation methodology, which has resulted in a more consistent
balance during the past several years.

Net charge-offs totaled $42.7 million in 2007, and increased $16.7 million, or 64.0%, compared to net
charge-offs of $26.1 million in 2006. Net charge-offs related to business loans of $4.4 million in 2007 included
one large agribusiness loan which was charged down by $1.4 million. Construction loans incurred net charge-
offs of $2.0 million in 2007 compared to $62 thousand in 2006. Certain construction loans have experienced
lower credit quality in 2007 resulting from the slowdown in the housing market, which has affected the
construction business. Business real estate 1oans incurred net charge-offs of $1.1 million in 2007 compared to
a recovery position in 2006, and included one large charge-off of $1.6 million. Net charge-offs related to
personal banking increased by $3.8 million to $10.0 million, compared to net charge-offs of $6.2 million in
2006. Additionally, net charge-offs related to consumer credit cards increased $5.8 million, or 32.7%, to
$23.7 million in 2007 compared to $17.9 million in 2006. The ratio of net charge-offs to average loans
outstanding in 2007 was .42% compared to .29% in 2006 and .38% in 2005. The provision for loan losses was
$42.7 million, compared to a provision of $25.6 million in 2006 and $28.8 million in 2005.

Approximately 55.5% of total net loan charge-offs during 2007 were related to consumer credit card
loans. Net credit card charge-offs increased to 3.6% of average consumer credit card leans in 2007 compared
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to 3.0% in 2006. At year end 2007, the ratio of credit card loans 30 days or more delinquent to the total

outstanding balance was 2.8%, compared to 3.1% at year end 2006.

The Company considers the allowance for loan losses of $133.6 million adequate to cover losses inherent

in the loan portfolio at December 31, 2007.

The schedule which follows summarizes the relationship between loan balances and activity in the

allowance for loan losses:

Years Ended December 31

{Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Net loans outstanding at end of
year' $10,605,368 $9,681,520 $8,893,011 $8,294,353  $8,130,074
Average loans outstanding”’ $10,189,316  $9,105,432  $8,549,573  $8,117,608 _ $7,973,386
Allowance for loan losses:
Balance at beginning of year $ 131,730 $ 128447 $ 132,394 § 135221 $ 130,618
Additions to allowance through
charges to expense 42,732 25,649 28,785 30,351 40,676
Allowances of acquired
companies 1,857 3,688 — — 500
Loans charged off:
Business 5,822 1,343 1,083 8,047 9,297
Real estate — construction 2,049 62 — T —
Real estate — business 2,396 854 827 747 1,525
Real estate — personal 181 119 87 355 660
Personal banking™ 15,293 11,522 13,475 12,764 13,856
Consumer credit card 28,218 22,104 28,263 23,682 23,689
Overdrafts 4,909 4,940 3,485 2,551 4,830
Total loans charged off 58,868 40,944 47,220 48,153 53,857
Recovery of loans previously
charged off:
Business 1,429 2,166 4.099 2,405 4,192
Real estate — construction 37 — — 3 122
Real estate — business 1,321 890 330 978 1,009
Real estate — personal 42 27 57 138 196
Personal banking'® 5,309 5,286 4,675 5,288 5,386
Consumer credit card 4,520 4,250 3,851 4,249 4,202
Overdrafts 3,477 2,271 1,476 1,914 2,177
Total recoveries 16,135 14,890 14,488 14 975 17,284
Net loans charged off 42,733 26,054 32,732 33,178 36,573
Balance at end of year $ 133,586 $ 131,730 $ 128,447 $ 132394 $ 135,221
Ratio of net charge-offs to average
loans outstanding A42% .29% .38% A41% 46%
Ratio of allowance to loans at end
of year 1.26% 1.36% 1.44% 1.60% 1.66%
Ratio of provision to average loans
outstanding A2% 28% .34% 37% 51%

{A) Net of unearned income, before deducting allowance for loan losses, excluding loans held for sale

(B) Personal banking loans include consumer and home equity
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The following schedule provides a breakdown of the allowance for loan losses by loan category and the
percentage of each loan category to total loans outstanding at year end:
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Loan Loss % of Loans Loan Logs % of Loans Loan Loss % of Loans Loan Loss % of Loans Loan Loss % of Loans
Allowance to Total Allowance toTotal Allowance toTotal Allowance toTotal Allowance to Total
Allocation Loans  Allocation Loans  Allocation Loans  Allocation  Loans  Allocation  Loans

Business $ 29,392 30.7% % 28,529 29.5% $ 26,211 28.4% $ 39,312 27.0% $ 39411 25.8%
RE - construction 8,607 6.3 4,605 6.8 3,375 4.8 1,420 5.2 4,717 53
RE —business 14,842 21.1 19,343 222 19,432 218 15,910 21.0 20,971 23.0
RE - personal 2,389 14.5 2,243 15.3 4,815 15.3 7,620 16.1 4,423 16.4
Personal banking 80,450 18.9 23,690 19.4 25,364 23.2 22,652 23.6 21,793 22.8
Consumer credit card 44,307 74 39,9656 6.7 35,513 6.6 28,895 6.8 26,544 6.5
Overdrafts 2,351 .1 3,592 1 2,739 1 4,895 3 4,796 2
Unallocated 1,348 — 9,763 — 10,998 — 11,690 — 12,566 —
Total $133,586 100.0% $131,730 100.0% $128,447 100.0% $132,394 100.0% $135221 100.0%

Risk Elements Of Loan Portfolio

Management reviews the loan portfolio continuously for evidence of problem loans. During the ordinary
course of business, management becomes aware of borrowers that may not be able to meet the contractual
requirements of loan agreements. Such loans are placed under close supervision with consideration given to
placing the loan on non-accrual status, the need for an additional allowance for loan loss, and (if appropriate)
partial or full loan charge-off. Loans are placed on non-accrual status when management does not expect to
collect payments consistent with acceptable and agreed upon terms of repayment. Loans that are 90 days
past due as to principal and/or interest payments are generally placed on non-accrual, unless they are both
well-secured and in the process of collection, or they are 1-4 family first mortgage loans or consumer loans
that are exempt under regulatory rules from being classified as non-accrual, Consumer installment loans
and related accrued interest are normally charged down to the fair value of related collateral (or are charged
off in full if no collateral) once the loans are more than 120 days delinquent. Credit card loans and the related
accrued interest are charged off when the receivable is more than 180 days past due. After a loan is placed on
non-accrual status, any interest previously accrued but not yet collected is reversed against current income.
Interest is included in income only as received and only after all previous loan charge-offs have been
recovered, so long as management is satisfied there is no impairment of collateral values. The loan is
returned to accrual status only when the borrower has brought all past due principal and interest payments
current and, in the opinion of management, the borrower has demonstrated the ability to make future
payments of principal and interest as scheduled.
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The following schedule shows non-performing assets and loans past due 90 days and still accruing

Total past due 90 days and still aceruing interest $20,886 $20,376 $14,088 $13,067 $20,901

The effect on interest income in 2007 of loans on non-accrual status at year end is presented below:

interest.
December 31
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Non-accrual loans:
Business $ 4,700 $ 5, 808 $ 5916 $ 9,547 $19,162
Real estate — construction 7,769 — 685 795
Real estate — business 5,628 9,845 3,149 6,558 9,372
Real estate — personal 1,095 384 261 458 2,447
Consumer 547 551 519 370 747
Total non-accrual loans 19,739 16,708 9,845 17,618 32,523
Real estate acquired in foreclosure 13,678 1,515 1,868 1,157 1,162
Total non-performing assets $33,417 $18,223 $11,713 $18,775 $33,685
Non-performing assets as a percentage of total loans 32% .19% 13% 23% A1%
Non-performing assets as a percentage of total assets 21% 12% .08% 13% 24%
Past due 90 days and still accruing interest:
Business $ 1,427 $ 2814 $ 1,026 $ 357 § 817
Real estate — construction 768 593 38
Real estate — business 281 1,336 1, 075 520 3,934
Real estate — personal 5,131 3,994 2,998 3,165 5,750
| Consumer 1,914 1255 1,069 916 1,079
' Home equity 700 659 429 317 218
| Student 1 1 74 199 1,252
Consumer credit card 10,664 9,724 7,417 7,311 7,735
Overdrafis - — — 282 78
(In thousands)
Gross amount of interest that would have been recorded at original rate $2,987
Interest that was reflected in income 690
: Interest income not recognized $2,297

Total non-accrual loans at year end 2007 rose $3.0 million over 2006 levels. The increase resulted mainly
from an increase of $7.6 million in construction real estate non-accrual loans, partly offset by declines in
business and business real estate non-accrual loans of $1.1 million and $4.2 million, respectively. Foreclosed
real estate increased to a total of $13.7 million at year end 2007. This balance included $8.7 million in
undeveloped land and residential lots acquired from a single borrower; the undeveloped land is currently
under a sale contract which is expected to close in the first half of 2008. The balance also included $3.3 million
related to a warehouse building. Total non-performing assets remain low compared to the Company’s peers,
with the non-performing loans to total loans ratio at .19%. Loans past due 90 days and still accruing interest
increased $510 thousand at year end 2007 compared to 20086.

In addition to the non-accrual loans mentioned above, the Company also has identified loans for which
management has concerns about the ability of the borrowers to meet existing repayment terms. These loans
are primarily classified as substandard for regulatory purposes under the Company’s internal rating system.
The loans are generally secured by either real estate or other borrower assets, reducing the potential for loss
should they become non-performing. Although these loans are generally identified as potential problem
loans, they may never become non-performing. Such loans totaled $127.2 million at December 31, 2007
compared with $67.1 million at December 31, 2006. The balance at December 31, 2007 included $40.5 million
in business real estate loans, $36.7 million in construction real estate loans, and $29.2 million in business
loans.
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Within the loan portfolio, certain types of loans are considered at higher risk of loss due to their terms,
location, or special conditions, Certain personal real estate products have contractual features that could
increase credit exposure in a market of declining real estate prices, when interest rates are steadily
increasing, or when a geographic area experiences an economic downturn. Loans might be considered at
higher risk when 1) loan terms require a minimum monthly payment that covers only interest, or
2) loan-to-collateral value (LTV) ratios are above 80%, with no private mortgage insurance,

Personal Real Estate Loans

Out of the Company’s $1.5 billion personal real estate loan portfolio, approximately 3.0% of the current
outstandings are structured with interest only payments. Such loans are normally made to private banking,
high-net worth customers and marketed with other products. At December 31, 2007, these loans had a
weighted average LTV of 70%, and most had additional collateral pledged to secure the loan. Private
mortgage insurance is used at times on loans with LTV’s greater than 80%. Approximately 11.9% of personal
real estate loans with LTV's greater than 80% do not have such insurance; however, these loans had high
credit scores, averaging 734. The following table presents information about personal real estate loans with
these risk characteristics for 2007 and 2006.

Principal Principal
Outstanding at Qutstanding at
December 31 % of Loan December 31 % of Loan
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 Portfolio 2006 Portfolio
Loans with interest only payments $ 42,309 3.0% $ 32175 2.3%
Loans with no insurance and LTV:
Between 80% and 90% 94,681 6.6 84,588 59
Between 90% and 100% 72,438 5.1 66,351 4.7
Over 100% 3,221 2 6,953 .5
Over 80% LTV with no insurance 170,340 11.9 157,892 11.1
Total loan portfolio from which above loans were
identified 1,431,172 1,428,475

Revolving Home Equity Loans

The Company also has revolving home equity loans that are generally collateralized by residential real
estate. Most of these loans (93.4%) are written with terms requiring interest only monthly payments. These
loans are offered in three main product lines: LTV up to 80%, 80% to 90%, and 90% to 100%. The following
tables break out the year end outstanding balances by product for 2007 and 2006.

Principal Unused Portion
Outstanding at New Lines of Available Lines Balances
December 31 Originated During at December 31 Over 30
{Dollars in thousands) 2007 * 2007 * 2007 *  Days Past Due *
Loans with interest only
payments $429875 93.4% $193,158 42.0% $668,686 145.3% $2,764 6%
Loans with LTV:
Between 80% and 90% 57,5687 12.5 20,998 4.6 50,406 11.0 677 2
Between 90% and
100% 30,451 6.6 17,310 3.8 22,794 5.0 172 —
Over 80% LTV 88,038 19.1 38,308 84 73,200 16.0 849 2

Total loan portfolio from
which above loans
were identified 460,200 203,454 685,800

* Percentage of total principal outstanding revolving home equity loans of $460.2 million at December 31, 2007,
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Principal Unused Portion

Outstanding at New Lines of Available Lines Balances
December 31 Originated During at December 31 Qver 30
(Dollars in thousands) 2006 * 2006 * 2006 * Days Past Due *
Loans with interest only
payments $407,539 92.2% $175,226 39.7% $621,977 140.8% $2,832 6%
Loans with LTV:
Between 80% and 90% 55,367 12,5 18,311 4.1 47 559 10.8 468 1
Between 90% and
100% 26,830 6.1 14,141 3.2 17,746 4.0 112 —
Over 80% LTV 82,197 186 32,452 7.3 65,305 14.8 580 1

Total loan portfolio from
which above loans
were identified 441,851 201,864 646,700

* Percentage of total principal outstanding revolving home equity loans of $441.9 million at December 31, 2006.

Other Loans Collateralized by Residential Real Estate

In addition to the residential real estate mortgage loans and the revolving floating rate line product
discussed above, Commerce offers a third choice to those consumers looking for a fixed rate loan and a fixed
maturity date. This fixed rate home equity loan, typically for home repair or remodeling, is an alternative for
individuals who want to finance a specific project or purchase, and decide to lock in 2 specific monthly
payment over a defined period. This portfolio of loans totaled $152 million and $134 million at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. Very few of these loans are made without mortgage insurance and at more than
80% LTV, as was true at December 31, 2007 when there were no outstanding balances in that category.
Occasionally these loans are written with interest only monthly payments and a balloon payoff at maturity;
there were only 10 loans carrying 2.3% of the outstanding principal in this portfolic with such terms at year
end. The delinquency history on this product has been very positive, as only $1.3 million, or .9%, and $973
thousand, or .7%, of the portfolic was over 30 days past due at year end 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Management does not believe these loans collateralized by real estate represent any unusual concen-
trations of risk, as evidenced by low net charge-offs in 2007 of $139 thousand in personal real estate loans,
$136 thousand in fixed rate home equity loans and $446 thousand in revolving home equity loans. The
amount of any increased potential loss on high LTV agreements relates mainly to amounts advanced that are
in excess of the 80% collateral calculation, not the entire approved line. The majority of the personal real
estate portfolio (95.1%}) consists of loans written within the Company’s familiar branch network territories of
Missouri, Kansas, and Illinois. Customer's credit scoring requirements also play an important part in credit
line approvals and they can be increased as another means of mitigating risk when considering high LTV
agreements. The Company offers no subprime loan products and has purchased no brokered loans.

There were no lean concentrations of multiple borrowers in similar activities at December 31, 2007
which exceeded 10% of total loans. The Company’s aggregate legal lending limit to any single or related
borrowing entities is in excess of $204 million. The largest exposures, consisting of either outstanding
balances or available lines of credit, generally do not exceed $70 million.

Investment Securities Analysis

Investment securities are comprised of securities which are available for sale, non-marketable, and held
for trading. During 2007, total investment securities decreased $230.6 million to $3.2 billion (excluding
unrealized gains/losses) compared to $3.5 billion at the previous year end. The decrease was mainly due to
sales of asset-backed (home equity, auto and credit card) securities, state and municipal obligations, and
publicly traded stock, resulting in proceeds of $239.5 million. During 2007, securities of $1.1 billion were
purchased, excluding those acquired in bank acquisitions, and were comprised of $27.9 million in state and
municipal obligations, $548.4 million in mortgage-backed securities, $195.1 million in other asset-backed
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securities, and $220.0 in U.S. government and federal agency securities. Maturities and paydowns amounted
to $1.1 billion. The average tax equivalent yield on total investment securities was 4.75% in 2007 and 4.41%
in 2006.

At December 31, 2007, the fair value of available for sale securities was $3.2 billion, and included a net
unrealized gain in fair value of $48.4 million, compared to a net gain of $17.2 million at December 31, 2006.
The amount of the related after tax unrealized gain reported in stockholders’ equity was $30.0 million at year
end 2007. The unrealized gain in fair value was the result of unrealized gains of $52.0 million on marketable
equity securities held by the Parent, partly offset by unrealized losses of $4.3 millien in the bank portfolios.
Most of the unrealized loss in fair value in the bank portfolios related to mortgage and other asset-backed
securities. The fair value of the available for sale portfolio will vary according to changes in market interest
rates and the mix and duration of investments in the portfolio. Available for sale securities which mature
during the next 12 months total approximately $586 million, and management expects these proceeds to
meet the expected liquidity needs of the Company.

Available for sale investment securities at year end for the past two years are shown below:

December 31

{In thousands) 2007 2006
Amortized Cost
U.S. government and federal agency obligations® $ 359,118 $ 480,343
State and municipal obligations 498,628 593,816
Mortgage-backed securities 1,965,290 1,809,741
Other asset-backed securities 182,064 358,114
Other debt securities 21,397 36,528
Equity securities 90,083 119,723
Total available for sale investment securities $3,116,580 $3,398,265
Fair Value
U.S. government and federal agency obligations* $ 360,317 $ 474,218
State and municipal obligations 503,363 594,824
Mortgage-backed securities 1,960,120 1,782,443
Other asset-backed securities 180,365 354,465
Other debt securities 21,327 36,009
Equity securities 139,528 173,481
Total available for sale investment securities $3,165,020 $3,415,440

* This category includes obligations of government sponsored enterprises, such as FNMA and FHLMC,
which are not backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government. Such obligations
are separately disclosed in Note 4 on Investment Securities in the consolidated financial statements.

Many of the Company’s investments in mortgage-backed securities are collateralized by U.S. federal
agency securities. At December 31, 2007, these comprised 78% of the total mortgage-backed securities. The
Company’s investment securities portfolio does not have any exposure to subprime or collateralized debt
obligation instruments.

Other available for sale debt securities, as shown in the table above, include corporate bonds, notes and
commercial paper. Available for sale equity securities are comprised of short-term investments in money
market mutual funds and publicly traded stock, which totaled $58.9 miltion and $80.6 million, respectively,
at December 31, 2007. These investments are primarily held by the Parent.

A summary of maturities by category of investment securities and the weighted average yield for each
range of maturities as of December 31, 2007, is presented in Note 4 on Investment Securities in the
consolidated financial statements. At December 31, 2007, mortgage and asset-backed securities comprised
65% of the investment portfolio with a weighted average yield of 4.97% and an estimated average maturity of
2.8 years; state and municipal obligations comprised 15% with a weighted average tax equivalent yield of
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3.72% and an estimated average maturity of 4.0 years; and U.S. government and federal agency obligations
comprised 11% with a weighted average yield of 4.03% and an estimated average maturity of 1.0 years.

Non-marketable securities, which totaled $105.5 million at December 31, 2007, included $60.2 million in
Federal Reserve Bank stock and Federal Home Loan Bank (Des Moines) stock held by bank subsidiaries in
accordance with debt and regulatory requirements. These are restricted securities which, lacking a market,
are carried at cost. Other non-marketable securities also include private equity and venture capital securities
which are carried at estimated fair value.

The Company engages in private equity and venture capital activities through direct private equity
investments and through three private equity/venture capital subsidiaries. The subsidiaries hold invest-
ments in various portfolio concerns, which are carried at fair value and totaled $37.6 million at December 31,
2007. Outside ownership interests in these partnerships were $2.1 million at December 31, 2007. The
Company plans to fund an additional $11.1 million to the newest of these partnerships in the future. In
addition to investments held by its private equity/venture capital subsidiaries, the Parent directly holds
investments in several private equity concerns, which totaled $7.0 million at year end 2007. Most of the
venture capital and private equity investments are not readily marketable. While the nature of these
investments carries a higher degree of risk than the normal lending portfolio, this risk is mitigated by the
overall size of the investments and oversight provided by management, which believes the potential for long-
term gaing in these investments outweighs the potential risks.

Non-marketable securities at year end for the past two years are shown below:

December 31

{In thousands) 2007 2006

Debt securities $ 17,055 $17,225
Equity securities 88,462 56,982
Total non-marketable investment securities $105,517 $74,207

Deposits and Borrowings

Deposits are the primary funding source for the Company’s banks, and are acquired from a broad base of
local markets, including both individual and corporate customers. Total deposits were $12.6 billion at
December 31, 2007, compared to $11.7 billion last year, reflecting an increase of $806.7 million, or 6.9%.
Average deposits grew by $758.2 million, or 6.8%, in 2007 compared to 2006 with most of this growth centered
in money market accounts and certificates of deposit. The Company’s premium money market deposits grew
on average by $260.1 million, or 10.9%, in 2007 compared to 2006, and other interest bearing transaction and
savings accounts grew by $18.6 million. Certificates of deposit with balances under $100,000 grew on average
by $282.1 million, or 13.6%, while certificates of deposit over $100,000 grew $192.0 million, or 14.9%. The
recent bank acquisitions in 2007 and 2006 contributed $362.8 million to the growth in average deposits
during 2007,

The following table shows year end deposits by type as a percentage of total deposits.

December 31
2007 2006

Non-interest bearing demand 11.3% 11.2%
Savings, interest checking and money market 57.0 58.6
Time open and C.D.’s of less than $100,000 18.9 196
Time open and C.D.’s of $100,000 and over 12,8 10.6
Total deposits 100.0% 100.0%

Core deposits (defined as all non-interest and interest bearing deposits, excluding short-term C.D.’s of
$100,000 and over) supported 75% of average earning assets in 2007 and 77% in 2008. Average balances by
major deposit category for the last six years appear at the end of this discussion. A maturity schedule of time
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deposits outstanding at December 31, 2007 is included in Note 7 on Deposits in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company’s primary borrowings consist of federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements.
Balances in these accounts can fluctuate significantly on a day-to-day basis, and generally have overnight
maturities. Balances outstanding at year end 2007 were $1.2 billion, a $532.1 million decrease from
$1.8 billion outstanding at year end 2006. Most of this decline occurred in federal funds purchased, as
the Company reduced its reliance on these borrowings in the fourth quarter of 2007. On an average basis,
federal funds purchased declined $75.9 million in 2007 compared to 2006, which was offset by an increase of
$316.9 million in repurchase agreements. The average rate paid on federal funds purchased and repurchase
agreements was 4.92% during 2007 and 4.82% during 2006.

Most of the Company’s long-term debt is comprised of fixed rate advances from the Federal Home Loan
Bank (FHLB). As the Company diversified its funding sources during 2007, these borrowings rose from
$28.2 million at December 31, 2006 to $561.5 million outstanding at December 31, 2007. Approximately
$489.5 million of the outstanding balance is due or may be called for early repayment in 2008 through 2010.
The average rate paid on FHLB advances was 4.68% during 2007 and 4.88% during 2006. The weighted
average year end rate on outstanding FHLB advances at December 31, 2007 was 4.52%.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity Management

Liquidity is managed within the Company in order to satisfy cash flow requirements of deposit and
borrowing customers while at the same time meeting its own cash flow needs. The Company maintains its
liquidity position by providing a variety of sources including:

s A portfolio of liquid assets including marketable investment securities and overnight investments,
* A large customer deposit base and limited exposure to large, volatile certificates of deposit,

* Lower long-term borrowings that might place a demand on Company cash flow,

Relatively low loan to deposit ratio promoting strong liquidity,

Excellent debt ratings from both Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s national rating services, and
¢ Available borrowing capacity from outside sources.

The Company’s most liquid assets include available for sale marketable investment securities, federal
funds sold, and securities purchased under agreements to resell (resale agreements). At December 31, 2007
and 20086, such assets were as follows:

(In thousands) 2007 2006

Available for sale investment securities $3,165,020 $3,415,440
Federal funds sold and resale agreements 855,165 527,816
Total $3,820,185 $3,943,256

Federal funds sold and resale agreements normally have overnight maturities and are used for general
daily liquidity purposes. The Company’s available for sale investment portfolio has maturities of approx-
imately $586 million which come due during 2008 and offers substantial resources to meet either new loan
demand or reductions in the Company’s deposit funding base. Furthermore, in the normal course of business
the Company pledges portions of its investment securities portfolio to secure public fund deposits, securities
sold under agreements to repurchase, trust funds, and borrowing capacity at the Federal Reserve. Total
pledged investment securities for these purposes comprised 63% of the available for sale investment portfolio,
leaving approximately $1.2 billion of unpledged securities.

Additionally, the Company maintains a large base of core customer deposits, defined as demand, interest
checking, savings, and money market deposit accounts. At December 31, 2007, such deposits totaled
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$8.6 billion and represented 68% of the Company’s total deposits. At December 31, 2006 these deposits totaled
$8.2 billion. These core deposits are normally less volatile, often with customer relationships tied to other
products offered by the Company promoting long lasting relationships and stable funding sources. Time open
' and certificates of deposit of $100,000 or greater totaled $1.6 billion and $1.3 billion at December 31, 2007 and
| 2008, respectively. These deposits are normally considered more volatile and higher costing, and comprised
12.8% and 10.7% of total deposits at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

At December 31, 2007 and 20086, the Company’s borrowings were comprised of federal funds purchased,
securities sold under agreements to repurchase, and longer-term debt as follows:

(In thousands) 2007 2006

Federal funds purchased $ 126,077 $ 715475
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 1,113,142 1,055,807
QOther borrowings 583,636 53,934
Total $1,822,855 $1,825,216

Federal funds purchased are funds generally borrowed overnight and are obtained mainly from
upstream correspondent banks to assist in balancing overall bank liquidity needs. Securities sold under
agreements to repurchase are comprised mainly of non-insured customer funds, normally with maturities of
90 days or less, and the Company pledges portions of its own investment portfolio to secure these deposits.
These funds are offered to customers wighing to earn interest in highly liquid balances and are used by the
Company as a funding source considered to be stable, but short-term in nature,

The Company’s other borrowings are comprised mainly of advances from the FHLB, debentures funded
by trust preferred securities, and debt related to the Company’s venture capital business. At December 31,
2007 and 2006, debt from the FHLB amounted to $561.5 million and $28.2 million, respectively. The increase
in FHLB borrowings during 2007 was due to new advances of $542.0 million. Nearly all outstanding advances
have fixed interest rates. Advances of $10.6 million mature in 2008, while an additional $200.0 million may
be called for early repayment during 2008. Debt called or maturing in 2008 may be refinanced or may be
repaid with funds generated by maturities of loans or investment securities, or by deposit growth or other
types of borrowings. The overall long-term debt position of the Company is small relative to the Company’s
overall liability position.

In addition to the sources and uses of funds noted above, the Company had an average loans to deposits
ratio of 88% at December 31, 2007, which is considered in the banking industry to be a conservative measure
of good liquidity. Also, the Company receives cutside ratings from both Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s on
both the consolidated company and its lead bank, Commerce Bank, N.A. (Missouri). These ratings are as
follows:

Standard & Poor's  Moody’s

Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Counterparty rating A-1 Aa2
Commercial paper rating A-1
Short-term P1
Commerce Bank, N, A. .
Counterparty rating A+
Senior long-term rating A+
Long-term bank deposits Aa2
Issuer rating Aa2
Short-term ' P-1

The Company considers these ratings to be indications of a sound capital base and good liquidity, and
believes that these ratings would enable its commercial paper to be readily marketable should the need arise.
No commercial paper was outstanding over the past three years. The Company’s excellent credit standing
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has resulted in lead bank ratings which are significantly higher than those of many of its peers in the
community banking arena.

In addition to the sources of liquidity as noted above, the Company has temporary borrowing capacity at
the Federal Reserve discount window of $1.1 billion, for which it has pledged $1.1 billion in loans and
$246.0 million in investment securities. Also, because of its lack of significant long-term debt, the Company
believes that, through its Capital Markets Group or in other public debt markets, it could generate additional
liquidity from sources such as jumbo certificates of deposit, privately-placed corporate notes or other debt.

The cash flows from the operating, investing and financing activities of the Company resulted in a net
increase in cash and cash equivalents of $173.9 million in 2007, as reported in the consolidated statements of
cash flows on page 59 of this report. Operating activities, consisting mainly of net income adjusted for certain
non-cash items, provided cash flow of $335.7 million and has historically been a stable source of funds.
Investing activities, consisting mainly of purchases and maturities of available for sale investment securities
and changes in the level of the Company’s loan portfolio, used total cash of $578.4 million in 2007. Investing
activities are somewhat unique to financial institutions in that, while large sums of cash flow are normally
used to fund growth in investment securities, loans, or other bank assets, they are normally dependent on the
financing activities described below.

Financing activities provided total cash of $416.6 million, resulting from a $632.2 million increase in
deposits and additional FHLB borrowings of $542.0 million. Partly offsetting these cash inflows were a
decline in short-term borrowings of $543.0 million, treasury stock purchases of $128.6 million, and cash
dividend payments of $68.9 million. Future short-term liquidity needs for daily operations are not expected to
vary significantly and the Company maintains adequate liquidity to meet these cash flows. The Company’s
sound equity base, along with its low debt level, common and preferred stock availability, and excellent debt
ratings, provide several alternatives for future financing. Future acquisitions may utilize partial funding
through one or more of these options.

Cash used for treasury stock purchases, net of cash received in connection with stock programs, and
dividend payments were as follows:

(In millions) 2007 2006 2005
Purchase of treasury stock $128.6 $135.0 $2345
Exercise of stock options and sales to affiliate non-

employee directors {13.7) (7.3) (18.4)
Cash dividends 68.9 65.8 63.4
Total $183.8 $193.5 $279.5

The Parent faces unique liquidity constraints due to legal limitations on its ability to borrow funds from
its banking subsidiaries. The Parent obtains funding to meet its obligations from two main sources: dividends
received from bank and non-bank subsidiaries (within regulatory limitations) and from management fees
charged to subsidiaries as reimbursement for services provided by the Parent, as presented below:

(In millions) 2007 2006 2005

Dividends received from subsidiaries $179.56 $140.5 $220.0
Management fees 39.1 37.7 33.0
Total $218.6 $178.2 $253.0

These sources of funds are used mainly to purchase treasury stock, pay cash dividends on outstanding
common stock, and pay general operating expenses. At December 31, 2007, the Parent’s available for sale
investment securities totaled $121.5 million, at fair value. The portfolio is liquid, and consisted of $58.8 mil-
lion in money market mutual funds and $61.2 million in publicly traded common stock. To support its various
funding commitments, the Parent maintains a $20.0 million line of credit with its lead subsidiary bank.
Borrowings under the line were $10.0 million at December 31, 2007.
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Company senior management is responsible for measuring and monitoring the liquidity profile of the
organization with oversight by the Company’s Asset/Liability Committee (ALCQ). This is done through a
series of controls, including a written Contingency Funding Policy and risk monitoring procedures, including
daily, weekly and monthly reporting. In addition, the Company prepares forecasts which project changes in
the balance sheet affecting liquidity, and which allow the Company to better plan for forecasted changes.

Capital Management

The Company masintains strong regulatory capital ratios, including those of its principal banking
subsidiaries, in excess of the “well-capitalized” guidelines under federal banking regulations. The Company’s
capital ratios at the end of the last three years are as follows:

Well-Capitalized

Regulatory
2007 2006 2005 Guidelines
Risk-based capital ratios:
Tier I capital 10.31% 11.25% 12.21% 6.00%
Total capital 11.49 1256 13.63 10.00
Leverage ratio 8.76 9.05 9.43 5.00
Common equity/assets 9.54 9.68 9.87
Dividend payout ratio 33.76 30.19 28.92

The components of the Company’s regulatory risked-based capital and risk-weighted assets at the end of
the last three years are as follows:

(In thousands) 2007 2006 20056
Regulatory risk-based capital:
Tier I capital $ 1,375,035 $ 1,345,378 $ 1,295,898
Tier II capital 157,154 157,008 150,510
Total capital 1,532,189 1,502,386 1,446,408
Total risk-weighted assets 13,330,968 11,959,757 10,611,322

In February 2008, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to purchase additional shares of
common stock under its repurchase program, which brought the total purchase authorization to
3,000,000 shares. The Company has routinely used these shares to fund the Company’s annual 5% stock
dividend and various stock compensation programs. During 2007, approximately 2,699,000 shares were
acquired under a prior Board authorization at an average price of $47.66 per share.

The Company’s common stock dividend policy reflects its earnings outlook, desired payout ratios, the
need to maintain adequate capital levels and alternative investment options. Per share cash dividends paid
by the Company increased 7.1% in 2007 compared with 2008,

Commitments, Contractual Obligations, and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Various commitments and contingent liabilities arise in the normal course of business, which are not
required to be recorded on the balance sheet. The most significant of these are loan commitments, totaling
$8.0 billion (including approximately $3.8 billion in unused approved credit card lines), and the contractual
amount of standby letters of credit, totaling $441.4 million at December 31, 2007. The Company has various
other financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk, such as commercial letters of credit and commit-
ments to purchase and sell when-issued securities. Since many commitments expire unused or only partially
used, these totals do not necessarily reflect future cash requirements. Management does not anticipate any
material losses arising from commitments and contingent liabilities and believes there are no material
commitments to extend credit that represent risks of an unusual nature.
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A table summarizing contractual cash obligations of the Company at December 31, 2007 and the
expected timing of these payments follows:

Payments Due by Period
After One Year After Three After
In One Year  Through Three Years Through Five
(In thousands) or Less Years Five Years Years Total

Long-term debt obligations, including
structured repurchase agreements* §$§ 10,603 § 878,910 $ 75,529 $118,594 $1,083,636

Operating lease obligations 5,783 9,110 5,524 24,053 44 470
Purchase obligations 25,289 21,391 15,319 5,500 67,499
Time open and C.D.s* 3,673,515 260,408 48,018 396 3,982,337
Total $3,715,190 $1,169,819 $144.390 $148,543 $5,177,942

* Includes principal payments only

As of December 31, 2007, the Company has unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would impact
the effective tax rate in future periods. Due to the uncertainty of the amounts to be ultimately paid as well as
the timing of such payments, all uncertain tax liabilities that have not been paid have been excluded from the
table above. Further detail on the impact of income taxes is located in Note 9 of the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company has investments in several low-income housing partnerships within the area served by the
banking affiliates. At December 31, 2007, these investments totaled $3.1 million and were recorded as other
assets in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. These partnerships supply funds for the construction
and operation of apartment complexes that provide affordable housing to that segment of the population with
lower family income. If these developments successfully attract a specified percentage of residents falling in
that lower income range, state and/or federal income tax credits are made available to the partners. The tax
credits are normally recognized over ten years, and they play an important part in the anticipated yield from
these investments. In order to continue receiving the tax credits each year over the life of the partnership, the
low-income residency targets must be maintained. Under the terms of the partnership agreements, the
Company has a commitment to fund a specified amount that will be due in instaliments over the life of the
agreements, which ranges from 10 to 15 years. These unfunded commitments are recorded as liabilities on
the Company’s consolidated balance sheet, and aggregated $2.3 million at December 31, 2007.

The Company periodically purchases various state tax credits arising from third-party property rede-
velopment. Most of the tax credits are resold to third parties, although some may be retained for use by the
Company. During 2007, purchases and sales of tax credits amounted to $38.7 million and $40.5 million,
respectively, generating combined gains on sales and tax savings of $2.0 million. At December 31, 2007, the
Company had outstanding purchase commitments totaling $102.6 million.

The Parent has investments in several private equity concerns which are classified as non-marketable
securities in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. Under the terms of the agreements with six of these
concerns, the Parent has unfunded commitments outstanding of $2.1 million at December 31, 2007. The
Parent also has commitments to fund $11.1 million to venture capital subsidiaries over the next several
years.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The Company’s Asset/Liability Management Committee (ALCO) measures and manages the Company’s
interest rate risk on a monthly basis to identify trends and establish strategies to maintain stability in
earnings throughout various rate environments. Analytical modeling techniques provide management
insight inte the Company’s exposure to changing rates. These techniques include net interest income
simulations and market value analyses. Management has set guidelines specifying acceptable limits within
which net interest income and market value may change under various rate change scenarios. These
measurement tools indicate that the Company is currently within acceptable risk guidelines as set by
management.
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The Company’s main interest rate measurement tool, income simulations, projects net interest income
under various rate change scenarios in order to quantify the magnitude and timing of potential rate-related
changes. Income simulations are able to capture option risks within the balance sheet where expected cash
flows may be altered under various rate environments. Modeled rate movements include “shocks, ramps and
twists”. Shocks are intended to capture interest rate risk under extreme conditions by immediately shifting
rates up and down, while ramps measure the impact of gradual changes and twists measure yield curve risk.
The size of the balance sheet i3 assumed to remain constant so that results are not influenced by growth
predictions. The table below shows the expected effect that gradual basis point shifts in the LIBOR/swap
curve over a twelve month period would have on the Company’s net interest income, given a static balance
sheet.

December 31, 2007 September 30, 2007 December 31, 2006
Increase % of Net Interest Increase % of Net Interest Increase % of Net Interest
(Dollars in millions) (Decrease) Income (Decrease) Income (Decrease) Income
200 basis points rising $23 A40% $(1.2) (.21)% $(4.3) (.80)%
100 basis points rising 2.0 34 — — 9 (17
100 basis points falling (1.2) (.20) (1.6) (.29) (.6) (.10)
200 basis points falling (5.5) (.95) (2.8) (.50) (7 (.13)

The Company also employs a sophisticated simulation technique known as a stochastic income simu-
lation. This technique allows management to see a range of results from hundreds of income simulations. The
stochastic simulation creates a vector of potential rate paths around the market’s best guess (forward rates)
concerning the future path of interest rates and allows rates to randomly follow paths throughout the vector.
This allows for the modeling of non-biased rate forecasts around the market consensus. Results give
management insight into a likely range of rate-related risk as well as worst and best-case rate scenarios.

The Company also uses market value analyses to help identify longer-term risks that may reside on the
balance sheet. This is considered a secondary risk measurement tool by management. The Company
measures the market value of equity as the net present value of all asset and liability cash flows discounted
along the current LIBOR/swap curve plus appropriate market risk spreads. It is the change in the market
value of equity under different rate environments, or effective duration, that gives insight into the magnitude
of risk to future earnings due to rate changes. Market value analyses also help management understand the
price sensitivity of non-marketable bank products under different rate environments.

The Company’s modeling of interest rate risk continues to show there is modest interest rate risk
exposure. The table reflects a decrease in the exposure of the Company’s net interest income to rising rates at
year end 2007, but increasing exposure to falling rates. At December 31, 2007, the Company calculated that a
gradual increase in rates of 100 basis points would increase net interest income by $2.0 million, or .34% of
total net interest income, compared with a reduction of $900 thousand calculated at December 31, 2008. Also,
a 200 basis point gradual rise in rates calculated at December 31, 2007 would increase net interest income by
$2.3 million, or .40%, up from a reduction of $4.3 million last year. The Company’s exposure to falling rates
increased at December 31, 2007, as under a 100 basis point falling rate scenario, net interest income would
decrease $1.2 million compared to a $600 thousand decline at December 31, 2006. In addition, under a
200 basis point decrease, net interest income would decline $5.5 million compared with $700 thousand in the
prior year.

As shown in the table above, the Company’s interest rate simulations prepared at December 31, 2007
reflect a reduction in risk to rising interest rates when compared to the same period in the prior year. This is
partly the result of higher average loan balances in 2007 compared to the previous year (average increase of
$1.1 billion) which contain both variable and fixed rate loans, but with relatively short maturities. Addi-
tionally, the Company’s portfolio of investment securities, which have mainly fixed rates, decreased on
average $189.8 million during 2007, thus reducing the percentage of overall fixed rate assets. Federal funds
sold and resale agreements, which generally have overnight maturities, increased on average $227.8 million,
allowing for greater re-pricing opportunities in a rising rate environment. Growth in average interest
bearing deposits during 2007 totaled $752.9 million but was mostly comprised of certificates of deposit with
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fixed rates. The same factors which reduced interest rate risk in a rising rate environment also increased
overall risk in a falling rate environment, leaving the Company subject to lower levels of net interest income.
The overall increase in 2007 in average loans mentioned above allows for faster re-pricing downward under
falling rate assumptions and, while falling rates can generally lower overall interest costs, the fact that many
of the Company’s core deposits are already at low rates suggests that large decreases in rates may not be
realized on certain deposit products. Also, the increases in average balances of fixed rate certificates of
deposit suggests that a lower rate environment will only slowly reduce interest costs on these instruments.
Mitigating some of these effects of lower rates is a relatively large investment securities portfolioc which re-
prices slowly, coupled with a higher average balance of borrowings of federal funds purchased and repurchase
agreements which re-price daily.

Through review and oversight by the ALCO, the Company attempts to engage in strategies that
neutralize interest rate risk as much as possible. The Company’s balance sheet remains well-diversified
with moderate interest rate risk and is well-positioned for future growth. The use of derivative products is
limited and the deposit base is strong and stable. The loan to deposit ratio is still at relatively low levels,
which should present the Company with opportunities to fund future loan growth at reasonable costs.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company maintains an overall interest rate risk management strategy that permits the use of -
derivative instruments to modify exposure to interest rate risk. The Company’s interest rate risk manage-
ment strategy includes the ability to modify the re-pricing characteristics of certain assets and liabilities so
that changes in interest rates do not adversely affect the net interest margin and cash flows. Interest rate
swaps are used on a limited basis as part of this strategy. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had entered
into two interest rate swaps with a notional amount of $13.4 million which are designated as fair value
hedges of certain fixed rate loans. The Company also sells swap contracts to customers who wish to modify
their interest rate sensitivity. The Company offsets the interest rate risk of these swaps by purchasing
matching contracts with offsetting pay/receive rates from other financial institutions. Because of the
matching terms of the offsetting contracts, the net effect of changes in the fair value of the paired swaps
is minimal. The notional amount of these types of swaps at December 31, 2007 was $295.0 million.

The Company enters into foreign exchange derivative instruments as an accommodation to customers
and offsets the related foreign exchange risk by entering into offsetting third-party forward contracts with
approved reputable counterparties. In addition, the Company takes proprietary positions in such contracts
based on market expectations. This trading activity is managed within a policy of specific controls and limits.
Most of the foreign exchange contracts outstanding at December 31, 2007 mature within 90 days, and the
longest period to maturity is 10 months,

Additionally, interest rate lock commitments issued on residential mortgage loans held for resale are
considered derivative instruments. The interest rate exposure on these commitments is economically hedged
primarily with forward sale contracts in the secondary market.

In all of these contracts, the Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by
counterparties, who may be bank customers or other financial institutions. The Company controls the credit
risk of its financial contracts through credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. Because the
Company generally enters into transactions only with high quality counterparties, there have been no losses
associated with counterparty nonperformance on derivative financial instruments.

43




The following table summarizes the notional amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s
derivative instruments at December 31, 2007 and 2006. Notional amount, along with the other terms of the
derivative, is used to determine the amounts to be exchanged between the counterparties. Because the
notional amount does not represent amounts exchanged by the parties, it is not a measure of loss exposure
related to the use of derivatives nor of exposure to liquidity risk. Positive fair values are recorded in other
assets and negative fair values are recorded in other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

2007 2006
Positive Negative Positive  Negative
Notional Fair Fair Notional Fair Fair

(In thousands) Amount Value Value Amount Value Value
Interest rate contracts:

Swap contracts $308,361 $4,766 $(6,333) $181,464 $1,185 $(2,003)

Option contracts — — — 6,970 10 (10
Credit risk participation agreements 25,389 — (174) — — —
Foreign exchange contracts:

Forward contracts 12,212 105 (149) 16,117 29 (20)

Option contracts 3,120 9 9 2,670 16 {16)
Mortgage loan commitments 7,123 18 100 11,529 —_ (43)
Mortgage loan forward sale contracts 15,017 25 (34) 21,269 60 (14)
Total at December 31 $371,222 $4,923 $(6,709) $240,019 $1,300 $(2,106)

Operating Segments

The Company segregates financial information for use in assessing its performance and allocating
resources among three operating segments. The results are determined based on the Company’s manage-
ment accounting process, which assigns balance sheet and income statement items to each responsible
segment. These segments are defined by customer base and product type. The management process mea-
sures the performance of the operating segments based on the management structure of the Company and is
not necessarily comparable with similar information for any other financial institution. Each segment is
managed by executives who, in conjunction with the Chief Executive Officer, make strategic business
decisions regarding that segment. The three reportable operating segments are Consumer, Commercial
and Money Management. Additional information is presented in Note 13 on Segments in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company uses a funds transfer pricing method to value funds used (e.g., loans, fixed assets, cash,
etc.) and funds provided (deposits, borrowings, and equity) by the business segments and their components.
This process assigns a specific value to each new source or use of funds with a maturity, based on current
LIBOR interest rates, thus determining an interest spread at the time of the transaction. Non-maturity
assets and liabilities are assigned to LIBOR based funding pools. This method helps to provide an accurate
means of valuing fund sources and uses in a varying interest rate environment. The Company also assigns
loan charge-offs and recoveries directly to each operating segment instead of allocating a portion of actual
loan loss provision to the segments. The operating segments also include a number of allocations of income
and expense from various support and overhead centers within the Company. Management periodically
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makes changes to the method of assigning costs and income to its business segments to better reflect
operating results. If appropriate, these changes are reflected in the prior year information in the table below.

The table below is a summary of segment pre-tax income for the past three years.

% Change

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 20056 0708 '06-'05
Consumer $ 238,999 $ 244,490 $193,253 (2.2)% 26.5%
Commercial 140,736 147,625 133,937 4.7) 10.2
Money management 37,144 34,540 31,716 7.5 8.9

Total segments 416,878 426,655 358,906 (2.3) 18.9
Other/elimination (116,481)  (102,909) (41,312) NM NM
Income before income taxes $ 300,397 $2323,746 $317,594 (7.2)% 1.9%

Consumer

The Consumer segment includes the retail branch network, consumer finance, bankcard, student loans
and discount brokerage services. Pre-tax income for 2007 was $239.0 million, a decrease of $5.5 million, or
2.2%, from 2006. This decrease was due to an increase of $19.8 million, or 6.9%, in non-interest expense,
coupled with an $8.4 million increase in the provision for loan losses, mainly relating to consumer credit card
and marine and recreational vehicle loan net charge-offs. The increase in non-interest expense over the
previous year was mainly due to higher salaries expense, occupancy expense, corporate management fees
and various assigned processing costs. In addition, net investment securities gains declined by $2.8 million
due to a gain recorded in 2006 on the sale of MasterCard Inc. restricted shares, Partly offsetting these effects
was an $18.1 million increase in net interest income. This growth resulted mainly from a $37.0 million
increase in net allocated funding credits assigned to the Consumer segment’s deposit and loan portfolios, and
higher loan interest income of $38.2 million, which more than offset growth of $57.0 million in deposit
interest expense. Non-interest income increased $7.5 million, or 4.1%, mainly due to higher bank card
transaction fees (primarily debit card) and consumer brokerage and insurance fees, partly offset by a decline
in overdraft and return item fees and lower gains on sales of student loans. Total average assets directly
related to the segment rose 10.5% over 2006. During 2007, total average loans increased 9.7%, compared to a
3.5% increase in 2006. The increase in average loans during 2007 resulted mainly from growth in consumer,
personal real estate and consumer credit card loans. Average deposits increased 9.8% over the prior year,
mainly due to growth in short-term certificates of deposit and premium money market deposit accounts.

Pre-tax income for 2006 was $244.5 million, an increase of $51.2 million, or 26.5%, over 2005. This
increase included growth of $42.9 million in net interest income, coupled with a $6.4 million increase in non-
interest income. The increase in net interest income resulted mainly from an $85.2 million increase in net
allocated funding credits and higher loan interest income of $43.2 million, partly offset by growth of
$85.2 million in deposit interest expense. The rising interest rate environment in 2006 assigned a greater
value, and thus income, to customer deposits in this segment. The increase in non-interest income resulted
mainly from higher overdraft fees and bank card transaction fees, partly offset by a decline in gains on the
sale of student loans. Non-interest expense increased $9.3 million, or 3.3%, over the previous year mainly due
to higher salaries expense, occupancy expense, loan servicing costs, bank card processing expense, and online
banking processing costs. These increases were partly offset by declines in corporate management fees and
credit card fraud losses. Net loan charge-offs declined $8.4 million in the Congumer segment, mainly relating
to personal and consumer credit card loans, as a result of lower bankruptcy notices received in 2006. Total
average assets directly related to the segment rose 3.8% over 2005. During 20086, total average loans
increased 3.5%, mainly due to growth in consumer, personal real estate and consumer credit card loans.
Average deposits increased 6.4% over the prior year, mainly due to growth in long-term certificates of deposit.
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Commercial

The Commercial segment provides corporate lending, leasing, international services, and corporate cash
management services. Pre-tax profitability for the Commercial segment decreased $6.9 miilion, or 4.7%,
compared to the prior year. Most of the decrease was due to a $14.2 million, or 9.8%, increase in non-interest
expense and an $8.5 million increase in net loan charge-offs. Partly offsetting these increases in expense were
a $10.1 million, or 4.8%, increase in net interest income and a $5.7 million increase in non-interest income.
Included in net interest income was a $58.0 million increase in loan interest income, which was partly offset
by higher assigned net funding costs of $43.5 million and higher deposit interest expense of $4.4 million. Non-
interest income increased by 7.2% over the previous year as a result of higher commercial cash management
fees, overdraft fees, bank card fees (mainly corporate card) and cash sweep commissions. The increase in non-
interest expense resulted from higher salaries expense, commercial deposit account processing costs and
corporate management fees, partly offset by a decline in foreclosed property expense. Net loan charge-offs
were $8.2 million in 2007 compared to net recoveries of $313 thousand in 2006. The increase over 2006 was
due to charge-offs related to several specific commercial borrowers. Total average assets directly related to
the segment rose 14.4% over 2006. Average segment loans increased 14.1% compared to 2006 as a result of
growth in business, construction real estate and business real estate loans, while average deposits increased
1.7% due to growth in interest checking deposit accounts.

In 2006, income before income taxes for the Commercial segment increased $13.7 million, or 10.2%,
compared to the prior year. Most of the increase was due to an $18.1 million, or 9.3%, increase in net interest
income and a $6.2 million increase in non-interest income. Included in net interest income was a $97.7 million
increase in loan interest income, which was partly offset by higher assigned net funding costs of $72.8 million
and higher deposit interest expense of $7.3 million. Non-interest income increased by 8.4% over the previous
year mainly as a result of higher operating lease-related income and commercial debit card transaction fees.
The $8.6 million, or 6.3%, increase in non-interest expense included increases in salaries expense, operating
lease depreciation, foreclosed property expense, commercial deposit account processing costs, and bank card
servicing expense. Net loan recoveries were $313 thousand in 2006 compared to net recoveries of $2.3 million
in 2005, which also had a negative impact on the year to year comparison of the Commercial segment
profitability. Total average assets directly related to the segment rose 14.7% over 2005, Average segment
loans increased 14.4% compared to 2005 mainly as a result of growth in business and business real estate
loans, while average deposits decreased slightly.

Money Management

The Money Management segment consists of the trust and capital markets activities. The Trust group
provides trust and estate planning services, and advisory and discretionary investment management
services. At December 31, 2007 the Trust group managed investments with a market value of $12.5 billion
and administered an additional $10.2 billion in non-managed assets. It also provides investment manage-
ment services to The Commerce Funds, a series of mutual funds with $1.5 billion in total assets at
December 31, 2007. The Capital Markets Group sells primarily fixed-income securities to individuals,
corporations, correspondent banks, public institutions, and municipalities, and also provides investment
safekeeping and bond accounting services. Pre-tax income for the segment was $37.1 million in 2007
compared to $34.5 million in 2006, an increase of $2.6 million, or 7.5%. The increase over the prior year
was mainly due to higher non-interest income. Non-interest income increased $7.4 million, or 8.7%, due to
higher private client, institutional and corporate trust fees, bond trading income in the Capital Markets
Group, and cash sweep commissions. Net interest income increased $546 thousand, or 5.6%, over the prior
year. Growth in interest income on short-term investments was partly offset by higher net funding charges
assigned to the segment’s short-term investments and borrowings, in addition to an increase in interest
expense on deposits and borrowings. Non-interest expense increased $5.3 million, or 8.8%, over the prior year
mainly due to higher salaries expense, assigned processing costs and corporate management fees. Average
assets increased $148.0 million during 2007 because of higher overnight investments of liquid funds. Average
deposits increased $14.8 million during 2007, mainly due to continuing growth in short-term certificates of
deposit over $100,000.
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Pre-tax income for the Money Management segment was $34.5 million in 2006 compared to $31.7 million
in 2005, an increase of $2.8 million, or 8.9%. The increase over the prior year was mainly due to higher non-
interest income. Non-interest income was up $2.7 million, or 3.3%, mainly in private client revenues, partly
offset by lower bond trading income. Net interest income, which increased $1.6 million, or 20.3%, over the
prior year, was higher primarily due to higher assigned funding credits attributed to the deposit portfolio of
this segment. The $1.6 million increase in non-interest expense was due to higher salaries expense and
corporate management fees. Average assets increased $216.0 million during 2006 because of higher over-
night investments. Average deposits increased $37.0 million during 2006, mainly due to growth in short-term
certificates of deposit over $100,000.

The Other/elimination category shown in the table above includes support and overhead operating units
of the Company which contain various operating expenses such as salaries, occupancy, etc. Also included in
this category is the Company’s available for sale investment securities portfolio, which totaled $3.2 billion at
December 31, 2007. The pre-tax profitability in the Other/elimination category decreased $13.6 million in
2007 compared to 2006, and decreased $61.6 million in 2006 compared to 2005. The decline in 2007 compared
to 2006 occurred partly because of a $21.0 million litigation expense provision, previously discussed, which
was not allocated to a segment. The decline in 2006 from 2005 was mainly due to LIBOR based cost of funds
charges that rose faster during 2006 than the investment securities yields.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments — an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 133 and 140”. The Statement permits fair value remeasurement for certain hybrid
financial instruments containing embedded derivatives, and clarifies the derivative accounting require-
ments for interest and principal-only strip securities and interests in securitized financial assets. It also
clarifies that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives and
eliminates a previous prohibition on qualifying special-purpose entities from holding certain derivative
financial instruments. For calendar year companies, the Statement was effective for all financial instruments
acquired or issued after January 1, 2007. The Company’s holdings of instruments that are subject to the
provisions of this Statement are not material, and, accordingly, its adoption of the Statement did not affect its
consolidated financial statements.

In March 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 156, “Accounting for
Servicing of Financial Assets — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140”. The Statement specifies under
what situations servicing assets and servicing liabilities must be recognized. It requires these assets and
liabilities to be initially measured at fair value and specifies acceptable measurement methods subsequent to
their recognition. Separate presentation in the financial statements and additional disclosures are also
required. For calendar year companies, the Statement was effective beginning January 1, 2007. The
Company’s adoption of the Statement did not result in the recognition of any additional servicing assets
or liabilities, or a change in its measurement methods.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, “Account-
ing for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (FIN 48), which
prescribes the recognition threshold and measurement attributes necessary for recognition in the financial
statements of a tax position taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax return. Under FIN 48, an income tax
position will be recognized if it is more likely than not that it will be sustained upon IRS examination, based
upon its technical merits. Once that status is met, the amount recorded will be the largest amount of benefit
that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. It also provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, interim period accounting, disclosure, and transition
requirements. As a result of the Company’s adoption of FIN 48, additional income tax benefits of $446
thousand were recognized as of January 1, 2007 as an increase to retained earnings.

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value Measure-
ments”, on January 1, 2008. This Statement defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. It
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emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement and should be determined based on assumptions
that a market participant would use when pricing an asset or liability. Additionally, it establishes a fair value
hierarchy that provides the highest priority to measurements using quoted prices in active markets and the
lowest priority to measurements based on unobservable data. The Statement does not require any new fair
value measurements. The Statement also modifies the guidance for initial recognition of fair value for certain
derivative contracts held by the Company. Former accounting guidance precluded immediate recognition in
earnings of an unrealized gain or loss, measured as the difference between the transaction price and fair
value of these instruments at initial recognition, This guidance was nullified by the Statement. In accordance
with the new recognition requirements of the Statement, the Company increased equity by $902 thousand on
January 1, 2008.

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Ne. 158, “Employers’ Accounting
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans”, at December 31, 2006. The Statement requires
an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan as an
asset or liability in its statement of financial position and to recognize changes in that funded status in the
year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income. The Company’s initial recognition at
December 31, 2006 of the funded status of its defined benefit pension plan reduced its prepaid pension asset
by $17.5 million, reduced deferred tax liabilities by $6.6 million, and reduced the equity component of
accumulated other comprehensive income by $10.9 million. Beginning in 2008, the Statement also requires
an employer to measure plan assets and obligations as of the date of its fiscal year end statement of financial
position. The change in measurement date is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus on EITF Issue 06-4,
“Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar
Life Insurance Arrangements”. This EITF Issue addresses accounting for separate agreements which split
life insurance policy benefits between an employer and employee. The Issue requires the employer to
recognize a liability for future benefits payable to the employee based on the substantive agreement with the
employee, because the postretirement benefit obligation is not effectively settled through the purchase of the
insurance policy. The EITF Issue was effective January 1, 2008, and the Company’s adoption on that date
resulted in a reduction to equity of $716 thousand.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, “The Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Including an amendment of FASB Statement
No. 1157, This Statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other
items at fair value, on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Once an entity has elected to record eligible items
at fair value, the decision is irrevocable and the entity should report unrealized gains and losses for which the
fair value option has been elected in earnings. The Statement’s objective is to improve financial reporting by
providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring
related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. This
Statement is expected to expand the use of fair value measurement, which is consistent with the Board’s long-
term measurement objectives for accounting for financial instruments. The Statement may be applied to
financial instruments existing at the January 1, 2008 adoption date, financial instruments recognized after
the adoption date, and upon certain other events. As of the adoption date and subsequent to that date, the
Company has chosen not to elect the fair value option, but continues to consider future election and the effect
on its consolidated financial statements.

In November 2007, the Securities and Exchange Commission staff issued Staff Accounting Bulle-
tin No. 109 (SAB 109). SAB 109 provides revised guidance on the valuation of written loan commitments
accounted for at fair value through earnings. Former guidance under SAB 105 indicated that the expected net
future cash flows related to the associated servicing of the loan should not be incorporated into the
measurement of the fair value of a derivative loan commitment. The new guidance under SAB 109 requires
these cash flows to be included in the fair value measurement, and the SAB requires this view to be applied on
a prospective basis to derivative loan commitments issued or medified in the first gquarter of 2008. The
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Company’s application of SAB 109 in 2008 did not have a material effect on its consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 (revised),
“Business Combinations”. The Statement retains the fundamental requirements in Statement 141 that the
acquisition method of accounting be used for business combinations, but broadens the scope of Statement 141
and contains improvements to the application of this method. The Statement requires an acquirer to
recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrelling interest in the acquiree at
the acquisition date, measured at their fair values as of that date. Costs incurred to effect the acquisition are
to be recognized separately from the acquisition. Assets and liabilities arising from contractual contingencies
must be measured at fair value as of the acquisition date. Contingent consideration must also be measured at
fair value as of the acquisition date. The Statement also changes the accounting for negative goodwill arising
from a bargain purchase, requiring recognition in earnings instead of allocation to assets acquired. For
business combinations achieved in stages (step acquisitions), the assets and liabilities must be recognized at
the full amounts of their fair values, while under former guidance the entity was acquired in a series of
purchases, with costs and fair values being identified and measured at each step. The Statement applies to
business combinations occurring after January 1, 2009.

Also in December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 160,
“Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51”. The
Statement clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated
entity that should be reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements. The Statement establishes
a single method of accounting for changes in a parent’s ownership interest if the parent retains its controlling
interest, deeming these to be equity transactions. Such changes include the parent’s purchases and sales of
ownership interests in its subsidiary and the subsidiary’s acquisition and issuance of its ownership interests.
The Statement also requires that a parent recognize a gain or loss in net income when a subsidiary is
deconsolidated. It changes the way the consolidated income statement is presented, requiring consolidated
net income to be reported at amounts that include the amounts attributable to both the parent and the
noncontrolling interest, and requires disclosure of these amounts on the face of the consolidated statement of
income. The Statement is effective on January 1, 2009. The Company does not expect adoption of the
Statement to have a significant effect on its consolidated financial statements.

Effects of Inflation

The impact of inflation on financial institutions differs significantly from that exerted on industrial
entities. Financial institutions are not heavily involved in large capital expenditures used in the production,
acquisition or sale of products. Virtually all assets and liabilities of financial institutions are monetary in
nature and represent obligations to pay or receive fixed and determinable amounts not affected by future
changes in prices. Changes in interest rates have a significant effect on the earnings of financial institutions.
Higher interest rates generally follow the rising demand of borrowers and the corresponding increased
funding requirements of financial institutions. Although interest rates are viewed as the price of borrowing
funds, the behavior of interest rates differs significantly from the behavior of the prices of goods and services.
Prices of goods and services may be directly related to that of other goods and services while the price of
borrowing relates more closely to the inflation rate in the prices of those goods and services. As a result, when
the rate of inflation slows, interest rates tend to decline while absolute prices for goods and services remain at
higher levels. Interest rates are also subject to restrictions imposed through monetary policy, usury laws and
other artificial constraints.

Corporate Governance

The Company has adopted a number of corporate governance measures. These include corporate
governance guidelines, a code of ethics that applies to its senior financial officers and the charters for its
audit committee, its committee on compensation and human resources, and its committee on governance/
directors. This information is available on the Company’s web site www.commercebank.com under Investor
Relations.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This report may contain “forward-looking statements” that are subject to risks and uncertainties and
include information about possible or assumed future results of operations. Many possible events or factors
could affect the future financial results and performance of the Company. This could cause results or
performance to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. Words such as
“expects”, “anticipates”, “believes”, “estimates”, variations of such words and other similar expressions are
intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future
performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions which are difficult to predict. There-
fore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in, or implied by,
such forward-looking statements. Readers should not rely solely on the forward-looking statements and
should consider all uncertainties and risks discussed throughout this report. Forward-looking statements
speak only as of the date they are made. The Company does not undertake to update forward-looking
statements to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the date the forward-looking statements are
made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. Such possible events or factors include: changes in
economic conditions in the Company’s market area; changes in policies by regulatory agencies, governmental
legislation and regulation; fluctuations in interest rates; changes in liquidity requirements; demand for loans
in the Company’s market area; changes in accounting and tax principles; estimates made on income taxes;
and competition with other entities that offer financial services.
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SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31, 2007

For the Quarter Ended

{In thousands, except per share data) 12/31/07 9/30/07 6/30/07 3/31/07
Interest income $236,752 $ 238274 $232,808 $228,267
Interest expense (99,285) (103,012) (98,944) {96,788)
Net interest income 137,467 135,262 133,864 131,479
Non-interest income 98,101 95,137 94,069 84,284
Investment securities gains (losses), net 3,270 1,662 (493) 3,895
Salaries and employee benefits (78,433) (77,312) (76,123)  (76,900)
Other expense (84,464) (61,781}  (60,226) (59,519)
Provision for loan losses (14,062) (11,455) (9,054) (8,161)
Income before income taxes 61,879 81,413 82,027 75,078
Income taxes (18,187) (25,615} (26,453) {23,582)
Net income $ 43692 § 55,808 §$ 55,574 $ 51,496
Net income per share — basic* % 61 3 78 % 76 $ 71
Net income per share — diluted* % 60 $ J7 8 75 8 70
Weighted average shares - basic* 71,681 71,919 72,750 73,112
Weighted average shares — diluted* 72,482 72,707 73,570 74,018
Year Ended December 31, 2006 For the Quarter Ended

{In thousands, except per share data) 12/31/06 9/30/06 6/30/06 3/31/06
Interest income $228.159 $216,270 $199,250 $188,627
Interest expense (93,927) (87,517) (72,771) (64,892)
Net interest income 134,232 128,753 126,479 123,735
Non-interest income 90,030 87,332 88,179 87,045
Investment securities gains, net 24 3,324 3,284 2,403
Salaries and employee benefits (73,140} (72,169} (71,239) {71,725}
Other expense (60,470) (60,135} {58,311) {58,236)
Provision for loan losses (7,970) (7,575) (5,672) (4,432)
Income before income taxes 82,706 79,5630 82,720 78,790
Income taxes (25,689) (24,982) (27,387)  (25,846)
Net income $ 57,017 $ 54,548 § 55,333 § 52,944
Net income per share — basic* 3 atT 08 403 7503 72
Net income per share — diluted* % 6% 73 3 T4 0% 1
Weighted average shares — basic* 73,976 73,538 73,372 73,856
Weighted average shares — diluted* 74,940 74,509 74,375 74,889
Year Ended December 31, 2005 For the Quarter Ended

(In thousands, except per share data) 12/31/05 9/30/05 6/30/05 3/31/05
Interest income $185,343 $178,570 $172,800 $160,853
Interest expense (58,337) (52,738) (45,413) (39,376)
Net interest income 127,006 125,832 127,387 121,477
Non-interest income 87,544 86,606 83,608 77,079
Investment securities gains, net 1,089 289 1,372 3,612
Salaries and employee benefits (68,730) (66,682) (67,685)  (70,180)
Other expense (58,471) (55,705) (55,427) (53,742)
Provision for loan losses (11,980) (8,934) (5,503) (2,368)
Income before income taxes 76,458 81,406 83,852 75,878
Income taxes (20,216) (18,615) (29,484) (26,032)
Net income $ 56,242 $ 62,791 $ 54,368 $ 49,846
Net income per share — basic* $ 7508 82 3 0 % 64
Net income per share — diluted* $ 74§ 81 $ 69 % .63
Weighted average shares — basic* 75,201 76,342 77,253 78,303
Weighted average shares — diluted*® 76,117 77,389 78,317 79,392

* Restated for the 5% stock dividend distributed in 2007,
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AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS - AVERAGE RATES AND YIELDS

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average
Interest Rates Interest Rates Interest Rates
Average Income/ Earned/ Average Income/  Earned/ Average Income/ Earned/
{Dollars in thousands) Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid
ASSETS
Loans:™
Business'™ $ 3,110,386 $208,819 6.71% $ 2,688,722 $177,313 6.59% $ 2,336,681 $125,417 537%
Real estate - construction 671,986 49,436 7.36 540,674 40477 749 480,864 28422 591
Real estate — business 2,204,041 154,819 7.02 2,053,455 140,659 6.85 1,794,269 106,167 5.92
Real estate — personal 1,521,066 90,637 5.95 1,415,321 79,816  5.64 1,339,900 71,222  5.32
Consumer 1,568,302 115,184  7.39 1352047 95074  7.03 1,242,163 80,431 648
Home e?ll).lity 443,748 33,626 7.56 445,376 33,849 7.60 429,911 26,463 6.16
Student'™ —_ — - — — — 357,319 17,050 4,77
Consumer credit card 665,964 84,856 12.74 595,252 77,737 13.06 554,471 66,552 12.00
Overdrafts 13,823 — —_ 14,685 — — 13,995 — —
Total loans 10,189,316 737,177 7.23 9,105,432 644,925 7.08 8,549,573 521,724 6.10
Loans held for sale 321,916 21,940 6.82 315,950 21,788 6.90 11,909 657 5.52
Investment securities:
US. government & federal agency 410,170 16,505 4.02 640,239 22,817 3.56 1,066,304 39,968 3.75
State & municipal obligations™ 594,154 26,855 4.52 414,282 18,546  4.48 137,007 5910 4.31
Mortgage and asset-backed securities 2,120,521 102,243 4.82 2,201,685 96,270  4.37 2,812,757 114,978  4.09
Trading securities 22,321 1,057 4.73 17,444 762 4.37 10,624 422 3.98
Other marketable securities'® 129,622 7,795 6.01 200,013 11,248 5.62 216,984 9,316 4.29
Non-marketable securities 92,251 5417 5.87 85,211 7475 8717 78,709 4617  5.87
Total investment securities 3,369,039 159,872  4.75 3,558,874 157,118 4.41 4,322,385 175211  4.05
Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under agreements to resell 527,304 25,881 4.91 299,554 15,637 5.22 116,563 4,102 3.52
Total interest earning assets 14,407,675 944,870 6.56 13,279,810 839,468 6.32 13,000,420 701,694 5.40
Less allowance for loan losses (132,234) (129,224) (129,272)
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment
securities 25,333 (9,443) 22,607
Cash and due from banks 463,970 470,826 508,389
Land, buildings and equipment -~ net 400,161 376,375 369,471
Qther assets 315,522 _250_,%552 _?m
Total assets $15,480,327 $14,238,604 $13,973,444
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Interest bearing deposits:
Savings $ 392,942 2,067 53§ 393870 2,204 56§ 403,158 1,259 31
Interest checking and money market 6,996,943 114,027 1.63 6,717,280 94,238 1.40 6,745,714 52,112 1
Time open & C.D.'s of less than
$100,000 2,369,386 110,957 4.70 2,077,257 85424  4.11 1,736,804 50,597 291
Time open & C.D.’s of $100,000 and
over 1,480,858 73,739 4.98 1,288,845 58381 453 983,703 30,779  3.13
Total interest bearing deposits 11,230,127 300,790 2.68 10,477,252 240,247  2.29 9,869,379 134,747 1.37
Borrowings:
Federal funds purchased and
securities sold under agreements to
repurchase 1,696,613 83,464 4.92 1,455,544 70,154 4,82 1,609,868 48,776 3.03
Other borrowings'™ 202,446 13,776 4.71 182,940 8744  4.78 366,072 12,464  3.40
Total borrowings 1,989,059 97,239 4.89 1,638,484 78,898  4.82 1,975,940 61,240 3.10
Total interest bearing liabilities 13,219,186 398,029 3.01% 12,115,736 319,145 263% 11,845,319 195,987 1.66%
Non-interest bearing demand deposits 647,888 642,545 655,729
Other liabilities 136,850 102,668 93,708
Stockholders’ equity 1,476,403 1,377,665 1,378,688
Total liabilities and equity $15,480,327 $14,238,604 $13,973,444
Net interest margin (T/E) $546,841 $520,323 $505,707
Net yield on interest earning assets 3.80% 3.92% 3.89%
Percentage increase (decrease) in
net interest margin
(T/E) compared to the prior year 5.10% 2.89% 1.22%

(A)

Loans on non-accrual status are included in the computation of average balances. Included in interest income above are loan fees

and late charges, net of amortization of deferred loan origination fees and costs, which are immaterial. Credit card income from

merchant discounts and net interchange fees are not included in loan income,
Interest income and yields are presented on a fully-texable equivalent basis using the Federal statutory income tax rate. Business

(B

loan interest income includes tax free loan income of $8,606,000 in 2007, $5,883,000 in 2006, $2,393,000 in 2005, $2,379,000 in
2004 and $2,466,000 in 2003, including tax equivalent adjustments of $2,191,000 in 2007, $1,596,000 in 2006, $1,097 000in 2005,

$819,000in 2004 and $847,000
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Years Ended December 31

2004 3003 2002 Average
Average Average Average Balance
Interest Rates Interest Rates Interest Rates Five Year
Average Income/ Earned/ Average Income/ Earned/ Average Income/ Earned/ Compound
Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid Growth Rate
$ 2,119,823 $ 88,199 4.16% $ 2,173,765 $ 90,860 4.18% $ 2,433,041 $115,058 4.73% 5.03%
427,976 18,068 4.22 404,058 17,324 4,29 474,307 23,894 5.04 7.22
1,823,302 90,601 4.97 1,831,576 93,731 5.12 1,483,012 88,645 5.98 8.25
1,322,354 68,629 5.19 1,268,604 71,737 5.65 1,214,887 80,487 6.63 4.60
1,188,018 75,633 6.37 1,129,267 79,571 7.06 1,046,173 83,266 7.96 8.30
381,111 17,481 4,59 324,375 14,372 443 283,466 14,336 5.06 9.38
326,120 9,790 3.00 339,577 9,606 2.83 316,910 13,124 4.14 NM
515,585 57,112 11.08 490,534 55,310 11.28 463,474 52,337 11.29 7.52
13,319 —_ —_— 11,631 _— — 14,150 _ —_ (47)
8,117,608 425,513 5.24 7,973,386 432,511 5.42 7,729,430 471,147 6.10 5.68
12,505 644 5.15 36,073 1,831 5.08 32,312 1,895 5.87 NM
1,721,301 67,988 3.95 1,543,269 67,236 4.36 1,233,040 57,159 4.64 (19.76)
70,846 3,410 4.81 80,687 4,139 5.13 41,103 3,079 7.49 70.61
2,846,093 105,827 3.72 2,504,514 103,681 4.14 2,118,460 112,703 5.32 02
14,250 498 3.50 17,003 662 3.90 10,931 532 4.86 15.35
163,843 3,747 229 220,499 4,603 2.09 124,648 4,258 3.42 .79
75,542 3,530 4,67 74,501 4,923 6.61 66,666 2,781 4.17 6.71
4,891,875 185,000 3.78 4,440,473 185,244 4.17 3,594,848 180,512 5.02 (1.29)
84,113 1,312 1.56 63,232 831 1.31 84,278 1,486 1.76 44.30
13,106,101 612,469 4.67 12,513,164 620,417 4.96 11,440,868 655,040 5.73 4.72
(132,554) (132,057) (129,960) 35
90,692 143,309 114,908 NM
553,074 513,733 511,798 (1.94)
340,188 336,665 329,553 3.96
191,655 167,944 146,671 16.56
$14,149,156 $13,542,758 $12,413,838 4.51
$ 401,935 1,250 31 $ 380,323 1,351 .36 $ 353,779 2,146 61 2,12
6,171,456 26,707 43 6,015,827 27,391 46 5,762,465 43,101 .15 3.96
1,678,659 38,924 2.32 1,838,137 48,440 2.64 2,046,041 70,367 3.44 2.89
788,800 14,912 1.89 699,241 14,278 2.04 651,336 18,252 2.80 17.85
9,040,850 81,793 .90 8,933,528 91,460 1.02 8,813,621 133,866 1.52 4.97
1,827 428 22,560 1.23 1,550,211 15,289 99 771,646 9,853 1.28 17.07
419,215 8,519 2.03 395,026 8,269 2.09 371,902 9,363 2.52 (4.69)
2,246,643 31,079 1.38 1,945,237 23,558 1.21 1,143,548 19,216 1.68 11.71
11,287,493 112,872 1.00% 10,878,765 115,018 1.06% 9,957,169 153,082 1.54% 5.83
1,288,434 1,083,207 974,941 (7.85)
123,048 133,813 120,143 2.64
1,450,181 1,446,973 1,361,585 1.63
$14,149,156 $13,542,758 $12,413,838 4.51%
$499,597 $505,399 $501,958
3.81% 4.04% 4.39%
(1.15)% 69% 8.58%

{C)
o

2007, $3,698,000 in 2008, $1,445,000 in 2005, $1,093,000 in 2004 and $1,301,000 in 2003. Interest income on other marketable
securities includes tax equivalent adjustments of $1,670,000 in 2007, $1,868,000 in 2006, $1,586,000 in 2005, $467,000 in 2004
and $859,000 in 2003.

Interest expense of $38,000, $123,000 and $113,000 which was capitalized on construction projects in 2008, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, is not deducted from the interest expense shown above.

The Company’s student loan portfolio was classified as held for sale in the first quarter of 2006 and, accordinglr, is included in the
hel%‘or .;ale balances for 2006 and 2007. Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information about
student loans.
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QUARTERLY AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS - AVERAGE RATES AND YIELDS
Year Ended December 31, 2007

Fourth Quarter Third Quarter Second Quarter First Quarter
Average Average Average Average
Rates Rates Rates Rates
Average  Earned/ Average FEarned/ Average Earned/ Average Earned/
(Dollars in millions) Batance Paid Balance Paid Balance Paid Balance Paid
ASSETS
Loans:
Business* $ 3,212 6.40% $ 3,104 6.79% $ 3,135 6.82% $ 2,988 6.86%
Real estate - construction 678 7.03 705 7.47 658 7.31 647 7.63
Real estate — business 2,223 6.91 2,220 7.09 2,225 7.06 2,147 7.04
Real estate — personal 1,542 5.96 1,538 5.92 1,514 5.97 1,489 5.96
Consumer 1,643 7.49 1,606 745 1,519 7.34 1,464 7.27
Home equity 455 711 446 7.59 438 7.76 435 7.79
Consumer credit card 712 12.03 671 12.83 647 13.01 633 13.18
Overdrafts 17 - 15 — 11 — 12 —
Total loans 10,482 7.06 10,305 7.29 10,147 7.29 9,815 7.31
Loans held for sale 289 6.35 294 6.82 355 6.99 351 7.03
Investment securities:
U.S. government & federal agency a7 4.10 398 4.04 411 3.98 463 3.99
State & municipal obligations'®’ 575 4.42 595 4.43 600 4.59 607 4.63
Mortgage and asset-backed securities 2,253 4.97 2,095 4.79 2,014 4.71 2,119 4.81
Trading securities 30 4.49 16 5.32 24 4,76 18 4.59
Other marketable securities' 111 5.90 134 6.42 132 5.66 141 6.05
Non-marketable securities 103 6.37 98 4.82 90 5.91 77 6.52
Total investment securities 3,443 4.85 3,336 4.71 3,271 4.67 3,425 4.75
Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under agreements to resell 538 4.27 512 4,92 504 5.19 556 5.27
Total interest earning assets 14,752 6.43 14 447 6.60 14,277 6.60 14,147 6.61
Less allowance for loan losses (133} (133) (132) (131
Unrealized gain on investment
securities 45 13 24 19
Cash and due from banks 472 472 451 461
Land, buildings and equipment - net 410 404 396 391
Other assets 348 326 300 287
Total assets $15,8M4 $15,529 $15,316 $15,174
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Interest bearing deposits:
Savings $ 376 46 $ 392 55 $ 406 .55 $ 397 .54
Interest checking and money market 7,072 1.52 7,026 1.73 7,006 1.67 6,882 1.60
Time open & C.D.'s under $100,000 2,392 4.67 2,389 4.74 2,347 4.73 2,308 4.67
Time open & C.D.’s $100,000 & over 1,499 4.88 1,486 5.02 1,562 5.03 1,375 4.99
Total interest bearing deposits 11,339 2.59 11,293 2.76 11,321 2.73 10,962 2.63
Borrowings:
Federal funds purchased and
securities sold under agreements to
repurchase 1,721 4,48 1,628 4.94 1,472 5.07 1,969 5.17
Other borrowings 492 4.63 346 4.83 276 4.76 51 4.42
Total borrowings 2,213 4.52 1,974 4.92 1,748 5.03 2,020 5.16
Total interest bearing liabilities 13,552 2.91% 13,267 3.08% 13,069 3.04% 12982 3.02%
Non-interest bearing demand deposits 660 661 650 620
Other liabilities 169 132 123 122
Stockholders’ equity 1,513 1,469 1,474 1,450
Total liabilities and equity $15,894 $15,529 $15,316 $15,174
Net interest margin (T/E) $ 140 $ 137 $ 136 $ 134
Net yield on interest earning assets 3.76% 3.77% 3.82% 3.83%

(A) Includes tex equivalent calculations.
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Year Ended December 31, 2006

Fourth Quarter Third Quarter Second Quarter First Quarter
Average Average Average Average
Rates Rates Rates Rates
Average  Earned/ Average Earned/ Average FEarmed/ Average  Earned/
(Dollars in millions) Balance Paid Balance Paid Balance Paid Balance Paid
ASSETS
Loans:
Business'®’ $ 2,806 6.82% $ 2,709 681% $ 2,694 6.48% $ 2,543 6.23%
Real estate — construction 628 7.70 582 7.72 508 7.37 442 7.00
Real estate — business 2,161 7.07 2,082 6.99 1,997 6.80 1,971 6.50
Real estate — personal 1,490 5.76 1,451 5.60 1,366 5.63 1,352 5.56
Consumer 1,412 7.30 1,373 7.12 1,333 6.90 1,288 6.78
Home equity 443 7.84 445 7.79 446 7.54 447 7.22
Consumer credit card 612 13.16 607 13.09 585 12.93 578 13.04
QOverdrafts 13 — 14 — 12 — 20 —
Total loans 9,565 7.28 9,263 7.21 8,941 7.00 8,641 6.80
Loans held for sale 315 6.97 290 7.48 293 7.54 366 5.83
Investment securities:
U.S. government & federal agency 492 3.66 592 3.58 697 3.47 784 3.58
State & municipal obligations® 573 4.57 472 4.48 348 4.40 260 4.36
Mortgage and asset-backed securities 2,178 4.52 2,172 4.38 2,166 4.30 2,293 4.30
Trading securities 15 4.49 14 4.57 21 4,34 19 4.15
Other marketable securities'®’ 198 6.12 213 5.66 194 5.47 194 5.22
Non-marketable securities 84 14.86 86 6.51 87 6.88 84 6.90
Total investment securities 3,640 4.74 3,549 4.39 3,513 4.27 3,634 4,26
Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under agreements to resell 530 5.34 379 5.33 143 5.06 142 4.64
Total interest earning assets 13,950 6.56 13,481 6.42 12,890 6.25 12,783 6.03
Less allowance for loan losses (131) (130) (128) (128}
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment
securities 9 (16} (21) (9)
Cash and due from banks 471 462 471 481
Land, buildings and equipment - net 389 377 367 371
Other assets 312 258 221 208
Total assets $15,000 $14,432 $13,800 $13,706
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Interest hearing deposits:
Savings $ 401 57§ 394 57§ 897 56§ 384 54
Interest checking and money market 6,862 1.56 6,678 1.53 6,666 1.35 6,661 1.16
Time open & C.D.’s under $100,000 2,293 4.50 2,156 428 1,974 3.95 1,881 3.61
Time open & C.D.s $100,000 & over 1,292 4.79 1,320 4,72 1,257 4.44 1,286 4.16
Total interest bearing deposits 10,848 2.53 10,548 2.45 10,294 2.20 10,212 1.97
Borrowings:
Federal funds purchased and
securities sold under agreements to
repurchase 1,793 5.15 1,581 5.09 1,214 4,63 1,227 416
Other borrowings 104 5.86 163 4.51 205 4.67 260 4.34
Total borrowings 1,897 5.19 1,744 5.07 1,419 4.64 1,487 4.19
Toial interest bearing liabilities 12,745 2.92% 12,292 2.83% 11,713 2.49% 11,699 2.25%
Non-interest bearing demand depogits 664 644 664 598
Other liabilities 133 112 86 79
Stockholders’ equity 1,458 1,384 1,337 1,330
Total liabilities and equity $15,000 $14,432 $13,800 $13,706
Net interest margin (I/E) $ 136 $ 131 $ 128 $ 125
Net yield on interest earning assets 3.89% 3.84% 3.98% 3.97%

(A} Includes tax equivalent calculations.
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Item 7a. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The information required by this item is set forth on pages 41 through 44 of Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Consolidated Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Item 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2007. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. OQur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and
2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO0), and our report dated February 26, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting,

KPMe P

Kansas City, Missouri
February 26, 2008
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Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31
2007 2006
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Loans $10,605,368 $ 9,681,520
Allowance for loan losses (133,586) (131,730}
Net loans 10,471,782 9,649 790
Loans held for sale 235,896 278,598
Investment securities:
Available for sale ($524,399,000 and $526,430,000 pledged in 2007 and
2006, respectively, to secure structured repurchase agreements) 3,165,020 3,415,440
Trading 26,478 6,676
Non-marketable 105,517 74,207
Total investment securities 3,297,015 3,496,323
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell 655,165 527,816
Cash and due from banks 673,081 626,500
Land, buildings and equipment — net 406,249 386,095
Goodwill 124,570 97,643
Other intangible assets — net 21,413 19,633
QOther assets 319,660 247,951
Total assets $16,204,831 $15,230,349
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Deposits:
Non-interest bearing demand $ 1,413,849 $ 1,312,400
Savings, interest checking and money market 7,155,366 6,879,047
Time open and C.I)’s of less than $100,000 2,374,782 2,302,567
Time open and C.D.’s of $100,000 and over 1,607,565 1,250,840
Total deposits 12,551,662 11,744,854
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase 1,289,219 1,771,282
Other borrowings 583,639 53,934
QOther liabilities 302,735 218,165
Total liabilities 14,677,145 13,788,235
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $1 par value
Authorized and unissued 2,000,000 shares — —
Common stock, $5 par value
Authorized 100,000,000 shares; issued 71,938,743 shares in 2007 and
70,465,922 shares in 2006 359,694 352,330
Capital surplus 475,220 427,421
Retained earnings 669,142 683,176
Treasury stock of 52,614 and 422,468 shares in 2007 and 2006, respectively,
at cost (2,477) (20,613)
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) 26,107 (200)
Total stockholders’ equity 1,527,686 1,442,114
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $16,204,831 $15,230,349

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31

(In thousands, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005
INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loans $734,986 $643,329 $520,626
Interest on loans held for sale 21,940 21,788 657
Interest on investment securities 153,294 151,552 172,181
Interest on federal funds sold and securities purchased under

agreements to resell 25,881 15,637 4,102
Total interest income 936,101 832,306 697,566
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits:

Savings, interest checking and money market 116,094 96,442 53,371

Time open and C.D.’s of less than $100,000 110,957 85,424 50,697

Time open and C.D.’s of $100,000 and over 73,739 58,381 30,779
Interest on federal funds purchased and securities sold under

agreements to repurchase 83,464 70,154 48,776
Interest on other borrowings 13,775 8,706 12,341
Total interest expense 398,029 319,107 195,864
Net interest income 538,072 513,199 501,702
Provision for loan losses 42,732 25,649 28,785
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 495,340 487,550 472,917
NON-INTEREST INCOME
Deposit account charges and other fees 117,350 115,453 112,979
Bank card transaction fees 103,613 94,928 86,310
Trust fees 78,840 72,180 68,316
Consumer brokerage services 12,445 9,954 9,909
Trading account profits and commissions B,647 8,132 9,650
Loan fees and sales 8,835 10,503 12,838
Other 41,851 41,436 34,835
Total non-interest income 371,681 352,586 334,837
INVESTMENT SECURITIES GAINS, NET 8,234 9,035 6,362
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and employee benefits 308,768 288,273 273,177
Net occupancy 45,789 43,276 40,621
Equipment 24,121 25,665 23,201
Supplies and communication 34,162 32,670 33,342
Data processing and software 49,081 50,982 48,244
Marketing 18,199 17,317 17,294
Indemnification obligation 20,951 — —
Other 73,687 67,242 60,643
Total non-interest expense 574,758 525,425 496,522
Income before income taxes 300,397 323,746 317,594
Less income taxes 93,737 103,904 94,347
Net income $206,660 $219,842 $223,247
Net income per share — basic $ 28 $ 298 §$ 291
Net income per share — diluted $ 282 $ 294 $ 287

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 206660 3 219,842 $ 223,247
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Provision for loan losses 42,732 25,649 28,785
Provision for depreciation and amortization 52,469 48,436 42,318
Amortization of investment security premiums, net 7,398 12,318 16,730
Benefit for deferred income taxes (11,227) (1,380) (1,757)
Investment securities gains, net (8,234) (9,035) {6,362)
Net gains on sales of loans held for sale (5,670) (7,259) (1,401)
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 420,295 410,462 94,763
Originations of loans held for sale (871,918) (344,243) (88,504)
Net (increase)} decrease in trading securities (19,058) 24,292 {15,536)
Stock based compensation 6,263 4,786 6,628
(Increase) decrease in interest receivable 8,324 (11,051) 676
Increase in interest payable 5,270 25,467 16,213
Increase in income taxes payable 7,743 14,576 22
Net tax benefit related to equity compensation plans (2,283) (2,108) (4,288)
Other changes, net (3,062) (19,220) (21,770)
Net cash provided by operating activities 335,702 391,532 289,764
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash and cash equivalents paid in acquisitions (14,046) (8,498) —
Proceeds from sales of available for sale securities 239,541 170,421 1,816,865
Proceeds from maturities/pay downs of available for sale
securities 1,135,260 1,142,763 1,197,556
Purchases of available for sale securities (1,095,686) (888,132) (2,012,483)
Net increase in loans (793,214) (764,519) (631,391)
Purchases of land, buildings and equipment (65,102) (44,951) (64,231)
Sales of land, buildings and equipment 4,888 3,470 2,475
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (578,359) (389,446) 308,791
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase (decrease) in non-interest bearing demand,
savings, interest checking and money market deposits 253,221 163,747 (139,593)
Net increase in time open and C.D.’s 379,002 340,559 543,130
Net increase (decrease} in federal funds purchased and
securities sold under agreements to repurchase (542,992) 417,441 (b87,451)
Repayment of long-term borrowings (33,095) (252,320) (119,985)
Additional long-term borrowings 542,000 — —
Purchases of treasury stock {128,578) (134,956) (234,501)
Issuance of stock under stock purchase and equity
compensation plans 13,661 7,274 18,393
Net tax benefit related to equity compensation plans 2,283 2,108 4 288
Cash dividends paid on common stock (68,915) (65,758) (63,421)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 416,587 478,095 (579,140)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 173,930 480,181 19,415
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,154,316 674,135 654,720
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,328,246 $1,154,316 $§ 674,135

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Other
Common Capital Retained Treasury Comprehensive

(In thousands, except per share data) Stock Surplus Earnings Stock Income (Loss} Total
Balance, December 81, 2004 $347,049 $388,614 $ 703,293 § (51,646) § 39,570 $1,426,880
Net income 223,247 223,247
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on

available for sale securities, net of tax {43,453) (43,453}
Total comprehensive income 179,794
Purchase of treasury stock (234,501) (234,501)
Cash dividends paid ($.829 per share)- {63,421) (63,421)
Net tax benefit related to equity

compensation plans 4,288 4,288
Stock based compensation 6,628 6,628
Issuance under stock purchase and

equity compensation plans, net (18,656) 37,049 18,393
5% stock dividend, net 7,678 (170,098) 162,197 (223)
Balance, December 31, 2005 347,049 388,552 693,021 (86,901} (3,883) 1,337,838
Net income 219,842 219,842
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on

available for sale securities, net of tax 14,553 14,553
Total comprehensive income 234,395
Purchase of treasury stock (134,956) (134,956)
Cash dividends paid ($.889 per share) (65,758) (65,758)
Net tax benefit related to equity

compensation plans 2,108 2,108
Stock based compensation 4,786 4,786
Issuance under stock purchase and

equity compensation plans, net (9,830) 17,104 7,274
Issuance in West Pointe Bancorp, Inc.

acquisition (1,268} 68,752 67,484
5% stock dividend, net 5,281 43,073 (163,929) 115,388 (187}
Adoption of SFAS No. 158, net of tax (10,870) (10,870)
Balance, December 31, 2006 352,330 427421 683,176 (20,613) (200) 1,442,114
Net income 206,660 206,660
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on

available for sale securities, net of tax 19,363 19,363
Change in pension plan loss, net of tax 6,944 6,944
Total comprehensive income 232,967
Purchase of treasury stock (128,5678) (128,578)
Cash dividends paid ($.952 per share) (68,915) (68,915}
Net tax benefit related to equity

compensation plans 2,283 2,283
Stock based compensation 6,263 6,263
Issuance under stock purchase and

equity compensation plans, net 144 (12,339} 25,856 13,661
Issuance in South Tulsa Financial Corp.

acquisition (303) 27,917 27,614
5% stock dividend, net 7,220 51,895 (162,2256) 92,941 (169)
Adoption of FIN 48 446 446
Balance, December 31, 2007 $359,694 $475,220 $ 669,142 $§ (2477  $26,107 $1,527,686

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (the Company) conducts its principal activities through its banking and non-
banking subsidiaries from approximately 350 locations throughout Missouri, Illinois, Kansas, Oklahoma and
Colorado. Principal activities include retail and commercial banking, investment management, securities
brokerage, mortgage banking, credit related insurance, venture capital and real estate activities.

Basis of Presentation

The Company follows accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)
and reporting practices applicable to the banking industry. The preparation of financial statements under
GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and notes. These estimates are based on information available to management at the
time the estimates are made. While the consolidated financial statemenis reflect management’s best
estimates and judgment, actual results could differ from those estimates. The consolidated financial state-
ments include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries (after elimination of all
material intercompany balances and transactions). Certain amounts for prior years have been reclassified to
conform to the current year presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on net income, assets or
stockholders’ equity.

Cuash and Cash Equivalents

In the accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include “Cash and
due from banks” and “Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell” as segregated
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Loans and Related Earnings

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or
pay-off are reported at their outstanding principal balances, net of undisbursed loan proceeds, the allowance
for loan losses, and any deferred fees and costs on originated loans. Origination fee income received on loans
and amounts representing the estimated direct costs of origination are deferred and amortized to interest
income over the life of the loan using the interest method. Prepayment premium or yield maintenance
agreements are generally required on all term commercial loans with fixed rate intervals of one year or more,
and corporate policy requires such language on all term loans over $250,000 with greater than one year
maturity.

Interest on loans is accrued based upon the principal amount sutstanding. Interest income is recognized
primarily on the level yield method. Loan and commitment fees on commercial and consumer loans, net of
costs, are deferred and recognized in income over the term of the loan or commitment as an adjustment of
yield. Annual fees charged on credit card loans are capitalized to principal and amortized over 12 months to
loan fees and sales in the accompanying consolidated income statements. Other credit card fees, such as cash
advance fees and late payment fees, are recognized in income as an adjustment of yield when charged to the
cardholder’s account. )

Loans, including those that are considered to be impaired, are evaluated regularly by management.
Business, lease, construction and business real estate loans are placed on non-accrual status when the
collection of interest or principal is 90 days or more past due, unless the loan is adequately secured and in the
process of collection. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, any interest previously accrued but not
collected is reversed against current income, Loans may be returned to accrual status when all the principal
and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably agsured.
Interest payments received on non-accrual loans are generally applied to principal unless the remaining
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principal balance has been determined to be fully collectible. Consumer installment loans and related
accrued interest are normally charged down to the fair value of related collateral (or are charged off in full if
no collateral) once the loans are more than 120 days delinquent. Credit card loans are charged off against the
allowance for loan losses when the receivable is more than 180 days past due. The interest and fee income
previously capitalized but not collected on credit card charge-offs is reversed against interest income.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale include student loans and fixed rate residential mortgage loans. These loans are
typically classified as held for sale upon origination based upon management’s intent to sell all the production
of these loans. They are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value. Fair value is determined based on
prevailing market prices for loans with similar characteristics or on sale contract prices. Declines in fair
value below cost are recognized in loan fees and sales. Deferred fees and costs related to these loans are not
amortized but are recognized as part of the cost basis of the loan at the time it is sold. Gains or losses on sales
are recognized upon delivery and included in loan fees and sales.

Allowance / Provision for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level believed to be appropriate by management to
provide for probable loan losses inherent in the portfolio as of the balance sheet date, including known or
anticipated problem loans as well as for loans which are not currently known to require specific allowances.
Management’s judgment as to the amount of the allowance is a result of the review of larger individual loans,
collateral values, the overall risk characteristics of the portfolio, changes in the character or size of the
portfolio, the level of impaired and non-performing assets, historical charge-off amounts, geographic location,
prevailing economic conditions and other relevant factors (including individual valuations on nonperforming
loans in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 114,
“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan”). Loans are considered impaired when it becomes
probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the
loan agreement. Included in impaired loans are all non-accrual business, lease, construction, and business
real estate loans. Consumer, personal real estate, home equity and credit card loans (collectively, personal
loans) are excluded from the definition of an impaired lean. Once a loan has been identified as impaired,
management measures impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 114. Impairment is measured as the
present value of the expected future cash flows at the loan’s initial effective interest rate or the fair value of
the collateral for collateral-dependent loans. Personal loans are segregated by loan type and by sub-type, and
are evaluated on a group basis. Loans are charged off to the extent they are deemed to be uncollectible,
reducing the allowance. Recoveries of loans previously charged off are added to the allowance. The amount of
the allowance for loan losses is highly dependent on management’s estimates of variables affecting valuation,
appraisals of collateral, evaluations of performance and status, and the amount and timing of future cash
flows expected to be received on impaired loans. Such estimates, appraisals, evaluations, and cash flows may
be subject to frequent adjustments due to changing economic prospects of borrowers or properties. These
estimates are reviewed periodically and adjustments, if necessary, are recorded in the provision for loan
losses in the periods in which they become known.

Operating, Direct Financing and Sales Type Leases

The net investment in direct financing and sales type leases is included in loans on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets, and consists of the present values of the sum of the future minimum lease
payments and estimated residual value of the leased asset. Revenue consists of interest earned on the net
investment, and is recognized over the lease term as a constant percentage return thereon. The net
investment in operating leases is included in other assets on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.
It is carried at cost, less the amount depreciated to date. Depreciation is recognized, on the straight-line basis,
over the lease term to the estimated residual value. Operating lease revenue consists of the contractual lease
payments and is recognized over the lease term in other non-interest income. Estimated residual values are
established at lease inception utilizing contract terms, past customer experience, and general market data
and are reviewed, and adjusted if necessary, on an annual basis.
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Investments in Debt and Equity Securities

The Company has classified the majority of its investment portfolic as available for sale. From time to
time, the Company sells securities and utilizes the proceeds to reduce borrowings, fund loan growth, or
modify its interest rate profile. Securities classified as available for sale are carried at fair value in accordance
with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”. Their related
unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), a
component of stockholders’ equity. Realized gains and losses, including other-than-temporary declines in fair
value, are calculated using the specific identification method and are included in “Investment securities
gains, net” in the consolidated statements of income. Premiums and discounts are amortized to interest
income over the estimated lives of the securities. Prepayment experience is continually evaluated and a
determination made regarding the appropriate estimate of the future rate of prepayment. When a change in
a bond’s estimated remaining life is necessary, a corresponding adjustment is made in the related amorti-
zation of premium or discount accretion.

Non-marketable securities include certain private equity and venture capital investments, consisting of
both debt and equity instruments. These securities are carried at fair value in accordance with the AICPA
Audit Guide on investment companies, with changes in fair value reported in current earnings. In the
absence of readily ascertainable market values, fair value is determined based on observable market values
or at estimated fair values. Changes in fair value and gains and losses from sales are included in “Investment
securities gains, net”. Other non-marketable securities acquired for debt and regulatory purposes are
accounted for at cost.

Trading account securities, which are bought and held principally for the purpose of resale in the near
term, are carried at fair value. Gains and losses, both realized and unrealized, are recorded in non-interest
income,

Purchases and sales of securities are recognized on a trade date basis. A receivable or payable is
recognized for pending transaction settlements.

Land, Buildings and Equipment

Land is stated at cost, and buildings and equipment are stated at cost, including capitalized interest
when appropriate, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using straight-line and accel-
erated methods. The Company generally assigns depreciable lives of 30 years for buildings, 10 years for
building improvements, and 3 to 8 years for equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
shorter of their estimated useful lives or remaining lease terms. Maintenance and repairs are charged to non-
interest expense as incurred.

Foreclosed Assets

Foreclosed assets consist of property that has been repossessed. Collateral obtained through foreclosure
is comprised of commercial and residential real estate and other non-real estate property, including auto and
marine vehicles. The assets are initially recorded at the lower of the related loan balance or fair value of the
collateral less estimated selling costs, with any valuation adjustments charged to the allowance for loan
losses. Fair values are estimated primarily based on appraisals when available or quoted market prices of
liquid assets. After their initial recognition, foreclosed assets are valued at the lower of the amount recorded
at acquisition date or the current fair value less estimated costs to sell, and any resulting valuation
adjustments, in addition to gains and losses realized on sales and net operating expenses, are recorded
in other non-interest expense.

Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested
annually for impairment. Intangible assets that have finite useful lives, such as core deposit intangibles and
mortgage servicing rights, are amortized over their estimated useful lives. Core deposit intangibles are
amortized over periods of 8 to 14 years, representing their estimated lives, using accelerated methods.
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Mortgage servicing rights are amortized in proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing
income, considering appropriate prepayment assumptions.

When facts and circumstances indicate potential impairment of amortizable intangible assets, the
Company evaluates the recoverability of the asset carrying value, using estimates of undiscounted future
cash flows over the remaining asset life. Any impairment loss is measured by the excess of carrying value over
fair value. Goodwill impairment tests are performed on an annual basis or when events or circumstances
dictate. In these tests, the fair value of each reporting unit, or segment, is compared to the carrying amount of
that reporting unit in order to determine if impairment is indicated. If so, the implied fair value of the
reporting unit’s goodwill is compared to its carrying amount and the impairment loss is measured by the
excess of the carrying value over fair value. There has been no impairment resulting from goodwill
impairment tests. However, adverse changes in the economic environment, operations of the reporting unit,
or other factors could result in a decline in the implied fair value.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes”. Amounts provided for income tax expense are based on income reported for financial statement
purposes and do not necessarily represent amounts currently payable under tax laws. Deferred income taxes
are provided for temporary differences between the financial reporting bases and income tax bases of the
Company’s assets and liabilities, net operating losses, and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates that are expected to apply to taxable income when such
assets and liabilitiesare anticipated to be settled or realized. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized as tax expense or benefit in the period that includes the enactment date
of the change. In determining the amount of deferred tax assets to recognize in the financial statements, the
Company evaluates the likelihood of realizing such benefits in future periods. SFAS No. 109 requires a
valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that all or some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be
realized. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income taxes within income tax expense
in the consolidated statements of income.

The Company and its eligible subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return. State and local
income tax returns are filed on a combined, consolidated or separate return basis based upon each
jurisdiction’s laws and regulations.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Account-
ing for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (FIN 48). FIN 48
prescribes that the recognition threshold and measurement attribute necessary for recognition in the
financial statements of a tax position taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax return. Under FIN 48, an
income tax position will be recognized if it is more likely than not that it will be sustained upon IRS
examination, based upon its technical merits. Once that status is met, the amount recorded is the largest
amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. As a result
of the Company’s adoption of FIN 48, the beginning balance of retained earnings as of January 1, 2007
increased by $446 thousand.

Derivatives

The Company is exposed to market risk, including changes in interest rates and currency exchange
rates. To manage the volatility relating to these exposures, the Company’s risk management policies permit
its use of derivative products. The Company manages potential credit exposure through established credit
approvals, risk control limits and other monitoring procedures. The Company uses derivatives on a limited
basis mainly to stabilize interest rate margins and hedge against interest rate movements. The Company
more often manages normal asset and liability positions by altering the products it offers and by selling
portions of specific loan or investment portfolios as necessary.

SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”, requires that all
derivative financial instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value, with the adjustment to fair
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value recorded in current earnings. Derivatives that are part of a qualifying hedging relationship under
SFAS No. 133 can be designated, based on the exposure being hedged, as fair value or cash flow hedges.
Under the fair value hedging model, gains or losses attributable to the change in fair value of the derivative,
as well as gains and losses attributable to the change in fair value of the hedged item, are recognized in
current earnings. Under the cash flow hedging model, the effective portion of the gain or loss related to the
derivative is recognized as a component of other comprehensive income. The ineffective portion is recognized
in current earnings.

The Company formally documents all hedging relationships between hedging instruments and the
hedged item, as well as its risk management objective. At December 31, 2007, the Company had two interest
rate swaps designated as fair value hedges. The Company performs quarterly assessments, using the
regression method, to determine whether the hedging relationship has been highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values.

Derivative contracts are also offered to customers to assist in hedging their risks of adverse changes in
interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The Company serves as an intermediary between its customers
and the markets. Each contract between the Company and its customers is offset by a contract between the
Company and various counterparties. These contracts do not qualify for hedge accounting. They are carried
at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded in other non-interest income. Since each customer contract
is paired with an offsetting contract, there is no significant impact to net income,

The Company enters into interest rate lock commitments on mortgage loans, which are commitments to
originate loans whereby the interest rate on the loan is determined prior to funding. The Company also has
corresponding forward sales contracts related to these interest rate lock commitments. Both the mortgage
loan commitments and the related sales contracts are accounted for as derivatives and carried at fair value,
with changes in fair value recorded in loan fees and sales. Fair values are based upon quoted prices and, in
2007 and prior years, fair value measurements exclude the value of loan servicing rights or other ancillary
values. In accordance with new accounting guidance effective in 2008, the value of loan servicing rights will
be incorporated into subsequent fair value measurements for mortgage loan commitments.

Pension Plan

The Company’s pension plan is deseribed in Note 10, Employee Benefit Plans. In 2006, the Company
adopted SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans”, and at December 31, 2006, adjusted its prepaid pension asset to reflect the funded status of the
pension plan. During 2008, the Company will also change the measurement date of its plan assets and benefit
obligations from September 30 to December 31, as required by SFAS No. 158.

The measurement of the projected benefit obligation and pension expense involve actuarial valuation
methods and the use of various actuarial and economic assumptions. The Company monitors the assump-
tions and updates them periodically. Due to the long-term nature of the pension plan obligation, actual
results may differ significantly from estimations. Such differences are adjusted over time as the assumptions
are replaced by facts and values are recalculated.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company's stock-based employee compensation plan is described in Note 11, Stock-Based Com-
pensation and Directors Stock Purchase Plan. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123 (revised),
“Share-Based Payment”, the Company measures the cost of stock-based compensation based on the grant-
date fair value of the award, recognizing the cost over the requisite service period. The fair value of an award
is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The expense recognized is based on an estimation
of the number of awards for which the requisite service is expected to be rendered, and is included in salaries
and employee benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.
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Treasury Stock

Purchases of the Company’s common stock are recorded at cost. Upon re-issuance for acquisitions,
exercises of stock-based awards or other corporate purposes, treasury stock is reduced based upon the
average cost basis of shares held.

Income per Share

Basic income per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during each year. Diluted income per share includes the effect of all dilutive potential common shares
(primarily stock options, stock appreciation rights and nonvested stock awards) outstanding during each
year. All per share data has been restated to reflect the 5% stock dividend distributed in December 2007.

2. Acquisitions

On July 1, 2007, the Company acquired Commerce Bank in Denver, Colorado. Commerce Bank’s results
of operations are included in the Company’s consolidated financial results beginning on that date. In this
transaction, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of Commerce Bank for $29.5 million in cash.
The acquisition added $123.9 million in assets (including $74.5 million in loans), $72.2 million in deposits and
the Company’s first location in Colorado. Intangible assets recognized as a result of the transaction consisted
of goodwill of $15.1 million and core deposit premium of $4.9 million.

The Company acquired South Tulsa Financial Corporation (South Tulsa) on April 1, 2007, and accord-
ingly, South Tulsa’s results of operations are included in the Company’s consolidated financial results
beginning on that date. In this transaction, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of South Tulsa
in exchange for shares of Company stock valued at $27.6 million. The valuation of Company stock was based
on the average closing price of Company stock during the measurement period of March 21 through March 27.
The Company’s acquisition of South Tulsa added $142.4 million in assets (including $114.7 million in loans),
$103.9 million in deposits and two branch locations in Tulsa, Oklahoma. Intangible assets recognized as a
result of the transaction consisted of approximately $10.6 million in goodwill and $3.4 million in core deposit
premium. Goodwill recognized in this acquisition is not deductible for income tax purposes.

The fair value of core deposit premiums acquired in 2007 were estimated by a third party using a net cost
savings method. This methodology calculates the present value of the estimated net cost savings attributable
to the core deposit base, relative to alternative costs of funds and tax benefit, if applicable, over the expected
remaining economic life of the depositors. Based on an estimation of the expected remaining economic life of
the depositors, the core deposit premiums are being amortized over a 14 year period, or a weighted average
period of 4.5 years, using accelerated methods.

Historical pro forma information has not been presented for the 2007 acquisitions because the effects on
the Company’s financial statements were not material. Loans with evidence of a deterioration in credit
quality, and acquired in these and the 2006 transactions mentioned below, were not material to the
consolidated financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of AICPA Statement of
Position 03-3, which require special accounting for such loans, were not applied.

During 2006, the Company acquired two banks. The first acquisition was in July 2006, when the
Company, through a bank subsidiary (the Bank), acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of
Boone National Savings and Loan Association (Boone) through a purchase and assumption agreement for
cash of $19.1 million. Boone operated four branches in central Missouri. The Bank acquired loans and
deposits of $126.4 million and $100.9 million, respectively, and assumed debt of $26.7 million. Goodwill of
$15.6 million, core deposit premium of $2.6 million, and $300 thousand of mortgage servicing rights were
recorded as a result of the transaction.

In September 2006, the Company acquired the outstanding stock of West Pointe Bancorp, Inc. (West
Pointe) in Belleville, Illinois, which operated five branch locations in the greater St. Louis area. The total
purchase price of $80.5 million consisted of cash of $13.1 million and 1.5 million shares of Company stock
valued at $67.5 million. The Company’s acquisition of West Pointe added $508.8 million in assets, with
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$255.0 million in loans, and $381.8 million in deposits. Intangible assets recognized as a result of the
transaction consisted of approximately $38.3 million of goodwill, $14.9 million of core deposit premium, and
$531 thousand of mortgage servicing rights.

West Pointe’s results of operations were included in the Company’s consolidated financial results
beginning September 1, 2006. The table below shows pro forma consolidated financial results after combining
West Pointe’s operations with the Company for a full 12 months in 2006 and 2005.

(In thousands, except per share data) 2006 2005

Net interest income plus non-interest income $884,706  $860,879
Net income 215,272 225,476
Net income per share —basic 2.88 2.88
Net income per share — diluted 2.84 2.84

* All share and per share amounts in this note have been restated for the 5% stock dividend distributed in 2007,

3. Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Major classifications within the Company’s loan portfolio at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

(In thousands) 2007 2006

Business $ 3,257,047 $2,860,692
Real estate — construction 668,701 658,148
Real estate —business 2,239,846 2,148,195
Real estate — personal 1,540,289 1,478,669
Consumer 1,648,072 1,435,038
Home equity 460,200 441,851
Consumer credit card 780,227 648,326
Overdrafts 10,986 10,601
Total loans $10,605,368 $9,681,520

Loans to directors and executive officers of the Parent and its significant subsidiaries, and to their
associates, are summarized as follows:

{In thousands)

Balance at January 1, 2007 $ 136,837
Additions 138,272
Amounts collected (160,882)
Amounts written off —
Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 114,227

Management believes all loans to directors and executive officers have been made in the ordinary course
of business with normal credit terms, including interest rate and collateral considerations, and do not
represent more than a normal risk of collection. There were no outstanding loans at December 31, 2007 to
principal holders of the Company’s common stock.

The Company’s lending activity is generally centered in Missouri, Illinois, Kansas and other nearby
states including Iowa, Oklahoma, Colorado, Indiana, and others. The Company maintains a diversified
portfolio with limited industry concentrations of credit risk. Loans and loan commitments are extended
under the Company’s normal credit standards, controls, and monitoring features. Most loan commitments
are short and intermediate term in nature. Loan maturities, with the exception of residential mortgages,
generally do not exceed five years. Collateral is commonly required and would include such assets as
marketable securities and cash equivalent assets, accounts receivable and inventory, equipment, other forms
of personal property, and real estate, At December 31, 2007, unfunded loan commitments totaled $8.0 billion
(which included $3.8 billion in unused approved lines of credit related to credit card loan agreements} which
could be drawn by customers subject to certain review and terms of agreement. At December 31, 2007, loans
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of $1.5 billion were pledged at the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) by subsidiary banks as collateral for
borrowings and letters of credit obtained to secure public deposits. Additional loans of $1.1 billion were
pledged at the Federal Reserve as collateral for discount window borrowings. There were no discount window
borrowings at December 31, 2007 or 2006.

The Company has a net investment in direct financing and sales type leases of $276.1 million and
$262.4 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, which is included in business loans on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets. This investment includes deferred income of $38.7 million and
$37.4 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The net investment in operating leases amounted
t0 $16.6 million and $23.0 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and is included in other assets
on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

A summary of the allowance for loan losses is as follows:

Years Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Balance, January 1 $131,730 $128.447 $132,394
Additions:

Provision for loan losses 42,732 25,649 28,785

Allowance of acquired banks 1,857 3,688 —
Total additions 44,589 29,337 28,785
Deductions:

Loan losses 58,868 40,944 47,220

Less recoveries 16,135 14,890 14,488
Net loan losses 42,733 26,054 32,732
Balance, December 31 $133,586 $131,730 $128,447

The Company had ceased recognition of interest income on loans with a carrying value of $19.7 million
and $16.7 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The interest income not recognized on these
non-accrual loans was $2.3 million, $1.4 million and $1.0 millien during 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Loans 90 days delinquent and still accruing interest amounted to $20.9 million and $20.4 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The following table presents information on impaired loans at December 31:

(In thousands) 2007 2006 .
Impaired loans for which a related allowance has been

provided $15,809 $15,537
Impaired loans for which no related allowance has been

provided 3,930 2,699
Total impaired loans $19,739 $18,236
Allowance related to impaired loans $ 5,626 $ 4,644

Impaired loans include loans on non-accrual status. Average impaired loans were $23.8 million during
2007, $15.3 million during 2006 and $18.7 million during 2005. No interest was recognized on these loans
during their period of impairment.

Loans classified as held for sale primarily consist of loans originated to students while attending colleges
and universities. Such loans are normally sold in the secondary market when the student graduates and the
loan enters into repayment status. Also included as held for sale are certain fixed rate residential mortgage
loans which are sold in the secondary market, generally within three months of origination.

68




(In thousands} 2007 2006

Balance outstanding at end of year:

Student $229,017 $263,786
Residential mortgage 6,879 14,812
Total loans held for sale balance $235,896 $278,598
Net gains on sales:

Student $ 4484 3% 6,273
Residential mortgage 1,186 986
Total gains on sales of loans held for sale, net $ 5670 $ 7,259

4. Investment Securities

A summary of the available for sale investment securities by maturity groupings as of December 31, 2007
is shown below. The weighted average yield for each range of maturities was calculated using the yield on
each security within that range weighted by the amortized cost of each security at December 31, 2007. Yields
on tax exempt securities have not been adjusted for tax exempt status. The investment portfolio includes
fixed and floating-rate mortgage-related securities, predominantly underwritten to the standards of and
guaranteed by the government-sponsored agencies of FHLMC, FNMA and GNMA. These securities differ
from traditional debt securities primarily in that they have uncertain maturity dates and are priced based on
estimated prepayment rates on the underlying mortgages. Also included are certain other asset-backed
securities (primarily credit card, automobile and commercial loan backed securities).

Weighted
Amortized Average
(Dollars in thousands) Cost Fair Value Yiel
U.S. government and federal agency
obligations:
Within 1 year $ 499 3% 500 4.82%
After 1 but within 5 years 5,973 6,617 5.74
Total U.S. government and federal
agency obligations 6,472 7,117 5.66
Government-sponsored enterprise
obligations:
Within 1 year 234,210 233,810 3.96
After 1 but within 5 years 118,436 119,390 4.06
Total goavernment-sponsored
enterprise obligations 352,646 353,200 4.00
State and municipal obligations:
Within 1 year 33,025 33,086 3.50
After 1 but within 5 years 399,017 402,942 3.68
After 5 but within 10 years 31,996 32,550 3.92
After 10 years 34,590 34,785 422
Total state and municipal obligations 498,628 503,363 3.72

Mortgage and asset-backed securities 2,147,354 2,140,485 4.97
Other debt securities:

Within 1 year 21,397 21,327
Total other debt securities 21,397 21,327
Equity securities 90,083 139,528
Total available for sale investment

securities $3,116,580 $3,165,020
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The unrealized gains and losses by type are as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized

{In thousands) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2007
U.S. government and federal

agency obligations $ 6472 $ 645 $ — 8§ 7,117
Government-sponsored

enterprise obligations 352,646 1,171 (617) 353,200
State and municipal obligations 498,628 4,988 (253) 503,363
Mortgage and asset-backed

securities 2,147,354 9,007 (15,876) 2,140,485
Other debt securities 21,397 —_ (70) 21,327
Equity securities 90,083 52,697 (3,252) 139,528
Total $3,116,580 $68,508 $(20,068) $3,165,020
December 31, 2006
U.S. government and federal

agency obligations $ 9258 §$§ 430 $ (37) % 9,651
Government-sponsored

enterprise obligations 471,085 123 (6,641) 464,567
State and municipal obligations 593,816 3,267 (2,259) 594,824
Mortgage and asset-backed

securities 2,167,855 2,334 (33,281y 2,136,908
Other debt securities 36,528 4 (523) 36,009
Equity securities 119,723 53,758 — 173,481
Total $3,398,265 $59916 $(42,741) $3,415440

The table above shows that some of the securities in the portfolioc were temporarily impaired as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006. This temporary impairment represents the estimated amount of loss that
would be realized if the securities were sold at the valuation date. Most of the impairment relates to debt
securities and occurs as a result of changes in overall bond yields between the date the bond was acquired and
the valuation date. Securities which were temporarily impaired at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are shown
below, along with the length of the impairment period. Out of the total available for sale portfolio, consisting
of over 900 individual securities at December 31, 2007, 192 securities were temporarily impaired for
12 months or longer. The majority of these unrealized losses occurred in collateralized mortgage obligations
(CMO's), most of which were purchased during 2003 through 2005 at interest rates below market rates at
December 31, 2007. The Company does not own any CMO’s or other mortgage-backed securities with
subprime loan exposure. Management has considered various factors in its impairment evaluation, including
issuer financial condition, agency rating, payment prospects, and general industry condition. Management
has the intent and ability to hold these securities until their maturity and does not believe that any individual
unrealized loss as of December 31, 2007 represents an other-than-temporary impairment.
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Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
(In thousands) Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
At December 31, 2007
Government-sponsored enterprise
obligations $ 15,236 $ 6 $ 191086 $ 611 $ 206,322 $ 617
State and municipal obligations 10,516 49 39,994 204 50,510 253
Mortgage and asset-backed
securities 346,386 4,170 870,540 11,706 1,216,926 15,876
Other debt securities — — 21,327 70 21,327 70
Subtotal, debt securities 372,138 4,225 1,122 947 12,591 1,495,085 16,816
Equity securities 19,388 3,252 — — 19,388 3,252
Total temporarily impaired
securities $391,526  $7.477  $1,122.947 $12,591 $1,514,473  $20,068
Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
(In thousands) Fair Value Losgses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

At December 31, 2006

U.8. government and federal
agency obligations

Government-sponsored enterprise

$ 500 $ 35

$ 197 $ 2

$ 697 § 37

obligations — - 422 466 6,641 422 466 6,641
State and municipal obligations 123,791 257 178,542 2,002 302,333 2,259
Mortgage and asset-backed

securities 301,756 2,841 1,467,216 30,440 1,768,972 33,281
Other debt securities — — 32,395 523 32,395 523
Total temporarily impaired

securities $426,047  $3,133 $2,100,816 $39,608 $2,526,863 $42,741

In addition to the available for sale portfolio, investment securities held by the Company include certain
securities which are not readily marketable, and are classified as non-marketable on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets. These securities totaled $105.5 million and $74.2 million at December 31,
2007 and 20086, respectively. This category includes holdings of Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) stock and
Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines (FHLB) stock which are required to be held for regulatory purposes
and for borrowing availability, and are carried at cost. Investment in FRB stock is based on the capital
structure of the bank, and investment in FHLB stock is tied to the level of borrowings from the FHLB. At
December 31, 2007, investment in FRB stock totaled $23.5 million and investment in FHLB stock totaled
$36.7 million. The remainder of the securities in the non-marketable category are comprised of investments
in venture capital and private equity concerns. In the absence of readily ascertainable market values, these
securities are carried at estimated fair value.
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The following table presents proceeds from sales of securities and the components of net securities gains
and losses, including fair value adjustments.

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Proceeds from sales $239,541 $170,421 $1,816,865
Gains $ 13688 § 13,086 §$ 29,750
Losses 5,454 4,051 23,388
Net gains $ 8,234 §$ 9035 $ 6,362

Investment securities with a fair value of $2.0 billion and $2.1 billion were pledged at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively, to secure public deposits, securities sold under repurchase agreements, trust funds,
and borrowings at the Federal Reserve discount window. Securities pledged under agreements pursuant to
which the collateral may be sold or re-pledged by the secured parties approximated $524.4 million, while
securities pledged under agreements pursuant to which the secured parties may not sell or re-pledge the
collateral approximated $1.5 billion at December 31, 2007. Except for obligations of various government-
sponsored enterprises such as FNMA, FHLB and FHLMC, no investment in a single issuer exceeds 10% of
stockholders’ equity.

5. Land, Buildings and Equipment
Land, buildings and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2007 and 20086:

{In thousands) 2007 2006

Land $ 94,056 § 86,471
Buildings and improvements 476,897 458,974
Equipment 218,896 214,114
Total 789,849 759,559
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 383,600 373,464
Net land, buildings and equipment $406,249 $386,095

Depreciation expense of $35.7 million, $35.4 million and $32.0 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, was included in occupancy expense and equipment expense in the consolidated income state-
ments. Repairs and maintenance expense of $18.5 million, $18.0 million and $18.7 million for 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively, was inciuded in occupancy expense and equipment expense. No interest expense was
capitalized on construction projects in 2007, as compared to $38 thousand and $123 thousand in 2006 and
2005, respectively.

6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets are summarized in the following table.

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying  Accumulated Net

{In thousands) Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Amortizable intangible assets:

Core deposit premium $ 25,720 $(5,182) $ 20,538 $ 19,920 $(1,093) §$ 18,827

Mortgage servicing rights 1,556 (681) 875 1,338 (5632) 8086
Total amortizable intangible

assets 27,2776 (5,863) 21,413 21,258 {1,625) 19,633
Goodwill 124,570 —_ 124,570 97,643 — 097,643
Total intangible assets $151,846  $(5,863) $145983 $118901  $(1,625) $117,276
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As aresult of routine annual assessments, no impairment of intangible assets was recorded in 2007, 2006
or 2005,

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by operating segment for the years ended December 31, 2006

and 2007 are shown in the following table.

Money
Consumer  Commercial Management Total

(In thousands) Segment Segment Segment Goodwill

Balance at December 31, 2005 $33,540 $14,236 $746 $ 48,522

2006 acquisitions 25,339 27,303 —_ 52,642

Adjustments to prior year acquisitions — (3,621) — (3,521)

Balance at December 31, 2006 58,879 38,018 746 97,643

2007 acquisitions 8,042 17,646 —_— 25,688

Adjustments to prior year acquisitions 732 507 — 1,239

Balance at December 31, 2007 $67,653  $56,171 $746 $124,570 !

Changes in the net carrying amount of other intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2006

and 2007 are shown in the following table.

Core Mortgage

Deposit Servicing
{In thousands) Premium Rights
Balance at December 31, 2005 $ —  § 47

2006 acquisitions
Amortization

19,920 831
(1,093) (72)

Balance at December 31, 2006 18,827 806
2007 acquisitions 8,290 —
Originations — 218
Adjustments to prior year acquisitions (2,490) -
Amortization (4,089) (149)
Balance at December 31, 2007 $20,538 $875

Aggregate amortization expense on intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005 was $4.2 million, $1.2 million and $455 thousand, respectively. The following table shows the estimated
future amortization expense based on existing asset balances and the interest rate environment as of
December 31, 2007. The Company’s actual amortization expense in any given period may be different from
the estimated amounts depending upon the acquisition of intangible assets, changes in mortgage interest
rates, prepayment rates and other market conditions.

(In thousends)

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

$4,346
3,834
3,317
2,805
2,285
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7. Deposits

At December 31, 2007, the scheduled maturities of total time open and certificates of deposit were as
follows:

(In thousands)

Due in 2008 $3,673,515
Due in 2009 197,867
Due in 2010 62,541
Due in 2011 25,770
Due in 2012 22 248
Thereafter 396
Total $3,982,337

At December 31, 2007, the scheduled maturities of time open and certificates of deposit over $100,000
were as follows:

Certificates of
Deposit over Other Time Deposits

(In thousands) $100,000 over $100,000 Total

Due in 3 months or less $ 717,140 $ 6,407 $ 723,547
Due in over 3 through 6 months 291,681 7,125 298,806
Due in over 6 through 12 months 514,208 15,172 529,380
Due in over 12 months 38,998 16,824 55,822
Total $1,562,027 $45,528 $1,607,555

Regulations of the Federal Reserve System require reserves to be maintained by all banking institutions
according to the types and amounts of certain deposit liabilities. Reserves refer to non-earning cash held at
the Federal Reserve Bank. The minimum reserve requirements for the subsidiary banks at December 31,
2007 totaled $80.0 million.
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8. Borrowings

Borrowings of the Company primarily consist of federal funds purchased and securities sold under
agreements to repurchase (repurchase agreements), which generally mature within 90 days. The following
table presents balance and interest rate information on these borrowings.

Maximum
Year End  Average Average Qutstanding
Weighted Weighted Balance at any Balance at
(Dollars in thousands) Rate Rate Outstanding Month End December 31
2007
Federal funds purchased and short-term
repurchase agreements 2.8% 4.7% $1,196,612 $1,800,505 $ 739,219
Long-term repurchase agreements 5.0 5.5 500,000 500,000 500,000
Total federal funds purchased and
repurchase agreements 1,239,219
2006
Federal funds purchased and short-term
repurchase agreements 4.8 4.7 1,256,914 1,586,511 1,271,282
Long-term repurchase agreements 5.5 5.6 198,630 500,000 500,000
Total federal funds purchased and
repurchase agreements 1,771,282
2005
Federal funds purchased and repurchase
agreements 3.8 3.0 1,609,868 2,020,498 1,326,427

Total securities sold under agreements to repurchase at December 31, 2007 were comprised of non-
insured customer funds totaling $613.1 million and structured repurchase agreements of $500.0 million. The
structured repurchase agreements mature in 2010 and have a LIBOR-based floating interest rate and an
embedded floor. All securities sold under agreements to repurchase are secured by a portion of the Company’s
investment portfolio.

Other borrowings of the Company consisted of the following at December 31, 2007.

Year End

Maturity Weighted Year End

(Dollars in thousands) Borrower Date Rate Balance
FHLB advances Subsidiary bank 2008 41% $ 10,571
2009 4.3 76,140
2010 4.8 302,770
2011-16 5.2 71,994
2017 35 100,000
Subordinated debentures Subsidiary holding company 2030 10.9 4,000
2034 7.2 10,310
Non-recourse lease financing notes Bank leasing subsidiary 2008 6.0 32
2011 6.3 304
Structured note payable Venture capital subsidiary 2012 0.0 7,515
Other Subsidiary bank — — 3
Total $583,639

Banking subsidiaries of the Company are members of the FHLB and have access to term financing from
the FHLB. These borrowings are secured under a blanket collateral agreement including primarily resi-
dential mortgages as well as all unencumbered assets and stock of the respective borrowing bank. Total
outstanding advances at December 31, 2007 were $561.5 million. Nearly all of the outstanding advances have
fixed interest rates and contain prepayment penalties. The outstanding balance contains $300.0 million
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which the FHLB may call for early payment within the next two years. The FHLB has issued letters of credit,
totaling $525.3 million at December 31, 2007, to secure the Company’s obligations to depositors of public
funds.

In certain acquisition transactions, the Company has assumed subordinated debentures which were
issued by acquired bank holding companies to wholly owned grantor trusts. The trusts were formed to issue
preferred securities representing undivided beneficial interests in the assets of the trusts and to invest the
gross proceeds of such preferred securities in the debentures. While the trusts are accounted for as uncon-
solidated equity investments, the preferred securities issued by the trusts qualify as Tier 1 Capital for
regulatory purposes. The debentures include $10.3 million of variable rate debt which may be redeemed
beginning in 2009, and $4.0 million of fixed rate debt which may be redeemed beginning in 2010.

Specified amounts of the Company’s lease receivables and underlying equipment in leasing transactions
serve as collateral for non-recourse lease financing notes from other financial institutions, which totaled $336
thousand at December 31, 2007. In the event of a default by a lessee, the other financial institution has a first
lien on the underlying lease equipment and chattel paper, with no further recourse against the Company.

Other long-term debt includes funds borrowed from third-party insurance companies by a venture
capital subsidiary, a Missouri Certified Capital Company, to support its investment activities. Because the
insurance companies receive tax credits, the borrowings do not bear interest. This debt is secured by assets of
the subsidiary and guaranteed by the Parent, evidenced by letters of credit from an affiliate bank.

Cash payments for interest on deposits and borrowings during 2007, 2006 and 2005 on a consolidated
basis amounted to $393.1 million, $294.6 million and $179.7 million, respectively.
9. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense (benefit) from operations for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005 were as follows:

(In thousands) Current Deferred Total
Year ended December 31, 2007:
U.S. federal $102,666 $ (9,866) $ 92,800
State and local 2,298 {1,361) 937

$104,964 $(11,227) $ 93,737

Year ended December 31, 2006:
U.S. federal $104,730 $ (1,394) $103,336
State and local hb4 14 568

$105,284 $ (1,380) $103,904

Year ended December 31, 2005:
U.S. federal $ 90,240 §$ (2,517) $ 87,723
State and local 5,864 760 6,624

$ 96,104 $ (1,757) § 94,347

The components of income tax expense {benefit) credited directly to stockholders’ equity for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities available for sale $11,902 $ 8,885 $(26,633)
Compensation expense for tax purposes in excess of amounts

recognized for financial reporting purposes (2,298) (2,108) (4,288)
Accumulated pension (benefit) loss 4,256 (6,662) —
Income tax expense (benefit) allocated to

stockholders’ equity $13,860 $ 115 $(30,921)
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Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2007 and
2006 were as follows:

(In thousands) 2007 2006
Deferred lax assets:
Loans, principally due to allowance for loan losses $60,652 $57,490
Accrued expenses 10,060 2,142
Equity-based compensation 11,058 10,208
Deferred compensation 4,464 3,706
Unearned fee income 1,310 1,121
Net operating loss carryforwards 803 1,010
Other 2,309 2,222
Total deferred tax assets 90,656 77,899
Deferred tax liabilities:
Equipment lease financing 30,415 28,130
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale 18,407 6,505
Land, buildings and equipment 13,713 16,873
Pension benefit obligations 6,888 2,799
Intangibles 4,159 5,669
Prepaid expenses 3,194 2,122
Accretion on investment securities 2,115 1,517
Loan fees and expenses 2,105 1,920
Other 1,548 530
Total deferred tax liabilities 82,544 65,965
Net deferred tax asset $ 8,112 $11,934

(1) Reclasses amongst the significant components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2006 have occurred
to conform 20086 to the current year presentation.

The Company acquired a federal net operating loss (NOL) carryforward of approximately $4.3 million in
connection with the 2003 acquisition of The Vaughn Group, Inc. The NOL carryforward will begin to expire in
2020. At December 31, 2007, the tax benefit related to the remaining NOL carryforward was $803 thousand.
The Company also has a state tax credit carryforward of $566 thousand as of December 31, 2007. The tax
credit carryforward, which is comprised of various Missouri tax credits, is scheduled to expire in varying
amounts between 2011 and 2017. Management believes it is more likely than not that the results of future
operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the total deferred tax assets.

A reconciliation between the expected federal income tax expense using the federal statutory tax rate of
35 percent to the Company’s actual income tax expense for 2007, 2006 and 2005 follows:

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Computed “expected” tax expense $105,139 $113,311 $111,158
Increase {decrease} in income taxes resulting from:
Tax-exempt interest, net of cost to carry (9,238) (6,264) (2,116)
Tax deductible dividends on allocated shares held by the
Company’s ESOP (1,079 (1,068) (1,035)
State and local income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 609 369 4,305
Corporate reorganization activities — — (13,705)
Other {1,694) (2,444) {4,260)
Total income tax expense $ 93,737 $103,904 $ 94,347

Cash payments of income taxes, net of refunds, amounted to $95.4 million, $97.3 million and $96.7 mil-
lion on a consolidated basis during 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Parent had net receipts of
$6.2 million, $5.7 million and $9.7 million during 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, from tax benefits.
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Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted FIN 48. FIN 48 requires a company to evaluate whether
a tax position taken by the company will “more likely than not” be sustained upon examination by the
appropriate taxing authority. It also provides guidance on how a company should measure the amount of
benefit that the company is to recognize in its financial statements. As a result of the implementation of
FIN 48, the Company recorded a $446 thousand decrease to the liability for unrecognized tax benefits which
was accounted for as an increase to the January 1, 2007 balance of retained earnings. As of January 1, 2007,
the total gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits was $2.4 million and the total amount of unrecognized tax
benefits that would impact the effective tax rate, if recognized, was $2.0 million.

It is the Company’s policy to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax
expense. Interest and penalties recorded in income tax expense, classified as a component of income tax
expense, was $122 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2007. Accrued interest and penalties was $442
thousand and $564 thousand as of January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

As of December 31, 2007, the gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits was $3.3 million and the total
amount of unrecognized tax benefits that would impact the effective tax rate, if recognized, was $2.5 million.
While it is expected that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change in the next twelve months, the
Company does not expect this change to have a material impact on the results of operations or the financial
position of the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax of multiple
state and local jurisdictions. Tax years 2004 through 2007 remain open to examination for U.S. federal income
tax and tax years 2004 through 2007 remain open {o examination by significant state tax jurisdictions.

The activity in the accrued liability for unrecognized tax benefits for year ended December 31, 2007 was
as follows:

{In thousands)

Unrecognized tax benefits as of January 1, 2007 $2,476
Gross increases — tax positions in prior period 512
Gross decreases — tax positions in prior period (153)
Gross increases — current-period tax positions 551
Settlements (30)
Lapse of statute of limitations (98)
Unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2007 $3,258

10. Employee Benefit Plans

Employee benefits charged to operating expenses are summarized in the tablte below. Substantially all of
the Company’s employees are covered by a defined contribution (401K) plan, under which the Company
makes matching contributions.

(In thousands} 2007 2006 2005

Payroll taxes $19,386 $18,078 $16,962
Medical plans 13,583 15,868 12,287
401K plan 8,839 8,046 7,647
Pension plans (763) (382) 146
Other 2,345 1,775 1,695
Total employee benefits $43,390 343,385 $38,737

A majority of the Company’s current employees are covered by a noncontributory defined benefit pension
plan, however, participation in the pension plan is not available to employees hired after June 30, 2003.
Participants are fully vested after five years of service and benefits are based on years of participation and
average annualized earnings. Certain key executives also participate in a supplemental executive retirement
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plan (the CERP) that the Company funds only as retirement benefits are disbursed. The CERP carries no
segregated assets.

Effective January 1, 2005 substantially all benefits accrued under the pension plan were frozen. Certain
annual salary credits to pension accounts were discontinued, however, the accounts continue to accrue
interest at a stated annual rate. Enhancements were then made to the 401K plan, which have increased
employer contributions to the 401K plan. Enhancements were also made to the CERP, providing credits
based on hypothetical contributions in excess of those permitted under the 401K plan.

SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans”,
was adopted on December 31, 2006. It required an employer to recognize the funded status of a defined
benefit postretirement plan as an asset or liability in its balance sheet and to recognize changes in that
funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income. Accordingly, at
December 31, 2006 the Company adjusted its balance sheet to reflect this funded status, reducing accu-
mulated other comprehensive income by $17.5 million on a pre-tax basis. Beginning in 2008, SFAS No. 158
requires measurement of plan assets and benefit obligations as of fiscal year end. For 2007 and prior, the
Company’s measurement date is September 30.

Under the Company’s funding policy for the defined benefit pension plan, contributions are made to a
trust as necessary to provide for current service and for any unfunded accrued actuarial liabilities over a
reasonable period. To the extent that these requirements are fully covered by assets in the trust, a
contribution might not be made in a particular year. The Company made no contributions to the defined
benefit pension plan in 2007, and the minimum required contribution for 2008 is expected to be zero. The
Company does not expect to make any further contributions other than the necessary funding contributions
to the CERP. Contributions to the CERP were $10,000, $8,000 and $8,000 during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Benefit obligations of the CERP at the September 30 valuation date are shown in the table immediately
below. In all other tables presented, the pension plan and the CERP are presented on a combined basis, even
though the CERP is unfunded. Although the CERP is unfunded, the foregoing description and the following
tables describe payments under the CERP as “contributions”.

{In thousands) 2007 2006
Projected benefit obligation $1,735 $1,484
Accumulated benefit obligation $1,735 §$1,484

The following items are components of the net pension cost for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005.

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2006

Service cost-benefits earned during the year $1,063 $ 997 $ 1,011
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 5,033 4,718 4,693
Expected return on plan assets (7,568) (7,199) (6,816)
Amortization of unrecognized net loss 719 1,102 1,258
Net periodic pension cost (income) $ (763) $ (382) $ 146
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The following table sets forth the pension plans’ funded status, using valuation dates of September 30,
2007 and 20086.

{In thousands) 2007 2006
Change in projected benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at prior valuation date $ 90,701 $87,927
Service cost 1,053 997
Interest cost 5,033 4718
Benefits paid (5,229) (4,508)
Actuarial {gain) loss (5,292) 1,567
Projected benefit obligation at valuation date 86,266 90,701
Change in plan assets :
Fair value of plan assets at prior valuation date 97,215 92,430
Actual return (loss) on plan assets 12,758 9,285
Employer contributions 10 8
Benefits paid (5,229) (4,508)
Fair value of plan assets at valuation date 104,754 97,215
Funded status and net amount recognized at

valuation date $ 18,488 § 6,514

Employer contributions made after the September 30 valuation date but before the December 31 fiscal
year end amounted to $3,000 in 2007 and $2,000 in 2006. Amounts recognized on the December 31 balance
sheets are as follows:

{In thousands) 2007 2006
Prepaid pension cost $20,223 § 7,998
Accrued benefit liability (1,732) {1,482)

Net amount recognized at December 31 $18,491 $ 6,516

The accumulated benefit obligation, which represents the liability of a plan assuming its immediate
termination, was $86.3 million and $90.7 million for both plans on September 30, 2007 and 20086, respectively.

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic benefit cost and included in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are shown below, including amounts recognized in other
comprehensive income during the periods. All amounts are shown on a pre-tax basis.

fIn thousands) 2007 2006
Prior service credit (cost) $ —  $ -
Accumulated loss (6,332) (17,532)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {6,332) (17,532)
Cumulative employer contributions in excess of net

periodic benefit cost 24,823 24,048
Net amount recognized on the December 31

balance sheet $18,491 §$ 6,516
Net gain arising during period $10,481 ¢ —
Amortization of net loss 719 —
Total recognized in other comprehensive income $11,200 3 —

Total income recognized in net periodic pension
cost and other comprehensive income $11,963 § 382
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The estimated net loss to be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic
pension cost in 2008 is zero.

The following assumptions, on a weighted average basis, were used in accounting for the plans.

2007 2006 2005

Determination of benefit obligation at year end:

Discount rate 6.25% 5.75% b.50%

Assumed credit on cash balance accounts 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Determination of net periodic benefit cost for year ended:

Discount rate 5.75% 5.50% 5.75%

Rate of increase in future compensation levels NA NA 520%

Long-term rate of return on assets 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%

Assumed credit on cash balance accounts 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

The weighted average asset allocations as of September 30 by asset category were as follows:

2007 2006
Equity securities 656% 62%
Debt securities 33% 34%
Money market 2% 4%
Total 100% 100%

The investment policy of the pension plan is designed for growth in value within limits designed to
safeguard against significant losses within the portfolio. The current long-term investment mix target for the
plan is 60% equity securities and 40% fixed income; equities may range 15% above or below the 60% target.
There are guidelines regarding the type of investments held that may change from time to time, currently
including items such as holding bonds rated investment grade or better, and prohibiting investment in
Company stock. The plan does not utilize derivatives, although some investment fund managers employ
currency hedging strategies that involve derivatives.

The selection of a discount rate was based on a review of various bond indices. These portfolios are
comprised of high quality fixed-income instruments whose cash flows match the future estimated benefit
payments under the plan. The selection process also considers the results of actuarial modeling tools and
assumptions.

The assumed overall expected long-term rate of return on pension plan assets used in calculating 2007
pension plan expense was 8%. Determination of the plan’s rate of return is based upon historical returns for
equities and fixed income indexes. The average 10-year rolling return for an asset mix comparable to the
Company’s pension plan is 6.6%. The rate of return on the plan assets was 12.9% in 2007 and 15.2% in 2006.
The rate used in plan calculations may be adjusted by management for current trends in the economic
environment. As shown above, with a target of over half of the plan’s investment to be in equities, the actual
return for any one plan year may fluctuate significantly with changes in the stock market.

The following future benefit payments are expected to be paid:

{In thousands)

2008 $ 5,075
2009 5,232
2010 5,362
2011 5,568
2012 5,724
2013-2017 30,364
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11. Stock-Based Compensation and Directors Stock Purchase Plan*

The Company’s stock-based compensation is provided under a stockholder-approved plan which allows
for issuance of various types of awards, including stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock
and restricted stock units, performance awards and stock-based awards. At December 31, 2007,
3,542 8B0 shares remained available for issuance under the plan. The stock-based compensation expense
that was charged against income was $6.3 million, $4.8 million and $6.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The total income tax benefit recognized in the income
statement for share-based compensation arrangements was $2.3 million, $1.8 million and $2.5 million for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase in stock-based compensation in
2007 compared to the previous year resulted from additional stock awards granted in connection with bank
acquisitions and the initial effect in 2006 of the accounting requirement for forfeitures of SFAS No. 123
{revised), “Share-Based Payment”, which is discussed below.

In determining compensation cost, the Black-Scholes option-pricing model is used to estimate the fair
value of options and stock appreciation rights (SARs) on date of grant. The Black-Scholes model is a closed-
end model that uses the assumptions in the following table. Expected volatility is based on historical
volatility of the Company’s stock, The Company uses historical exercise behavior and other factors to
estimate the expected term of the options and SARs, which represents the period of time that the options and
SARs granted are expected te be outstanding. The risk-free rate for the expected term is based on the
U.S. Treasury zero coupon spot rates in effect at the time of grant.

Below are the fair values of SARs and stock options granted, using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model, including the model assumptions for those grants. SARs and stock options were granted with exercise
prices equal to the market price of the Company’s stock at the date of grant and have 10-year contractual
terms. SARs, which were granted in 2007 and 2006, vest on a graded basis over 4 years of continuous service.
All SARs must be settled in stock under provisions of the plan. Stock options, which were granted in 2005 and
previous years, vest on a graded basis over 3 years of continuous service.

2007 2006 2005
Weighted per share average fair value at grant date $ 1196 $ 1277 § 1079
Assumptions:
Dividend yield 1.9% 1.7% 2.0%
Volatility 19.9% 21.1% 23.4%
Risk-free interest rate 4.6% 4.6% 4.2%
Expected term 7.4 years 7.4 years 7.1 years

A summary of option activity during 2007 is presented below.

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate

Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Shares Price Term Value
QOutstanding at January 1, 2007 3,385,503  $31.57
Granted — —
Forfeited (2,924) 41.11
Expired (525)  41.08
Exercised {(517,639) 26.87
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 2,864,415 $3240 4.5years $35,685
Exercisable at December 31, 2007 2,740,106  $32.02 4.4 years  $35,196
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2007 2,861,965 $32.39 4.5years $35,676
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A summary of SAR activity during 2007 is presented below.

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate

Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Shares Price Term Value
Qutstanding at January 1, 2007 500,791  $46.94
Granted 498,371 47.14
Forfeited (17,639) 46.81
Expired (2,460)  46.78
Exercised — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 979,063 $47.05 8.6 years $—
Exercisable at December 31, 2007 122,380 $46.95 8.1 years $—
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2007 891,044 $47.04 8.6 years $—

Additional information about stock options exercised is presented below. No SARs have been exercised.

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Intrinsic value of options exercised $ 9,808 $8645 §$19,191
Cash received from options exercised $12,919 $6,548 $17,693
Tax benefit realized from options exercised $ 2,098 351818 $ 4,288

Nonvested stock is awarded to key employees, by action of the Board of Directors. These awards
generally vest after 5 years of continued employment, but vesting terms may vary according to the specifics
of the individual grant agreement. There are restrictions as to transferability, sale, pledging, or assigning,
among others, prior to the end of the 5 year vesting period. Dividend and voting rights are conferred upon
grant. A summary of the status of the Company’s nonvested share awards as of December 31, 2007 and
changes during the year then ended is presented below.

Weighted
Average

Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at January 1, 2007 175,882 $39.15
Granted 78,008 45.48
Vested (22,510) 31.79
Forfeited (5,256) 40,22
Nonvested at December 31, 2007 226,124 $42.04

The total fair value (at vest date) of shares vested during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $1.0 million,
$1.6 million and $1.3 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2007, there was $12.1 million of unrecognized compensation cost (net of estimated
forfeitures) related to unvested options, SARs and stock awards. That cost is expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of 2.6 years.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised) on January 1, 2006. As a result of adoption, the Company
recorded a reduction of $543 thousand in stock-based compensation expense in the first quarter of 2006. This
adjustment resulted from a change by the Company from its former policy of recognizing the effect of
forfeitures only as they occurred to the Statement’s requirement to estimate the number of outstanding
instruments for which the requisite service is not expected to be rendered. The adjustment was not
considered to be material to the Company’s financial statements and, accordingly, was not presented
separately as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the accompanying 2006 consol-
idated income statement.
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A portion of shares repurchased under the Company’s stock repurchase program during the next twelve
months will be used to satisfy share option exercises, which are expected to range from 500,000 to
600,000 shares.

The Company has a directors stock purchase plan whereby outside directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries may elect to use their directors’ fees to purchase Company stock at market value each month
end. Remaining shares available for issuance under this plan were 110,961 at December 31, 2007. In 2007,
16,483 shares were purchased at an average price of $45.01 and in 2006, 15,720 shares were purchased at an
average price of $46.18.

* All share and per share amounts in this note have been restated for the 5% stock dividend distributed in 2007.

12, Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is the total of net income and all other non-owner changes in equity. Items
recognized under accounting standards as components of comprehensive income are displayed in the
consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity, and additional information is presented below about the
Company'’s two components of other comprehensive income. The first component is the unrealized holding
gains and losses on available for sale securities. In the calculation of other comprehensive income, certain
reclassification adjustments are made to avoid double counting items that are included as part of net income
for a period that also had been included as part of other comprehensive income in that period or earlier
periods. The reclassification amounts and the related income tax expense or benefit for the three years ended
December 31 are shown in the table below. The second component results from the Company’s adoption of
SFAS 158 on December 31, 2006, as mentioned in Note 10. Adjustments to other comprehensive income are
required to recognize pension gains or losses that arise during the period but are not recognized as
components of net periodic benefit cost, and also to recognize corresponding adjustments in other compre-
hensive income when these gains and losses are subsequently amortized to net periodic benefit cost.

{In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Unrealized holding gains (losses) on securities $ 34,192 $21,344  $(65,006)
Tax (expense) benefit on unrealized

gains/losses (13,025) (8,089) 24,652
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses

realized and included in net income (2,927} 2,094 (5,080)
Reclassification adjustment for tax expense

(benefit) on realized gains/losses 1,123 (796) 1,981

Net unrealized gains (losses) on

securities ' 19,363 14,553 (43,453)

Amortization of pension loss 719 — —
Net gain arising during period 10,481 —_ —_
Tax expense on change in pension loss {4,256) — —

Change in pension loss 6,944 — —
Other comprehensive income (loss) $ 26,307 $14,553 $(43,453)
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The end of period components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are shown in the table
below.

Accumulated

Unrealized Other

Gains (Losses) Pension Comprehensive

(In thousands) on Securities Loss Income (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2005 $ (3,883) $ — $ (3,883)
Current period other comprehensive income 14,553 — 14,553

Adjustment to initially apply

SFAS No. 158 — {10,870) (10,870)
Balance at December 31, 2006 10,670 (10,870) (200)
Current period other comprehensive income 19,363 6,944 26,307
Balance at December 31, 2007 $30,033 $ (3,926) $ 26,107

13. Segments

The Company segregates financial information for use in assessing its performance and allocating
resources among three operating segments. The Consumer segment includes the retail branch network,
consumer finance, bankeard, student loans and discount brokerage services. The Commercial segment
provides corporate lending, leasing, and international services, as well as business, government deposit and
cash management services. The Money Management segment provides traditional trust and estate tax
planning services, and advisory and discretionary investment management services. The Money Manage-
ment segment also includes the Capital Markets Group, which sells fixed-income securities and provides
investment safekeeping and bond accounting services.

The Company’s business line reporting system derives segment information from the internal profit-
ability reporting system used by management to monitor and manage the financial performance of the
Company. This information is based on internal management accounting policies, which have been developed
to reflect the underlying economics of the businesses. The policies address the methodologies applied in
connection with funds transfer pricing and assignment of overhead costs among segments. Funds transfer
pricing was used in the determination of net interest income by assigning a standard cost (credit) for funds
used (provided) by assets and liabilities based on their maturity, prepayment and/or repricing character-
istics. Income and expense that directly relate to segment operations are recorded in the segment when
incurred. Expenses that indirectly support the segments are allocated based on the most appropriate method
available.

The Company’s reportable segments are strategic lines of business that offer different products and
services. They are managed separately because each line services a specific customer need, requiring
different performance measurement analyses and marketing strategies. The performance measurement
of the segments is based on the management structure of the Company and is not necessarily comparable
with similar information for any other financial institution. The information is also not necessarily indicative
of the segments’ financial condition and results of operations if they were independent entities.

The following tables present selected financial information by segment and reconciliations of combined
segment totals to consolidated totals. There were no material intersegment revenues between the three
segments. Management periodically makes changes to methods of assigning costs and income to its business
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segments to better reflect operating results. If appropriate, these changes are reflected in prior year

information presented below.

Segment Income Statement Data

Money Segment Qther/ Consolidated
(In thousands) Consumer Commercial Management Totals Elimination Totals
Year ended December 31, 2007:
Net interest income $393,693 $222,708 $10,239 $626,640 §$ (B88,568) $538,072
Provision for loan losses 34,791 8,218 —_ 43,009 277) 42,732
Non-interest income 187,381 85,358 92,628 365,367 6,214 371,581
Investment securities gains, net —_ —_ — —_ 8,234 8,234
Non-interest expense 307,284 159,113 65,723 532,120 42,638 574,758
Income before income taxes $238,999 $140,735 $37,144 $416,878 $(116,481) $300,397
Year ended December 31, 2006:
Net interest income $375,620 $212,606 $ 9,693 $597,919 $ (84,720) $513,199
Provision for loan losses 26,392 (313) — 26,079 (430) 25,649
Non-interest income 179,930 79,656 85,235 344,821 7,765 352 586
Investment securities gains, net 2,839 —_ — 2,839 6,196 9,035
Non-interest expense 287,507 144,950 60,388 492,845 32,680 525,425
Income before income taxes $244 490 $147625 $34,540 $426,655 $(102,909) $323,746
Year ended December 31, 2005:
Net interest income $332,700 $194,538 $ 8,059 $535,297 $ (33,595) $501,702
Provision for loan losses 34,814 (2,280) — 32,534 (3,749) 28,785
Non-interest income 173,560 73,487 82,494 329,541 5,296 334,837
Investment securities gains, net — —_ —_ —_ 6,362 6,362
Non-interest expense 278,193 136,368 58,837 473,398 23,124 496,522
Income before income taxes $193,253 $133,937 $31,716 $358,906 $ (41,312) $317,594

The segment activity, as shown above, includes both direct and allocated items. Amounts in the “Other/
Elimination” column include activity not related to the segments, such as that relating to administrative
functions, the investment securities portfolio, and the effect of certain expense allocations to the segments.
Also included in this category is the difference between loan charge-offs and recoveries assigned directly to
the segments and the provision for loan loss expense. During 2007, the pre-tax profitability in the “Other/
Elimination” column decreased $13.6 million compared to 2006. This occurred partly because of a $21.0 mil-
lion litigation expense provision, which is further discussed in Note 18, which was not allocated to a segment.
The pre-tax profitability in the same column decreased $61.6 million in 2006 compared to 2005, mainly due to
LIBOR based cost of funds charges that rose faster during 2006 than the investment securities yields.
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Segment Balance Sheet Data

Money Segment Other/ Consolidated

(In thousands) Consumer Commercial Management Totals Elimination Totals
Average balances for 2007:
Assets $4,599,697 $6,172,816 $384,245 $11,156,758 $4,323,569 $15,480,327
Loans, including held for sale 4,436,507 6,056,424 43 10,492,974 18,258 10,511,232
Goodwill and other intangible

assets 80,043 54,655 746 135,444 —_ 135,444
Deposgits 8,906,655 2,446,222 493,273 11,846,150 31,865 11,878,015
Average balances for 2006:
Assets $4,162,398 $5,396,072 $236,200 $ 9,794,670 $4,443,934 $14,238,604
Loans, including held for sale 4,043,128 5,308,467 17 9,351,612 69,770 9,421,382
Goodwill and other intangible

assets 47,023 24,270 746 72,039 — 72,039
Deposits 8,112,122 2,405,136 478,448 10,995,706 124,091 11,119,797

The above segment balances include only those items directly associated with the segment. The “Other/
Elimination” column includes unallocated bank balances not associated with a segment (such as investment
securities and federal funds sold), balances relating to certain other administrative and corporate functions,
and eliminations between segment and non-segment balances. This column also includes the resulting effect
of allocating such items as float, deposit reserve and capital for the purpose of computing the cost or credit for
funds used/provided.

The Company uses a funds transfer pricing method to value funds used (e.g., loans, fixed assets, cash,
etc.) and funds provided (deposits, borrowings, and equity) by the business segments and their components.
This process assigns a specific value to each new source or use of funds with a maturity, based on current
LIBOR interest rates, thus determining an interest spread at the time of the transaction. Non-maturity
assets and liabilities are assigned to LIBOR based funding pools. This provides an accurate means of valuing
fund sources and uses in a varying interest rate environment.

14. Common Stock

On December 13, 2007, the Company distributed a 5% stock dividend on its $5 par common stock for the
fourteenth consecutive year. All per share data in this report has been restated to reflect the stock dividend.

Basic income per share is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted income per share gives
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effect to all dilutive potential common shares that were outstanding during the year. The calculations of basic
and diluted income per share, which have been restated for all stock dividends, are as follows:

(In thousands, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005
Basic earnings per share:

Net income available to common shareholders $206,660 $219,842 $223,247
Weighted average basic common shares outstanding 72,360 73,686 76,765

Basic earnings per share $ 286 $ 298 3§ 291

Diluted earnings per share:

Net income available to common shareholders $206,660 $219,842 $223,247
Weighted average common shares outstanding 72,360 73,686 76,765

Net effect of nonvested stock and the assumed exercise of
stock-based awards — based on the treasury stock
method using the average market price for the

respective periods 829 992 1,029
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding 73,189 74,678 77,794
Diluted earnings per share $ 282 $ 294 $ 287

The table below shows activity in the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock during 2007,
Shares in the table below are presented on an historical basis and have not been restated for the 5% stock
dividend in 2007.

(In thousands)

Shares outstanding at January 1, 2007 69,953
Issuance of stock:
Acquisition of South Tulsa Financial Corporation 562
Sales and awards under employee and director plans 562
5% stock dividend 3,417
Purchases of treasury stock (2,699)
Other 1
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2007 71,796

The Company maintains a treasury stock buyback program authorized by its Board of Directors. At
December 31, 2007, 1,529,003 shares were available for purchase under the current Board authorization. In
February 2008, the Board authorized the purchase of additional shares, bringing the total authorization to
3,000,000 shares. The Company has routinely used these reacquired shares to fund stock compensation
programs and annual stock dividends.

15. Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Company is subject {o various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and additional
discretionary actions by regulators that could have a direct material effect on the Company’s financial
statements. The regulations require the Company to meet specific capital adequacy guidelines that involve
gquantitative measures of the Company’s assets, Habilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated
under regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s capital classification is also subject to qualitative
judgments by the regulators about compenents, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and
its banking subsidiaries to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of Tier I capital to total average assets
{leverage ratio), and minimum ratios of Tier I and Total capital to risk-weighted assets (as defined). To meet
minimum, adequately capitalized regulatory requirements, an institution must maintain a Tier I capital
ratio of 4.00%, a Total capital ratio of 8.00% and a leverage ratio of 4.00%. The minimum required ratios for
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well-capitalized banks (under prompt corrective action provisions) are 6.00% for Tier I capital, 10.00% for
Total capital and 5.00% for the leverage ratio.

The following tables show the capital amounts and ratios for the Company (on a consolidated basis) and
its full-service banking subsidiaries, together with the minimum and well-capitalized capital requirements,

at the last two year ends.

Minimum Well-Copitalized
Actual Capital Requirement Capital Requirement
(Deollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2007:
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (consolidated) $1,532,189 11.49% $1,066,477 8.00% N.A. NA
Commerce Bank, N.A. (Missouri) 1,270,953 10.29 987,925 8.00 $1,234,906 10.00%
Commerce Bank, N.A, (Kansas) 96,878 12.15 63,770 8.00 79,712  10.00
Tier I Capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (consolidated) $1,375,035 10.31% $ 533,239 4.00% N.A.  NA
Commerce Bank, N.A, (Missouri) 1,146,752 9.29 493963 4.00 $ 740,944 6.00%
Commerce Bank, N.A. (Kansas) 86,912 10.90 31,885 4.00 47,827 6.00
Tier I Capital (to adjusted
quarterly average assets):
(Leverage Ratio)
Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (consolidated) $1,375,035 8.76% $ 627,858 4.00% N.A. NA.
Commerce Bank, N.A. (Missouri) 1,146,752 7.96 576,509 4.00 $ 720,637 5.00%
Commerce Bank, N.A. (Kansas) 86,912 6.98 49,771 4.00 62,214 5.00
Minimum Well-Capitalized
Actual Capital Requirement Capital Requirement
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2006:
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Commerce Banecshares, Inc. {consoclidated) $1,502,386 12.56% $956,782 8.00% N.A. NA.
Commerce Bank, N.A. (Missouri) 1,153,415 1042 885800 8.00 $1,107,250 10.00%
Commerce Bank, N.A. (Kansas) 109,988 16.04 54,873 8.00 68,591 10.00
Tier I Capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (consolidated) $1,345,378 11.25% $478,391  4.00% NA.  NA
Commerce Bank, N.A. (Missouri) 1,031,282 9.31 442900 4.00 $ 664,350 6.00%
Commerce Bank, N.A. (Kansas) 101,395 14.78 27436 4.00 41,155 6.00
Tier I Capital (to adjusted
quarterly average assets):
(Leverage Ratio)
Commerce Bancshares, Inc. {consolidated) $1,345,378 9.05% $594,778 4.00% N.A. NA.
Commerce Bank, N.A. (Missouri) 1,031,282 7.58 544,206 4.00 § 680,258 5.00%
Commerce Bank, N.A, (Kansas) 101,395 8.32 48,733 4.00 60,916 5.00

At December 31, 2007, the Company met all capital requirements to which it is subject and all of its
banking subsidiaries exceeded the regulatory definition of well-capitalized.

16. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instruments held by the Company, in
addition to a discussion of the methods used and assumptions made in computing those estimates, are set

forth below.
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Loans

Fair values are estimated for various groups of loans segregated by 1) type of loan, 2) fixed/adjustable
interest terms and 3) performing/non-performing status. The fair value of performing loans is calculated by
discounting all simulated cash flows. Cash flows include all principal and interest to be received, taking
embedded optionality such as the customer’s right to prepay into account. Discount rates are computed for
each loan category using implied forward market rates adjusted to recognize each loan’s approximate credit
risk. Fair value of impaired loans approximates their carrying value because such loans are recorded at the
appraised or estimated recoverable value of the collateral or the underlying cash flow,

Inuvestment Securities

The fair values of the debt and equity instruments in the available for sale and trading sections of the
investment security portfolio are estimated based on prices obtained from financial publications, pricing
vendors, or bid quotations received from securities dealers. Fair values are estimated for those investments
for which a market source is not readily available.

A schedule of investment securities by category and maturity is provided in Note 4 on Investment
Securities. Fair value estimates are based on the value of one unit without regard to any premium or discount
that may result from concentrations of ownership, possible tax ramifications or estimated transaction costs.

Federal Funds Sold and Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell and Cash and Due From
Banks

The carrying amounts of federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell and
cash and due from banks approximate fair value. Federal funds sold and securities purchased under
agreements to resell generally mature in 90 days or less.

Accrued Interest Receivable/Payable

The carrying amounts of acerued interest receivable and accrued interest payable approximate their fair
values because of the relatively short time period between the accrual period and the expected receipt or
payment due date.

Dertvative Instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is based on the estimated amounts that the Company
would receive or pay to terminate the contracts at the reporting date (i.e., mark-to-market value). Fair values
are based on dealer quotes or pricing models.

Deposits

The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity is equal to the amount payable on demand. Such
deposits include savings and interest and non-interest bearing demand deposits. These fair value estimates
do not recognize any benefit the Company receives as a result of being able to administer, or control, the
pricing of these accounts. The fair value of certificates of deposit is based on the discounted value of cash
flows, taking early withdrawal optionality into account. Discount rates are based on the Company’s
approximate cost of obtaining similar maturity funding in the market.

Borrowings

The fair value of federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase which
mature or reprice within 90 days approximates their carrying value. The fair value of long-term debt is
estimated by discounting contractual maturities using an estimate of the current market rate for similar
instruments.
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The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

2007 2006
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated

(In thousands) Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial Assets
Loans, including held for sale $10,841,264 $11,050,499 $9,960,118 $10,036,534
Available for sale investment securities 3,165,020 3,165,020 3,415,440 3,415,440
Trading securities 26,478 26,478 6,676 6,676
Non-marketable securities 105,517 105,517 74,207 74,207
Federal funds sold and securities purchased

under agreements to resell 655,165 655,165 527,816 527,816
Accrued interest receivable 72,641 72,641 79,565 79,565
Derivative instruments 4,923 4,923 1,300 1,300
Cash and due from banks 673,081 673,081 626,500 626,500
Financial Liabilities
Non-interest bearing demand deposits $ 1,413,849 $ 1,413,849 $1,312,400 $ 1,312,400
Savings, interest checking and money market

deposits 7,155,366 7,155,366 6,879,047 6,879,047
Time open and C.D.s 3,982,337 4,045,203 3,553,407 3,589,259
Federal funds purchased and securities sold

under agreements to repurchase 1,239,219 1,230,282 1,771,282 1,771,282
Other borrowings 583,639 602,325 53,934 58,338
Accrued interest payable 69,088 69,088 63,593 63,593
Derivative instruments 6,709 6,709 2,106 2,106

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The fair value of letters of credit and commitments to extend credit is based on the fees currently charged
to enter into similar agreements. The aggregate of these fees is not material. These instruments are also
referenced in Note 18 on Commitments, Contingencies and Guarantees.

Limitations

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market information. They do
not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one time the Company’s entire
holdings of a particular financial instrument. Because no market exists for many of the Company’s financial
instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected loss experience, risk
characteristics and economic conditions. These estimates are subjective, involve uncertainties and cannot be
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

17. Derivative Instruments

One of the Company’s primary risks associated with its lending activity is interest rate risk. Interest
rates contain an ever-present volatility, as they are affected by the market’s perception of the economy’s
health at any one point in time, as well as by specific actions of the Federal Reserve. These fluctuations can
either compress or enhance fixed rate interest margins depending on the liability structure of the funding
organization. Over the longer term, rising interest rates may have a negative effect on interest margins as
funding sources become more expensive relative to any fixed rate loans that do not re-price as quickly with
the change in interest rates. However, in order to maintain its competitive advantage, in certain circum-
stances the Company offers fixed rate commercial financing whose term extends beyond its traditional three
to five year parameter. This exposes the Company to the risk that the fair value of the fixed rate loan may fall
if market interest rates increase. To reduce this exposure for certain specified loans, the Company may enter
into interest rate swaps, paying interest based on a fixed rate in exchange for interest based on a variable
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rate. At December 31, 2007, the Company had two swaps, with a notional amount totaling $13.4 million,
which have been designated as fair value hedges. The amount of hedge ineffectiveness on these swaps is
recorded in interest income in the accompanying consolidated income statements. The Company also sells
swaps to its borrowers to accommodate their interest rate risk profiles, and enters into identical dealer swaps
with offsetting payfreceive terms. The notional amount of these types of swaps at December 31, 2007 was
$295.0 million. The changes in the fair values of these swaps were recorded in other non-interest income,

The Company’s mortgage banking operation makes commitments to extend fixed rate loans secured by
1-4 family residential properties, which are considered to be derivative instruments. These commitments are
recognized on the balance sheet at fair value from their inception through their expiration or funding, and
have an average term of 80 to 90 days. The Company’s general practice is to sell such loans in the secondary
market. The Company obtains forward sale contracts with investors in the secondary market in order to
manage these risk positions. Most of the contracts are matched to a specific loan on a “best efforts” basis, in
which the Company is obligated to deliver the loan only if the loan closes. The sale contracts are also
accounted for as derivatives, Hedge accounting has not been applied to these activities. The unrealized gains
and losses resulting from recording both the loan commitments and the sale contracts at fair value were
included in loan fees and sales in the Company’s consolidated income statements.

The Company’s foreign exchange aclivity involves the purchase and sale of forward foreign exchange
contracts, which are commitments to purchase or deliver a specified amount of foreign currency at a specific
future date. This activity enables customers involved in international business to hedge their exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. The Company minimizes its related exposure ariging from these '
customer transactions with offsetting contracts for the same currency and time frame. In addition, the
Company uses foreign exchange contracts, to a limited extent, for trading purposes, including taking
proprietary positions. Risk arises from changes in the currency exchange rate and from the potential for
counterparty nonperformance. These risks are controlled by adherence to a foreign exchange trading policy
which contains control limits on currency amounts, open positions, maturities and losses, and procedures for
approvals, record-keeping, monitoring and reporting. Hedge accounting has not been applied to these foreign
exchange activities. The changes in fair value of the foreign exchange derivative instruments were recorded
in other non-interest income.

At December 31, 2007, the total notional amount of derivatives held by the Company amounted to
$371.2 million. Derivatives with positive fair values of $4.9 million were recorded in other assets and
derivatives with negative fair values of $6.7 million were recorded as other liabilities at December 31, 2007,
Changes in the fair values of the derivative instruments and hedged loans, as shown in the table below, were
recognized in current earnings.

{In thousands)
Unrealized gain (loss)

resulting from change in fair value 2007 2006 2005

Swaps/hedged loans $263 $130 $ 64
Credit risk participation agreements 14 — —
Mortgage loan commitments 49 (53) 23
Mortgage ioan sale contracts (54) 56 (46)
Foreign exchange contracts B3 (7D 84
Total $219 §$ 60 $125
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18. Commitments, Contingencies and Guarantees

The Company leases certain premises and equipment, all of which were classified as operating leases.
The rent expense under such arrangements amounted to $5.9 million, $5.5 million and $5.3 million in 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. A summary of minimum lease commitments follows:

(In thousands) Type of Property
Real

Year Ended December 31 Property Equipment Total
2008 $ 4,989 $794 $ 5,783
2009 4,562 573 5,135
2010 3,679 296 3,975
2011 2,944 77 3,021
2012 2,503 — 2,603
After 24,053 — 24,053

Total minimum lease payments $44,470

All leases expire prior to 2055. It is expected that in the normal course of business, leases that expire will
be renewed or replaced by leases on other properties; thus, the future minimum lease commitments are not
expected to be less than the amounts shown for 2008.

The Company engages in various transactions and commitments with off-balance sheet risk in the
normal course of business to meet customer financing needs. The Company uses the same credit policies in
making the commitments and conditional obligations described below as it does for on-balance sheet
instruments. The following table summarizes these commitments at December 31:

(In thousands) 2007 2006
Commitments to extend credit:

Credit card $3,807,846 $3,701,433

Other 4,185,352 3,816,656
Standby letters of credit, net of participations 441,389 452,219
Commercial letters of credit 27,669 30,088 3

Commitments to extend credit are legally binding agreements to lend to a borrower providing there are
no violations of any conditions established in the contract. As many of the commitments are expected to
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment does not necessarily represent future cash require-
ments. Refer to Note 3 on Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses for further discussion.

Commerecial letters of credit act as a means of ensuring payment to a seller upon shipment of goods to a
buyer. Although commercial letters of credit are used to effect payment for domestic transactions, the
majority are used to settle payments in international trade. Typically, letters of credit require presentation of
documents which deseribe the commercial transaction, evidence shipment, and transfer title.

The Company, as a provider of financial services, routinely issues financial guarantees in the form of
financial and performance standby letters of credit. Standby letters of credit are contingent commitments
issued by the Company generally to guarantee the payment or performance obligation of a customer to a third
party. While these represent a potential outlay by the Company, a significant amount of the commitments
may expire without being drawn upon. The Company has recourse against the customer for any amount it is
required to pay to a third party under a standby letter of credit. The letters of eredit are subject to the same
credit policies, underwriting standards and approval process as loans made by the Company. Most of the
standby letters of credit are secured and in the event of nonperformance by the customers, the Company has
rights to the underlying collateral, which could include commercial real estate, physical plant and property,
inventory, receivables, cash and marketable securities.

At December 31, 2007, the Company had recorded a liability in the amount of $4.7 million, representing
the carrying value of the guarantee obligations associated with the standby letters of credit. This amount will
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be amortized into income over the life of the commitment. The contract amount of these letters of credit,
which represents the maximum potential future payments guaranteed by the Company, was $441.4 million
at December 31, 2007.

The Company periodically purchases various state tax credits arising from third-party property rede-
velopment. Most of the tax credits are resold to third parties, although some may be retained for use by the
Company. During 2007, purchases and sales of tax c¢redits amounted to $38.7 million and $40.5 million,
respectively. At December 31, 2007, the Company had outstanding purchase commitments totaling
$102.6 million. The commitments are expected to be funded in 2008 through 2011.

In 2007, the Company entered into several risk participation agreements (RPAs) with other financial
institutions which mitigate those institutions’ credit risk arising from interest rate swaps with third parties.
The RPA stipulates that, in the event of default by the third party on the interest rate swap, the Company will
reimburse a portion of the loss borne by the institution. The Company’s exposure is based on notional
amounts totaling $25.4 million; however, these contracts are all backed by collateral, thus mitigating the
overall risk. At inception of each contract, the Company received a fee from the institution which was
recorded as a liability representing the fair value of the RPA. Any future changes in fair value, including
those due to a change in the third party’s creditworthiness, are recorded in current earnings. At December 31,
2007 the total liability was $174 thousand. The maximum potential future payment guaranteed by the
Company cannot be readily estimated, but is dependent upon the fair value of the interest rate swaps at the
time of default. If an event of default had occurred on all contracts at December 31, 2007, the Company would
have been required to make payments of approximately $1.4 million.

The Company guarantees payments to holders of certain trust preferred securities issued by two wholly
owned grantor trusts as discussed in Note 8 on Borrowings. Preferred securities issued by Breckenridge
Capital Trust I, amounting to $4.0 million, are due in 2030 and may be redeemed beginning in 2010,
Securities issued by West Pointe Statutory Trust I, amounting to $10.0 million, are due in 2034 and may be
redeemed beginning in 2008. The maximum potential future payments guaranteed by the Company, which
includes future interest and principal payments through maturity, was estimated to be approximately
$43.2 million at December 31, 2007. At December 31, 2007, the Company had a recorded liability of
$14.2 million in principal and accrued interest to date, representing amounts owed to the security holders.

During:the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company recorded a non-cash indemnification charge of
$21.0 million related to the Company’s obligation to share certain estimated litigation costs of Visa, Inc.
(Visa). The charge was the result of revisions in October 2007 to Visa’s by-laws affecting all member banks, as
part of an overall reorganization in which the member banks indemnified Visa on certain covered litigation.
The expense charge relates to Visa's American Express litigation, which was settled by Visa in November
2007, and other Visa litigation, including the Discover and other interchange litigation, which has not yet
been settled, As part of the reorganization, Visa plans an initial public offering early in 2008, and part of the
proceeds from the offering representing the member banks’ proportionate share will be placed in escrow and
used to fund the actual litigation settlements when they occur, The Company currently anticipates that its
proportional share of the proceeds of the Visa initial public offering will more than offset its liabilities related
to the Visa litigation.

In the normal course of business, the Company had certain lawsuits pending at December 31, 2007, In
the opinion of management, after consultation with legal counsel, none of these suits will have a significant
effect on the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

19. Related Parties

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and its Vice Chairman are directors of Tower Properties
Company {Tower) and together with members of their immediate families beneficially own approximately
76% of the outstanding stock of Tower. At December 31, 2007, Tower owned 166,156 shares of Company stock.
Tower is primarily engaged in the business of owning, developing, leasing and managing real property.
During 2006 and previous years, the Company and its affiliates occupied various facilities in downtown
Kansas City which were owned by Tower. At December 31, 20086, all such premises had been sold by Tower or
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vacated by the Company, with the exception of several surface parking lots which are used by employees of
the Company.

Payments from the Company and its affiliates to Tower are summarized below.

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Rent on leased properties $ 423 § 556 $§ 920
Leasing fees 19 72 104
Operation of parking garages 104 101 98
Building management fees 1,638 1,621 1,432
Property construction management fees 269 192 276
Dividends paid on Company stock held by Tower 158 148 138
Total $2,611 $2,690 $2,968

Tower has a $13.5 million line of credit with the Company’s Missouri bank (Bank) which is subject to
normal credit terms and has a variable interest rate. No loans were outstanding during 2007 under this line
of credit. At December 31, 2005, the loan balance was $2.3 million, which was repaid in 2006. Interest
received by the Bank from Tower under the line of credit was $49 thousand and $192 thousand in 2006 and
2005, respectively. Fees received for letters of credit collateralized under the line of credit were $35 thousand
annually in 2007, 2006 and 2005. From time to time, the Bank extends additional credit to Tower for
construction and development projects. No construction loans were outstanding during 2007 or 2006.
Interest received on such loans was $24 thousand in 2005.

In 2006, the Bank purchased two parking facilities in downtown Kansas City from Tower for $2.4 million.
These parking facilities are adjacent to existing Company office buildings, and are in the process of being
renovated for future parking expansion. In 2005, the Bank purchased a 12-story office building and attached
garage in downtown Kansas City from Tower for $18.0 million. The purchase prices were based upon
independent outside appraisals and the transactions were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and
independent Audit Committee.

Directors of the Company and their beneficial interests have deposit accounts with the subsidiary banks
of the Company and may be provided with cash management and other banking services, including loans, in
the ordinary course of business. Such loans were made on substantially the same terms, including interest
rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons, and did
not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility.
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20. Parent Company Condensed Financial Statements

Following are the condensed financial statements of Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (Parent only) for the

periods indicated:

Condensed Balance Sheets

(In thousands)

December 31
2007 2006

Assets

Investment in consolidated subsidiaries:
Banks
Non-banks

Cash

Investment securities:
Available for sale
Non-marketable

Prepaid pension cost

Income tax benefits

Other assets

$1,363,837 $1,197,369
41,716 67,737

96 119
121,620 166,239
6,980 6,804
20,223 7,998
8,903 7,294

13,538 11,918

Total assets

$1,576,813 $1,465,478

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Borrowings from subsidiaries, net of receivables
Indemnification obligation

Other liabilities

$ 15708 $ 11,005
20,951 —_
12,468 12,359

Total liabilities
Stockholders’ equity

49,127 23,364
1,527,686 1,442,114

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$1,576,813 $1,465,478

Condensed Statements of Income

{In thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31
2007 20086 2005

Income

Dividends received from consolidated subsidiaries:

Banks
Non-banks

Earnings of consolidated subsidiaries, net of dividends

Interest and dividends on investment securities

Management fees charged subsidiaries
Investment securities gains (losses)
Other

$172,187 $140,200 $219,639
7,280 300 315
44,086 82,677 10,540
4,524 7,764 6,451
39,074 37,731 32,952
2,110 {149} (164)
1,913 3,179 1,634

Total income

271,174 271,702 271,267

Expense

Salaries and employee benefits
Professional fees

Data processing fees paid to affiliates
Indemnification obligation

Other

30,509 35,152 32,643

3,997 2,635 2,449
11,097 9,471 9,660
20,951 — —
11,182 10,784 10,601

Total expense

77,736 58,042 55,353

Income tax expense (benefit)

(13,222} (6,182) (7,333)

Net income

$206,660 $219,842 $223,247
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Operating Activities
Net income $ 206,660 $ 219,842 $ 223,247
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Earnings of consolidated subsidiaries, net of dividends (44,0886) (82,677) (10,540)

Other adjustments, net 11,619 2,808 4,995
Net cash provided by operating activities 174,193 139,973 217,702
Investing Activities
Increase in investment in subsidiaries, net (43,977) (17,822) (11,525)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 55,866 13,005 36
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities 62,256 90,594 173,938
Purchases of investment securities {70,389) (41,828) (107,820)
Net purchases of equipment (1,691) (474) (485)
Net cash provided by investing activities 2,065 43,475 54,144
Financing Activities
Increase in borrowings from subsidiaries, net 5,268 7,977 3,395
Purchases of treasury stock (128,578) (134,956) (234,501)
Issuance under equity compensation plans 13,661 7,274 18,393
Net tax benefit related to equity compensation plans 2,283 2,108 4,288
Cash dividends paid on common stock (68,915) (65,758) (63,421)
Net cash used in financing activities (176,281) (183,355) (271,846)
Increase (decrease) in cash (23) 93 —
Cash at beginning of year 119 26 26
Cash at end of year $ 9% $ 119 §$ 26

Dividends paid by the Parent were substantially provided from subsidiary bank dividends. The sub-

sidiary banks may distribute dividends without prior regulatory approval that do not exceed the sum of net
income for the current year and retained net income for the preceding two years, subject to maintenance of
minimum capital requirements. The Parent charges fees to its subsidiaries for management services
provided, which are allocated to the subsidiaries based primarily on total average assets. The Parent makes
advances to non-banking subsidiaries and subsidiary bank holding companies. Advances are made to the
Parent by subsidiary bank holding companies for investment in temporary liquid securities. Interest on such
advances is based on market rates.

For the past several years, the Parent has maintained a $20.0 million line of credit for general corporate
purposes with a subsidiary bank. The line of credit is secured by marketable investment securities. At
December 31, 2007, the Parent’s outstanding borrowings under this line were $10.0 million. The interest rate
is the quoted Call Money rate, which was 6.0% at December 31, 2007. During 2006 and 2005, the Parent had
no borrowings from the subsidiary bank.

The Parent plans to fund an additional $13.3 million relating to venture capital and private equity
investments over the next several years. The investments are made directly by the Parent and through non-
bank subsidiaries,

Available for sale investment securities held by the Parent consist of short-term investments in mutual
funds and marketable common and preferred stock. The fair value of these securities included an unrealized
gain of $52.0 million at December 31, 2007. The corresponding net of tax unrealized gain included in
stockholders’ equity was $32.2 million. Also included in stockholders’ equity was an unrealized net of tax loss
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in fair value of investment securities held by subsidiaries, which amounted to $2.2 million at December 31,
2007.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Parent recorded a liability of $21.0 million related to its share of certain
estimated Visa litigation costs under an indemnification obligation to Visa as discussed on page 94.
Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

There were no changes in or disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure,

Item 9a. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures,
as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 16d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Based on
this evaluation, our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer concluded that our disclo-
sure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this annual report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsering Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under
the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 has been audited by
KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which follows.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.:

We have audited Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Qrganizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). The
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accom-
panying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion,

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, and our report dated February 26, 2008 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

KPMe LLP

Kansas City, Missouri
February 26, 2008
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Item 9b. OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART III

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by Items 401, 405 and 407(c)(3), (d)(4) and (d)(5) of Regulation S-K regarding
executive officers is included in Part I under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant” and under the
captions “Election of Directors”, “Section 16(a} Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”, “Audit Com-
mittee”, “Audit Committee Report”, and “Committee on Governance/Directors” in the definitive proxy
statement, which is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company’s financial officer code of ethies for the chief executive officer and senior financial officers of
the Company is available at www.commercebank.com. Amendments to, and waivers of, the code of ethics are
posted on this website.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Items 402 and 407(e)(4) and (e}(5) of Regulation S-K regarding executive
compensation is included under the captions “Executive Compensation”, “Retirement Benefits”, “Compen-
sation Committee Report on Executive Compensation”, and “Compensation Committee Interlocks and
Insider Participation” in the definitive proxy statement, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Items 201(d) and 403 of Regulation S-K is covered under the captions
“Equity Compensation Plan” and “Voting Securities and Ownership Thereof by Certain Beneficial Owners
and Management” in the definitive proxy statement, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Items 404 and 407(a) of Regulation S-K is covered under the captions
“Election of Directors” and “Corporate Governance and Director Independence” in the definitive proxy
statement, which 1s incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The informaticn required is included under the caption “Approval of Independent Auditors” in the
definitive proxy statement, which is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

\
!

(a) The following documents are filed as a part of this report:

Page
{1) Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets 57
Consolidated Statements of Income 58
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 59
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity 60
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 61
Summary of Quarterly Statements of Income 51

(2) Financial Statement Schedules:

All schedules are omitted as such information is inapplicable or is
included in the financial statements.

(b} The exhibits filed as part of this report and exhibits incorporated herein by reference to other
documents are listed in the Index to Exhibits (pages E-1 through E-2}).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized this 26th day of February 2008.

COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.

By: /s!/ J. DANIEL STINNETT

J. Daniel Stinnett
Vice President and Secretary

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 26th day of
February 2008.

By: /s/ A. Bavarp CLARK

A. Bayard Clark
Chief Financial Officer

By: fs/ JEFFERY D. ABERDEEN

Jdeffery D. Aberdeen
Controller
(Chief Accounting Officer)

David W. Kemper
(Chief Executive Officer)
John R. Capps
W. Thomas Grant II
James B. Hebenstreit
Jonathan M. Kemper
Terry O. Meek
Benjamin F. Rassieur III
Dan C. Simons
Andrew C. Taylor
Kimbherly G. Walker
Robert H. West /

A majority of the Board of Directors*

* David W. Kemper, Director and Chief Executive Officer, and the other Directors of Registrant listed,
executed a power of attorney authorizing J. Daniel Stinnett, their attorney-in-fact, to sign this report cn
their behalf.

By: /s/ J. DaNIEL STinnNETT

J. Daniel Stinnett
Attorney-in-Fact
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

3 - Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws:

(a} Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended, were filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q
dated August 10, 1999, and the same are hereby incorporated by reference.

(b) Restated By-Laws, as amended, were filed in current report on Form 8-K dated October 29, 2007,
and the same are hereby incorporated by reference.

4 — Instruments defining the rights of security holders, including indentures:

(a) Pursuant to paragraph (b)(4)(iii} of Item 601 Regulation S-K, Registrant will furnish to the
Commission upon request copies of long-term debt instruments.

10 - Material Contracts (Each of the following is a management contract or compensatory plan
arrangement):

(a) Commerce Baneshares, Inc. Executive Incentive Compensation Plan amended and restated as of
July 31, 1998 was filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q dated May 10, 2002, and the same is hereby
incorporated by reference.

(b} Commerce Bancshares, Inc, 1987 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan amended and restated as of
October 4, 1996 was filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q dated November 8, 1996, and the same is
hereby incorporated by reference.

(¢) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Stock Purchase Plan for Non-Employee Directors amended and
restated as of October 4, 1996 was filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q dated November 8, 1996, and
the same is hereby incorporated by reference.

(d) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan amended and restated as of April
2001 was filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q dated May 8, 2001, and the same is hereby incorporated
by reference.

(e} Commerce Executive Retirement Plan amended and restated as of January 1, 2005 was filed in
current report on Form 8-K dated January 4, 2005, and the same is hereby incorporated by reference.

(f) Commerce Baneshares, Inc. Restricted Stock Plan amended and restated as of April 21, 2004 was
filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q dated August 4, 2004, and the same is hereby incorporated by
reference.

(g) Form of Severance Agreement between Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and certain of its executive
officers entered into as of October 4, 1996 was filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q dated November 8§,
1996, and the same is hereby incorporated by reference.

(h) Trust Agreement for the Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Executive Incentive Compensation Plan
amended and restated as of January 1, 2001 was filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q dated May 8,
2001, and the same is hereby incorporated by reference.

(i) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. 2008 Compensatory Arrangement with CEO and Named Executive
Officers was filed in current report on Form 8-K dated February 5, 2008, and the same is hereby
incorporated by reference.

(j) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan was filed in the Company’s proxy
statement dated March 11, 2005, and the same is hereby incorporated by reference.

(k) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Notice of Grant of Stock Options and Option Agreement was filed in
quarterly report on Form 10-Q dated August 5, 2005, and the same is hereby incorporated by reference.

(1) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Restricted Stock Award Agreement, pursuant to the Restricted
Stock Plan, was filed in quarterly report on Form 10-Q dated August 5, 2005, and the same is hereby
incorporated by reference.
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(m) Commerce Bancshares, Inc. Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement and Commerce Bancshares,
Inc. Restricted Stock Award Agreement, pursuant to the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, were filed in
current report on Form 8-K dated February 23, 2006, and the same are hereby incorporated by reference.

21 — Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23 - Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

24 — Power of Attorney

31.1 — Certification of CEQO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 - Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32 - Certifications of CEQO and CFO pursuant to 18 US.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002




The consolidated subsidiaries of the Registrant at February 1, 2008 were as follows:

Exhibit 21

State or Other
Jurisdiction of

Name Location Incorporation
CBI-Kansas, Inc. .. .......... . i s i Kansas City, MO Kansas
Commerce Bank, National Association . ...................... Kansas City, MO United States
Commerce Brokerage Services, Inc. ....................... Clayton, MO Missouri
Clayton Holdings, LLC . .. . ... ... . ... . i Kansas City, MO  Missouri
Clayton Financial Corp. . ... ... .. . e, Clayton, MO Missouri
Clayton Realty Corp. ........ ... .. ... Clayton, MO Missouri
Illinois Financial, LLC . . . ...... ... .. ... ... . . . . . ... Peoria, 1L Delaware
Hhinois Realty, LLC . . .. .. ... i et Peoria, IL Delaware
Commerce Insurance Services, Inc. ...........vvveen .. Fenton, MO Missouri
Commerce Investment Advisors, Inc. ......... ... ..., Kansas City, MO  Missouri
Commerce Mortgage Corp. .......... ... ... . iiiiinn., Kansas City, MO  Missouri
CBILeasing, Inc. . ..o it e it Kansas City, MO  Missouri
Tower Redevelopment Corporation ........................ Kansas City, MO  Missouri
Shawnee State, Ine. .. ... .ot e Shawnee, KS Kansas
Commerce Bank, National Association .. ..................... Wichita, KS United States
21st Street Redevelopment Company, L.C. .................. Wichita, KS Kansas
Commerce Bank, National Association. . ....................... Omaha, NE United States
CBI Insurance CoOmpany . . .. ..ot tiit it iiiie e aanns Kansas City, MO  Arizona
CFB Partners II, LLC . . ... .. it i i ennn Kansas City, MO  Missouri
CFB Partners, LLC . ... ... i i i Clayton, MO Delaware
CFBVenture Fund I, Inc. . ............ . ... .. . ... .. Kansas City, MO  Missouri
CFB Venture Fund, L.P. . ... ... .. . i i Clayton, MO Delaware
CFBVenture Fund II, L.P. .. ... .. . ... . i Kansas City, MO  Missouri
Capital for Business, Inc. . ......... ... . ... i Kansas City, MO  Missouni
UBI Financial Services, Inec. . ....... ... ... . . i, Wichita, KS Kansas
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| Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
Commerce Bancshares, Inc.:

. We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements No. 33-28294, No. 33-82692,

No. 33-8075, No. 33-78344, No. 33-61499, No. 33-61501 and No. 333-14651, each on Form S-8, No. 333-140221
on S-3ASR and No. 333-140475 on Form S-4 of Commerce Bancshares, Inc. of our reports dated February 26,
2008, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Commerce Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2007 and 20086, and the related consclidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, which reports appear in the December 31,

‘ 2007 annual report on Form 10-K of Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

|

|

I

I

|

|

KPMG LLP

Kansas City, Missouri
February 26, 2008




Exhibit 24

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned do hereby appoint J. Daniel Stinnett
and Jeffery D. Aberdeen, or either of them, attorney for the undersigned to sign the Annual Report on
Form 10-K of Commerce Bancshares, Inc., for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2007, together with any and
all amendments which might be required from time to time with respect thereto, to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, with respect to Commerce
Bancshares, In¢., with full power and authority in either of said attorneys to do and perform in the name of
and on behalf of the undersigned every act whatsoever necessary or desirable to be done in the premises as
fully and to all intents and purposes as the undersigned might or could do in person.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed these presents this 1st day of February 2008.

/s/  Joun R. Capps

/s 'W. THomaS Grant 11

/s James B. HEBENSTREIT

/s/  Davin W. KEMPER

/s/ JoNaTHAN M. KeEMPER

fs/ Terry O. MEEK

/s/ BewnJaMmIN F. Rassizur 111

/s/ Dan C. SmMons

/s/ Anprew C. Tavior

fs/  KiMBERLY G. WALKER

/s/ RoBerT H. WEST




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, David W. Kemper, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Commerce Bancshares, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and we have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the peried in which this annual report is being prepared;

(b} Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(¢} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Davip W. KEMPER

David W. Kemper
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

February 26, 2008




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, A. Bayard Clark, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Commerce Bancshares, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and we have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

{b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d} Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

/s/ A. Bavarp CLARK

A. Bayard Clark
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

February 26, 2008




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Commerce Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof
(the “Report”), we, David W. Kemper and A. Bayard Clark, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, respectively, of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 as adopted pursuant to
§ 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of our knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Davip W. KEMPER

David W. Kemper
Chief Executive Officer

/s/  A. BavarD CLARK

A. Bayard Clark
Chief Financial Officer

February 26, 2008

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and
will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon
request.
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Designed by Falk Hamson Creatve, S Lows, Missoun

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
1000 Walnut

P.O. Box 419248

Kansas City, MO 64141-6248

{B16) 234-2000
www.commercebank.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
KPMG LLP
Kansas City, Missouri

TRANSFER AGENT, REGISTRAR AND
DIVIDEND DISBURSING AGENT
Computershare Trust Company. N.A.
P.O. Box 43078

Providence. RI 02940-3078

(800} 317-4445

(800) 9529245 TDD
www.computershare.com

STOCHK EXCHANGE LISTING
NASDAQ
Symbol: CBSH

COMMON STOCK INFORMATION

The table below sets forth the high and the low prices of
actual transactions for the company’s common stock,
which is publicly traded on the NASDAQ Siock Market.

FISCAL 2007 HIGH LOW
First Quarter $48.35 £44.37
Second Quarter 46.59 42.53
Third Quarter 46.10 41.22
Fourth Quarter 46.32 41,96

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held
Wednesday, April 16, 2008 at 9:30 a.m., at The Ritz
Carlton - St. Louis. 100 Carondelet Plaza, Clayton,
Missouri 63105 in The Plaza Room on level two.

INVESTOR INQUIRIES
Shareholders, analysts and investors seeking informa-
tion about the company should direct their inquiries to:

Jeffery D. Aberdeen. Controller
1000 Walnut

P.O. Box 419248

Kansas City, MO 64141-6248
(800) 892-7100
mymeney@commercebank.com

SHAREHOLDERS MAY RECEIVE FUTURE
ANNUAL REPORTS AND PROXY MATERIALS OVER
THE INTERNET

To take advantage of the opportunity to receive
malerials electronically, rather than by mail, individual
who hold stock in their names may simply fill out the
online gonsent form by logging onto the sign-up websits
at: hitp;//www.computershare.com/usfecomms,

Please note:

* You will need your account number from the proxy
card Lo complete the enrollmernt process.

* Your consent is entirely revocable.

* You can always vote your proxy on the Internet whether

or not you elect to receive your materials electronically.

Shareholders who hold Commerce stock through a
bank, broker or other holder of record, should refer to
the information provided by that entity for instructions
on how to elect to view future annual reports and proxy
statements over the Internet. Employee PIP (401K)
shareholders can access the information through
http://www.econsent.com/cbhsh.

ask listen sofve and call click come by are trademarks of Commerce Bancshares. Inc.
Commerce Conneglions, Special Connections and CommerceOplions are senica

marks of Commerce Bancshares. Inc.
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COMMERCE BANCSHARES, INC.

1000 WALNUT
P.C:. BOX 419248
KANSAS CITY, MO 64141-6248

Phone: (816) 234-2000
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E-mail: mymeney@conumercebank.com
Webhsite: www.commercehank.com

An qual Gpportunity Employer MK2907

T T em e B me

. — T

e AF e = mme s gy o o -




